FLORIDA VITAL STATISTICS CODE MANUAL FOR

DEATH

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CODE MANUAL REVISION HISTORY	2
MAP OF FLORIDA COUNTIES	3
DEATH FIELDS BY LAYOUT ORDER	5
FLORIDA DEATH DATA DICTIONARY	8
CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE	97
LISTING OF FACILITY CODES AND FACILITY NAMES	114
EXPLANATION OF CALCULATED RACE FIELDS	125
EXPLANATION OF CALCULATED ETHNICITY FIELDS	126
LINKING BIRTH RECORDS TO DEATH RECORDS	
LIST OF 113 SELECTED CAUSE OF DEATH GROUPS	128
LIST OF 130 SELECTED CAUSE OF INFANT DEATH GROUPS	
LIST OF 358 SELECTED CAUSE OF DEATH GROUPS	134
RELATED WEBSITES	144

This document is produced by:

State of Florida

Department of Health



Division of Public Health Statistics & Performance Management

CODE MANUAL REVISION HISTORY

Date	Description	Version
3/1/2010	Updated code manual to include revision history. Assigned version:	March 2010
3/1/2010	Updated field length for POST_REG_STATUS from 20 to 40.	March 2010
2/13/2011	Added the following fields: informant_name_f, informant_name_m, informant_name_l, informant_name_suf, dispose_name, dispose_state, dispose_country, dispose_city, fundir_name_fml	February 2011
4/2/2012	Updated descriptions for informant_name_f, informant_name_m, informant_name_l, informant_name_suf, dispose_name, dispose_state, dispose_country, dispose_city, and fundir_name_fml.	April 2012
10/12/2012	Updated City, County, State, and Country Reference Table. Redesigned code manual. Revised descriptions for several fields. Added information denoting whether a field is present in the master, stat, or CHD	October 2012
	extract data products. Added information to specify years data were collected and the certificate item number for each field.	
8/13/2019	Updated listing of facility codes and facility names.	August 2019
2/9/2024	Adding new cities and facilities to the city and facility code appendices. Updating the cause of death code appendices.	February 2024

MAP OF FLORIDA COUNTIES



FLORIDA VITAL STATISTICS CODE MANUAL FOR DEATH

DEATH FIELDS BY LAYOUT ORDER

FIELD NAME	PAGE	FIELD NAME	PAGE
EVENT_YEAR	8	ETHNIC_OTHER	28
CERTNUMBER	8	ETHNIC_OTHER_LIT	28
STATE_FILE_NUMBER	8	ETHNIC_CENT_SOUTH_AMR	28
DATE_OF_DEATH	9	ETHNIC_UNKNOWN	29
DATE_OF_DEATH_MONTH	9	ETHNIC_HAITIAN	29
DATE_OF_DEATH_DAY	9	ACME_CODE	29
DATE_OF_DEATH_YEAR	10	ICD_CODE	30
TIME_OF_DEATH	10	DEATHGROUP_MONTHLY	30
NAME_FIRST	10	DEATHGROUP_INFANT	30
NAME_MIDDLE	11	DEATHGROUP_ANNUAL	31
NAME_LAST	11	BIRTH_CITY	31
NAME_SUFFIX	11	BIRTH_COUNTRY	31
NAME_ALIAS	12	BIRTH_COUNTRY_CODE	32
SEX	12	BIRTH_SFN	32
SSN	12	BIRTH_STATE	32
AGE	13	BIRTH_STATE_CODE	33
AGE CODE	13	BIRTH_YEAR	33
AGE TYPE	13	DATE_OF_BIRTH	33
PLACE_DEATH	14	DATE_OF_BIRTH_MONTH	34
PLACE_DEATH_CD	14	DATE OF BIRTH DAY	34
MARITAL	14	DATE_OF_BIRTH_YEAR	34
MARITAL_CODE	15	ARMY_YESNO	35
RESID ADDRESS	15	FATHER_NAME_FIRST	35
RESID_APT_NO	15	FATHER_NAME_MIDDLE	35
RESID_CITY	16	FATHER_NAME_LAST	36
RES_CITY_CODE	16	FATHER_NAME_SUFFIX	36
RESID_COUNTRY	16	MOTHER_NAME_F	36
RESID_COUNTRY_CODE	17	MOTHER_NAME_M	37
RESID_COUNTY	17	MOTHER_NAME_L	37
RESID_COUNTY_CODE	17	SPOUSE_NAME_F	37
RESID_STATE	18	SPOUSE_NAME_M	38
RESID_STATE_CODE	18	SPOUSE_NAME_L	38
RESID_ZIP	18	SPOUSE_NAME_SUF	38
RESID_IN_CITY	19	DISPOSITION	39
EDUCATION	19	DISPOSITION_CODE	39
EDUCATION_CODE	19	FAC_CITY	39
RACE_WHITE	20	FAC_CITY_CODE	40
RACE_BLACK	20	FAC_CODE	40
RACE_AM_INDIAN	20	FAC_COUNTY	40
RACE_ASIAN	21	FAC_IN_CITY	41
RACE_CHINESE	21	FAC_NAME	41
RACE_FILIPINO	21	FAC_STATE	41
RACE JAPANESE	22	FAC_STATE_CODE	42
RACE_KOREAN	22	FAC COUNTRY	42
RACE VIETNAMESE	22	FAC_COUNTRY_CODE	42
RACE_OTH_ASIAN	23	FAC_COUNTY_CODE	44
RACE_HAWAIIAN	23	FUN_ADDRESS	44
RACE_GUAM	23	FUN_COUNTRY	44
RACE_SAMOAN	24	FUN_CITY	45
RACE_OTH_PAC_ISL	24	FUN_NAME	45
RACE_OTHER	24	FUN_SIGN	45
RACE_AM_IND_LIT	25	FUN_SIGN_DATE	46
RACE_OTH_ASIAN_LIT	25	FUN_STATE	46
RACE_OTH_PAC_ISL_LIT	25	FUN_ZIP	46
RACE_OTHER_LIT	26	FUNDIR_LICENSE	47
RACE_UNKNOWN	26	ME_ACTION_COD	47
ETHNIC_YESNO	26	ME APPROVAL	47
ETHNIC_MEXICAN	27	ME_APPROVE_NUMB	48
ETHNIC_PR	27	ME_CASE_NUMB	48
ETHNIC_CUBAN	27	MANNER_DEATH	48

DEATH FIELDS BY LAYOUT ORDER

FIELD NAME	PAGE	FIELD NAME	PAGE
MANNER_DEATH_CODE	48	DISPOSE_NAME	68
AUTOPSY_DONE	48	DISPOSE_STATE	68
SURGERY_DATE	48	DISPOSE_COUNTRY	68
SURGERY_DATE_MONTH	49	DISPOSE_CITY	69
SURGERY_DATE_DAY	49	FUNDIR_NAME_FML	69
SURGERY_DATE_YEAR	49	LINK_BIR_COUNTRY	69
SURGERY_REASON	50	LINK_BIR_COUNTRY_CODE	70
TOBACCO_CODE	50	LINK_BIR_DOB	70
TOBACCO_LIT	50	LINK_BIR_DOB_MONTH	70
FEM_PREG	51	LINK_BIR_DOB_DAY	71
FEM_PREG_CODE	51	LINK_BIR_DOB_YEAR	71
FEM_PREG_YN	51	LINK_BIR_STATE	71
INJURY_APT	52	LINK_BIR_STATE_CODE	72
INJURY_AT_WORK	52	CREATE_DATE	72
INJURY_CITY	52	CREATE_DATE2	72
INJURY_COUNTRY	53	MODIFY_DATE	73
INJURY_COUNTRY_CODE	53	REGISTRAR_DATE	73
INJURY_DATE	53	OCCUPAT_LIT	73
INJURY_DATE_MONTH	54	PENDING	74
INJURY_DATE_DAY	54	POST_REG_STATUS	74
INJURY_DATE_YEAR	54	RECORD_STATUS	74
INJURY_TIME	55 55	REG_TYPE_CODE	75 75
INJURY_HOW_OCCUR	55 55	SOURCE_SFN	75 75
INJURY_LOCAT INJURY_STATE	55 56	STATE_FILE_DATE OLD_EDUCATION_CODE	76
INJURY_PLACE	56	OLD_INJURY_COUNTY	76
INJURY_PLACE_CODE	56	OLD_INJURY_CITY	76
INJURY_STATE_CODE	57	OLD_INJURY_PLACE	77
INJURY_TRANSPL	57	OLD_MANNER_OF_DEATH	77
INJURY_TRANSPL_CODE	57	OLD_TYPE_OF_PLACE	77
INJURY_VEHICLE	58	OLD_RES_CITY_CODE	78
INJURY_VEHICLE_CODE	58	COMPUTED_AGE	78
INJURY_ZIP	58	INFANT_DEATH_TYPE	78
BODY_FOUND	59	RECODE_DEATH_GROUP	79
CERT_LICENSE	59	CHDRESCOUNTY	79
CERT_NAME_FML	59	ACME1	79
CERT_SIGN_DATE	60	ACME2	80
CERT_TITLE	60	ACME3	80
CERT_TITLE_CD	60	ACME4	80
CERT_STATE	61	ACME5	81
CERT_COUNTRY	61	ACME6	81
CERT_CITY	61	ACME7	81
CERT_ADDR CERT_ZIP	62 62	ACME8	82 82
ATTEND_NAME_FML	62 62	ACME9 ACME10	82 82
CORONER_CONTACTED	63	ACME10 ACME11	83
DIRECTOR_FLAG	63	ACME12	83
FINDINGS USED	63	ACME13	83
INDUSTRY LIT	64	ACME14	84
INFORMANT_REL_CODE	64	ACME15	84
INFORMANT RELATION	64	ACME16	84
INFORMANT_STATE	65	ACME17	85
INFORMANT_COUNTRY	65	ACME18	85
INFORMANT_CITY	65	ACME19	85
INFORMANT_ADDRESS	66	ACME20	86
INFORMANT_ZIP	66	TRANSAX1	86
INFORMANT_NAME_F	66	TRANSAX2	86
INFORMANT_NAME_M	67	TRANSAX3	87
INFORMANT_NAME_L	67	TRANSAX4	87
INFORMANT_NAME_SUF	67	TRANSAX5	87

DEATH FIELDS BY LAYOUT ORDER

FIELD NAME	PAGE	FIELD NAME	PAGE
TRANSAX6	88		
TRANSAX7	88		
TRANSAX8	88		
TRANSAX9	89		
TRANSAX10	89		
TRANSAX11	89		
TRANSAX12	90		
TRANSAX13	90		
TRANSAX14	90		
TRANSAX15	91		
TRANSAX16	91		
TRANSAX17	91		
TRANSAX18	92		
TRANSAX19	92		
TRANSAX20	92		
CALCULATED_RACE	93		
CALCULATED_HISP	93		
SYS_DATELOADED	93		
SYS_DATEUPDATED	94		
MOTHER_NAME_SUFFIX	94		
TIME_FOUND	94		
INJURY_FOUND	95		
ARMY_IS_SVC_REL_DISABILITY	95		
MODIFY_USER_NAME	95		

FLORIDA DEATH DATA DICTIONARY

EVENT_YEAR

DETAILS

TYPE: int (4)

ITEM 0 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Year the event occurred

CODE DEFINITION

YYYY: 1970 to present

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

CERTNUMBER

DETAILS

TYPE: char (6)

ITEM 0 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

6-digit sequential number assigned by the Bureau of Vital Statistics

CODE DEFINITION

000001-299999 Deaths Occurring in Florida 900001-999999 Deaths to Florida Residents Occurring in Other States (Allocated Records)

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

STATE FILE NUMBER

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (10)

ITEM 0 NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Unique Number for Identifying Death Records; a concatenation of the EVENT_YEAR and CERTNUMBER fields

CODE DEFINITION

first four characters are the EVENT_YEAR; the final six characters are the CERTNUMBER

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DATE_OF_DEATH

DETAILS

TYPE: datetime (8)

ITEM 5 NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Date of death

CODE DEFINITION

MMDDYYYY

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: No

DATE_OF_DEATH_MONTH

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Month of death

CODE DEFINITION

MM: 01-12, 99

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

DATE OF DEATH DAY

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM 5 NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Day of death

CODE DEFINITION

DD: 01-31, 99

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DATE_OF_DEATH_YEAR

DETAILS

TYPE: char (4)

ITEM 5 NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Year of death

CODE DEFINITION

YYYY: Valid year

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TIME_OF_DEATH

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (4)

ITEM 32 NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Time of death

CODE DEFINITION

0000 - 2359 Universal Clock 9999 for unknown; Most records

prior to 2005 are NULL

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

NAME_FIRST

DETAILS

TYPE: Varchar (80)

ITEM 1 NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's first name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

NAME_MIDDLE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (80)

ITEM 1 NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's middle name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

NAME_LAST

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (80)

ITEM 1 NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's Last name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

NAME SUFFIX

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (6)

ITEM 1 NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Name suffix

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

NAME_ALIAS

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (75)

ITEM 1 NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Alias name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

Most records prior to 2005 are NULL

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** No CHD EXTRACT: No

SEX

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 2 NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Sex of decedent

CODE DEFINITION

M=Male F=Female U=Unknown

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: Yes

SSN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (9)

ITEM 6 **NUMBER:**

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's social Security Number

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

9-digit numbers only

99999999 for unknown or not classifiable

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

AGE

DETAILS

TYPE: smallint (2)

ITEM 4 NUMBER:

YEARS All years

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's age

CODE DEFINITION

1-135 or 999 for unknown

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

AGE_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 4 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Age unit expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

0=YEARS 2=MONTHS 4=DAYS 5=HOURS 6=MINUTES 9=UNKNOWN

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

AGE TYPE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (15)

ITEM 4 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Description of age unit code

CODE DEFINITION

YEARS, MONTHS, DAYS, HOURS, MINUTES, or

UNKNOWN

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

PLACE_DEATH

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 9 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Place of death

CODE DEFINITION

HOSPITAL: Inpatient, Emergency Room/Outpatient, Dead on

NON-HOSPITAL: Hospice Facility, Nursing Home/Long Term

Care Facility, Decedent's Home, Other Specified; HOSPITAL-UNKNOWN STATUS; UNKNOWN

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

PLACE DEATH CD

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 9 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Place of death expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

1=INPATIENT 2=EMERGENCY ROOM/OUTPATIENT 3=DEAD ON ARRIVAL 4=DECEDENTS HOME 5=HOSPICE 6=NURSING HOME 7=OTHER SPECIFIED 8=HOSPITAL-UNK STATUS 9=UNKNOWN

See also OLD_TYPE_OF_PLACE_CODE

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

MARITAL

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 13 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Description of marital status of decedent

CODE DEFINITION

NEVER MARRIED; MARRIED; WIDOWED; DIVORCED; MARRIED-SIMULTANEOUS DEATH; MARRIED, BUT SEPARATED; UNKNOWN

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

MARITAL_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: int (4)

ITEM 13 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Marital status of decedent expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

1=NEVER MARRIED 2=MARRIED 3=WIDOWED 4=DIVORCED 5=MARRIED-SIMULTANEOUS DEATH 6=MARRIED, BUT SEPARATED 9=UNKNOWN

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RESID_ADDRESS

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (50)

ITEM 12d

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's street address

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RESID APT NO

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (10)

ITEM 12e

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Apartment number of decedent's address

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

RESID_CITY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (50)

ITEM 12c NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's city of residence

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT**: No CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RES CITY CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (6)

ITEM 12c (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's city of residence expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** No CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RESID COUNTRY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (50)

ITEM 12a

NUMBER:

YEARS **COLLECTED**:

1994 - current

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's country of residence

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** No CHD EXTRACT: Yes

17

RESID_COUNTRY_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM 12a (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's country of residence expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RESID_COUNTY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (50)

ITEM 12b

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's county of residence

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RESID COUNTY CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM 12b (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's county of residence expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

RESID_STATE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (50)

ITEM 12a NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's state of residence

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RESID_STATE_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM 12a (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's state of residence expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RESID_ZIP

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 12f NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

ZIP code of decedent's residence

CODE DEFINITION

5-digit numeric 99999=Unknown

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

RESID_IN_CITY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 12g NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent's residence within city limits?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

EDUCATION

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 18 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's educational attainment; what was highest educational diploma/degree achieved by the decedent?

CODE DEFINITION

8TH GRADE OR LESS; 9TH THRU 12TH GRADE; HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATE OR GED; SOME COLLEGE, BUT NO DEGREE; ASSOCIATE (AA, AS); BACHELOR DEGREE (BA, BS); MASTERS DEGREE (MA, MBA, MS); DOCTORATE DEGREE (PHD, MD); UNKNOWN

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

EDUCATION CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 18 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS

1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's educational attainment expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

1=8TH GRADE OR LESS 2=9TH THRU 12TH GRADE 3=HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATE OR GED 4=SOME COLLEGE, BUT NO DEGREE 5=ASSOCIATE DEGREE 6=BACHELOR DEGREE 7=MASTERS DEGREE 8=DOCTORATE DEGREE 9=UNKNOWN NULL=NOT APPLICABLE

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

RACE_WHITE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent White?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RACE BLACK

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent Black or African American?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RACE AM INDIAN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17 **NUMBER:**

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent American Indian/Alaskan Native?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

RACE_ASIAN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent Asian Indian?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RACE_CHINESE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent Chinese?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RACE_FILIPINO

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent Filipino?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

RACE_JAPANESE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent Japanese?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RACE KOREAN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent Korean?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RACE VIETNAMESE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent Vietnamese?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

RACE_OTH_ASIAN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent of another Asian race?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RACE_HAWAIIAN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent Hawaiian?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RACE_GUAM

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent Guamanian or Chamorro?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

RACE_SAMOAN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent Samoan?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RACE OTH PAC ISL

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent of another Pacific Islander race?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RACE OTHER

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17 **NUMBER:**

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent some other unspecified race?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: Yes

25

RACE_AM_IND_LIT

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (25)

ITEM 17 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Description of the decedent's American Indian/Alaskan Native tribal affiliation

CODE DEFINITION

As entered; Specify tribe

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RACE_OTH_ASIAN_LIT

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (25)

ITEM 17 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Description of the decedent's other Asian race

CODE DEFINITION

As entered; Specify other Asian race

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DERATHMASTER: Yes

DEATHSTAT: No **CHD EXTRACT:** Yes

RACE OTH PAC ISL LIT

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (25)

ITEM 17 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Description of the decedent's other Pacific Islander race

CODE DEFINITION

As entered; Specify other Pacific Island race

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes

DEATHSTAT: No **CHD EXTRACT:** Yes

RACE_OTHER_LIT

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (25)

ITEM 17 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Description of the decedent's other unspecified race

CODE DEFINITION

As entered; Specify other race

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RACE UNKNOWN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 17

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent's race unknown?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ETHNIC_YESNO

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 16 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - 2010

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent of Hispanic or Haitian origin?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown

Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

27

ETHNIC_MEXICAN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 16 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent of Mexican origin?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown

Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ETHNIC_PR

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 16 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent of Puerto Rican origin?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown

Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ETHNIC CUBAN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 16 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent of Cuban origin?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown

Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

ETHNIC_OTHER

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 16 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent of other Hispanic origin?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown

Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ETHNIC OTHER LIT

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (25)

ITEM 16 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Description of other Hispanic origin

CODE DEFINITION

As entered; Specify other Hispanic origin

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ETHNIC_CENT_SOUTH_AMR

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 16 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - 2010

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent of Central or South American origin?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown

Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

ETHNIC_UNKNOWN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 16 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is it the decedent's specific Hispanic origin unknown?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ETHNIC_HAITIAN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 16 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the decedent of Haitian origin?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown

Checkbox

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ACME CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (4)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) underlying cause of death code as shown by the order in which the causes were listed on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Uploaded from NCHS Import.

Refer to ICD-10 code manual for codes listed by description

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

ICD CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (4)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

International Classification of Diseases, Tenth Revision (ICD-10) code for underlying cause of death

CODE DEFINITION

1999-current: 4-digit alphanumeric select from A000 thru Y899; 1970-1998: ICD8/ICD-9 are 4-digit numeric select from 001 thru 999-- (All years have some 3-digit select with blank or dash in 4th position)

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

DEATHGROUP MONTHLY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (3)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

1994 - current

YEARS

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

In order to provide a consistent ranking standard, the NCHS (National Center for Health Statistics) prepared a list of 113 selected causes of death. The List of 113 Selected Causes of Death was constructed in part by combining certain titles in the List of 358 Selected Causes of Death. It is used for the general analysis of mortality and for ranking leading causes of death. See Appendix pages 127-129.

CODE DEFINITION

ICD-10: 3-digit select from 001 to 113; ICD-8/9: 2-digit select from 01-68; For a full listing of codes by cause of death, visit http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/data/dvs/im9 2002.pdf.pdf

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

DEATHGROUP_INFANT

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (3)
ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

In order to provide a consistent grouping and ranking standard, the National Center for Health Statistics (NCHS) prepared a List of 130 Selected Causes of Infant Death. The List of 130 Selected Causes of Infant Death, which is used for the analysis of infant mortality and for ranking leading causes of infant death, shows more detailed titles for Certain conditions originating in the perinatal period and Congenital malformations, deformations and chromosomal abnormalities

See Appendix pages 130-133.

CODE DEFINITION

ICD-10: 2-digit select from AA to EZ (130); ICD-8/9: 2-digit select from 01-72. For a full listing of codes by cause of death, visit

http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/data/dvs/im9_2002.pdf.pdf

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHGROUP_ANNUAL

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (3)
ITEM 41 (general

NUMBER:

41 (generated)

1994 - current

YEARS

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

The accepted approach to determining the leading causes of death is to group deaths into standard categories based upon the underlying cause of death (ICD) code assigned to each death. The List of 358 Selected Causes of Death comply with World Health Organization tabulation regulations for grouping deaths

See Appendix pages 134-143.

CODE DEFINITION

ICD-10: 3-digit select from 001 to 358; ICD-8/9: 3-digit select from 001-360. For a full listing of codes by cause of death, visit http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/data/dvs/im9_2002.pdf.pdf

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

BIRTH_CITY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 7 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's city of birth

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

BIRTH_COUNTRY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 7
NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's country of birth

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

BIRTH_COUNTRY_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM 7 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's country of birth expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

BIRTH SFN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (11)

ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Unique number for identifying associated or linked birth records Matches the death record to the birth record

CODE DEFINITION

first four characters are the EVENT_YEAR; the final six characters are the CERTNUMBER (from Birth Certificate)

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

BIRTH_STATE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 7 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's state of birth

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

BIRTH_STATE_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (2)

ITEM 7 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's state of birth expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

BIRTH_YEAR

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (4)

ITEM 3 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's year of birth

CODE DEFINITION

YYYY: Valid year or 9999

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT**: No

CHD EXTRACT:

DATE OF BIRTH

DETAILS

TYPE: datetime (8)

ITEM 3 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's date of birth

CODE DEFINITION

MMDDYYYY

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DATE_OF_BIRTH_MONTH

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM 3 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's month of birth

CODE DEFINITION

MM: 01-12 or 99

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: Yes

DATE OF BIRTH DAY

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2) 3

ITEM NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's day of birth

CODE DEFINITION

DD: 01-31 or 99

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: Yes

DATE OF BIRTH YEAR

DETAILS

TYPE: char (4)

ITEM 3 **NUMBER:**

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's year of birth

CODE DEFINITION

YYYY: Valid year or 9999

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

ARMY_YESNO

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 19a NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Was the decedent ever in the U.S. Armed Forces?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT**: No CHD EXTRACT: Yes

FATHER NAME FIRST

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 20 **NUMBER:**

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

The decedent's father's/parent's first name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** No CHD EXTRACT: Yes

FATHER NAME MIDDLE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 20 NUMBER:

> YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

The decedent's father's/parent's middle name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

FATHER_NAME_LAST

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 20 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

The decedent's father's/parent's last name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DeaTHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

FATHER NAME SUFFIX

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (6)

ITEM 20 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

The decedent's father's/parent's name suffix

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

MOTHER_NAME_F

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 21 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

The decedent's mother's/parent's first name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

MOTHER_NAME_M

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 21 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

The decedent's mother's/parent's middle name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

MOTHER_NAME_L

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 21 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

The decedent's mother's/parent's last name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

SPOUSE NAME F

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 14 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

The decedent's spouse's first name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

SPOUSE_NAME_M

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 14 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

The decedent's spouse's middle name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

SPOUSE_NAME_L

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 14 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

The decedent's spouse's last name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

SPOUSE_NAME_SUF

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (6)

ITEM 14 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

The decedent's spouse's name suffix

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DISPOSITION

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (25)

ITEM 26a NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Method of disposition

CODE DEFINITION

BURIAL; BURIAL AT SEA; CREMATION; REMOVAL FROM

STATE; DONATION; ENTOMBMENT; HOSPITAL

DISPOSITION; OTHER; UNKNOWN

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

DISPOSITION CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: int (4)

ITEM 26a (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - CURRENT

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Method of disposition expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

0=BURIAL 1=BURIAL AT SEA 2=CREMATION 3=REMOVAL FROM STATE 4=DONATION 5=ENTOMBMENT

6=HOSPITAL DISPOSITION 8=OTHER 9=UNKNOWN

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

FAC_CITY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 11a

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

City in which the facility of death is located

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

FAC_CITY_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 11a (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

City in which the facility of death is located expressed as a code

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

FAC CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: int (4)

ITEM 10 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Facility at which the death occurred expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the Listing of Facility Codes and Facility Names reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

FAC_COUNTY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 8 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

County of facility or geographic location of death

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

FAC_IN_CITY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 11b NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Is the facility inside city limits?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: Yes

FAC NAME

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (75)

ITEM 10 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Name of the facility where the death occurred

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

Refer to the Listing of Facility Codes and Facility Names

reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes

CHD EXTRACT: Yes

FAC STATE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 8 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

State in which the facility is located

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

FAC_STATE_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: int (4)

ITEM 8 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

State in which the facility is located expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

FAC COUNTRY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (50)

ITEM 8 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Country in which the death facility is located

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

FAC_COUNTRY_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM 8 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Country in which the death facility is located expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

FAC_COUNTY_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM 8 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

County code for death facility or geographic location at which the

death occurred

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

FUN ADDRESS

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 29c

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Street address of the funeral facility

CODE DEFINITION

Auto-populated based on Funeral Director USER Sign-on

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

FUN_COUNTRY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 29 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Country in which the funeral facility is located

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

FUN_CITY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 29b NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

City in which the funeral facility is located

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes DEATHSTAT: No CHD EXTRACT: No

FUN NAME

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (100)

ITEM 28 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Name of funeral facility

CODE DEFINITION

Auto-populated based on Funeral Director USER Sign-on

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** No CHD EXTRACT: No

FUN SIGN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 27b (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Was the certificate signed by the funeral director?

Y=Yes N=No

CODE DEFINITION

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

FUN_SIGN_DATE

DETAILS

TYPE: datetime (8)

ITEM system NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Date of funeral director's signature

CODE DEFINITION

MMDDYYYY

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** No CHD EXTRACT: No

FUN STATE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 29a

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

State in which the funeral facility is located

CODE DEFINITION

Auto-populated based on Funeral Director USER Sign-on

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** No CHD EXTRACT:

FUN ZIP

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 29d

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

ZIP code of the funeral facility

CODE DEFINITION

Auto-populated based on Funeral Director USER Sign-

on; [U] generates [99999]

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

FUNDIR_LICENSE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (15)

ITEM 27a NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Funeral director's license number

CODE DEFINITION

Auto-populated based on Funeral Director USER Sign-on

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

ME ACTION COD

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (25)
ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Medical examiner's action for cause of death on reported cases

CODE DEFINITION

1=APPROVED 2=REQUEST MORE INFORMATION 3=TAKE OVER JURISDICTION

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

ME APPROVAL

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 30 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Did the medical examiner approve method of disposition?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

ME_APPROVE_NUMB

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (20)

ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Medical examiner's approval number for method of disposition

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

ME CASE NUMB

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (9)

ITEM 33 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Medical examiner's case number

CODE DEFINITION

Format: YYDDNNNNN

This field is blank or null in extract without identifiers or the

extract without identifiers.

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

MANNER_DEATH

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (25)

ITEM 39 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Probable manner of death

CODE DEFINITION

ACCIDENT; SUICIDE; HOMICIDE; UNDETERMINED; PENDING INVESTIGATION; NATURAL CAUSES; NOT

STATED

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

48

MANNER_DEATH_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: int (4)

ITEM 39 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Probable manner of death expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

1=ACCIDENT 2=SUICIDE 3=HOMICIDE 4=UNDETERMINED 5=PENDING INVESTIGATION 7=NATURAL CAUSES 8=NOT STATED (typically implies NATURAL)

See also OLD_MANNER_OF_DEATH

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

AUTOPSY DONE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 42a

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Was autopsy performed?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown X=Not Applicable

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

SURGERY_DATE

DETAILS

TYPE: datetime (8)

ITEM 43b

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Date of surgery

CODE DEFINITION

MMDDYYYY

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

SURGERY_DATE_MONTH

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM 43b NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Month of surgery

CODE DEFINITION

MM: 01-12 or 99

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

SURGERY_DATE_DAY

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Day of surgery

CODE DEFINITION DD: 01-31 or 99

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

SURGERY DATE YEAR

DETAILS

TYPE: char (4)
ITEM 43b

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Year of surgery

CODE DEFINITION

YYYY: Valid year or 9999

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

SURGERY_REASON

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (120)

ITEM 43a NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Description of reason for surgery

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

TOBACCO CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: int (4)

ITEM 44 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Tobacco use expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

1=YES 2=NO 3=PROBABLY 8=NOT STATED 9=UNKNOWN

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TOBACCO_LIT

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (20)

ITEM 44 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Description of tobacco use

CODE DEFINITION

YES; NO; PROBABLY; NOT STATED; UNKNOWN

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

FEM_PREG

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 45 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

If female decedent was pregnant within the last year, specify the time frame

If male, field defaults to [Not Applicable]

CODE DEFINITION

Not Pregnant within Past Year; Pregnant At Time Of Death; Pregnant Within 1 to 42 Days Of Death; Pregnant Within 43 days to 1 year of death; Not Applicable; Unknown or Not Stated

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

FEM PREG CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: int (4)

ITEM 45 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Time frame of pregnancy expressed as a code value If decedent is male, this field defaults to [8]

CODE DEFINITION

1=Not Pregnant within Past Year 2=Pregnant At Time Of Death 3=Pregnant Within 1 to 42 Days Of Death 4=Pregnant Within 43 days to 1 year of death 8=Not Applicable 9=Unknown or Not Stated

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

FEM_PREG_YN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 45 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

If female, was the decedent pregnant in the last year?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown X=Not applicable or not stated

Leave blank if decedent is male

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

INJURY_APT

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (6)

ITEM 49d NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Apartment number of address where injury occurred

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT**: No CHD EXTRACT: Yes

INJURY AT WORK

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 48

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Did the injury occur at work?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: Yes

INJURY CITY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 49b

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

City where injury occurred

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** No CHD EXTRACT: Yes

53

INJURY_COUNTRY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 49a NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Country where injury occurred

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

INJURY_COUNTRY_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: int (4)

ITEM 49a (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Country where injury occurred expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

INJURY DATE

DETAILS

TYPE: datetime (8)

ITEM 46 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Date of injury

CODE DEFINITION

MMDDYYYY

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

INJURY_DATE_MONTH

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM 46 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Month of injury

CODE DEFINITION

MM: 01-12 or 99

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

INJURY_DATE_DAY

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Day of injury

CODE DEFINITION

DD: 01-31 or 99

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

INJURY_DATE_YEAR

DETAILS

TYPE: char (4)

ITEM 46

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Year of injury

CODE DEFINITION

YYYY: Valid year or 9999

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

INJURY_TIME

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (4)

ITEM 47 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Time injury occurred

CODE DEFINITION

0000 - 2359 Universal Clock

9999 for Unknown

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

INJURY_HOW_OCCUR

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (240)

ITEM 50 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

How did the injury occur?

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

INJURY_LOCAT

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (75)

ITEM 49c NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Street address of injury

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

INJURY_PLACE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (50)

ITEM 51 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

DESCRIPTION

Place at which the injury occurred

CODE DEFINITION

As entered; 2005-current (see OLD_INJURY_PLACE_CODE for 1970-2004 codes)

Home; Farm; Residential Institution; Military Residence; Hospital; School, Other Institution, Administrative Area; Industrial & Construction; Garage/Warehouse; Trade and Service Area; Mine/Quarry; Street/Highway; Public Recreation Area;

Institutional Recreation Area; Sports & Recreation Area; Other

Building; Other Specified Place; Unspecified Place

INJURY_PLACE_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 51 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Place where the injury occurred expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

2005-current (see OLD_INJURY_PLACE_CODE for 1970-2004)
A=Home B=Farm C=Residential Institution D=Military
Residence E=Hospital F=School, Other Institution,
Administrative Area G=Industrial & Construction
H=Garage/Warehouse I=Trade and Service Area
J=Mine/Quarry K=Street/Highway L=Public Recreation Area
M=Institutional Recreation Area N=Sports & Recreation Area

O=Other Building P=Other Specified Place Q=Unspecified

Place

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

INJURY_STATE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 49a

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

State where the injury occurred

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

INJURY_STATE_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: int (4)

ITEM 49a (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

State where the injury occurred expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

INJURY TRANSPL

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 52a

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

If this is a transportation injury, state the status of the decedent

CODE DEFINITION

DRIVER/OPERATOR PASSENGER; PEDESTRIAN; OTHER SPECIFIED; UNKNOWN; NOT STATED

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

INJURY TRANSPL CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: int (4)

ITEM 52a (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

If this is a transportation injury, status of decedent expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

1=DRIVER/OPERATOR 2=PASSENGER 3=PEDESTRIAN 8=OTHER 9=NOT STATED or UNKNOWN

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

INJURY_VEHICLE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (50)

ITEM 52b NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Description of the type of vehicle involved in the injury

CODE DEFINITION

CAR/MINIVAN; SUV; MOTORCYCLE; PICKUP TRUCK/CARGO VAN; BUS; HEAVY TRANSPORT; OTHER SPECIFIED;

UNKNOWN

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

INJURY VEHICLE CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: int (4)

ITEM 52b (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Type of vehicle involved in the injury expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

1=CAR/MINIVAN 2=SUV 3=MOTORCYCLE 4=PICKUP TRUCK/CARGO VAN 5=BUS 6=HEAVY TRANSPORT 8=OTHER 9=NOT STATED or UNKNOWN NULL=NOT APPLICABLE

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

INJURY ZIP

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 49e

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

ZIP code of address where injury occurred

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

BODY_FOUND

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 3 & 8 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Was the body found?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

CERT_LICENSE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (20)

ITEM 34a

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Certifier's license number

CODE DEFINITION

Auto-populated

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

CERT NAME FML

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (130)

ITEM 34b NUMBER:

YEARS

1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Certifier's name (last, first, middle)

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

CERT_SIGN_DATE

DETAILS

TYPE: datetime (8)

ITEM 31b NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Date certifier signed death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

MMDDYYYY

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

CERT TITLE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 30

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Description of the certifier's title

CODE DEFINITION

Medical Examiner; Certifying Physician; Judge

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

CERT_TITLE_CD

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 30 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Certifier's title expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

1=Medical Examiner 2=Certifying Physician 3=Judge

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

CERT_STATE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 36a NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

State in which the certifier is located

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

CERT_COUNTRY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 36 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Country in which the certifier is located

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

CERT CITY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 36b

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

City in which the certifier is located

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

CERT_ADDR

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 36c NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Street address of the location of the certifier

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

CERT ZIP

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 36d

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

ZIP code of the location of the certifier

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

ATTEND_NAME_FML

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (130)

ITEM 35 NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Attendant's name (last, first, middle)

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

CORONER_CONTACTED

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 40 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Was the case reported to medical examiner due to cause of death?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

DIRECTOR_FLAG

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Director's flag

CODE DEFINITION
Administrative field

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

FINDINGS USED

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 42b

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Were autopsy findings used to determine the cause of death?

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown X=Not Applicable

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

INDUSTRY_LIT

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (50)

ITEM 15b NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Description of the kind of business/industry in which the

decedent worked

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

INFORMANT REL CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 22b (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Informant's relationship to the decedent expressed as a code

value

CODE DEFINITION

NULL; no code values are generated

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

INFORMANT_RELATION

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (50)

ITEM 22b

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Description of informant's relationship to decedent

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

INFORMANT_STATE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 23a NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Informant's mailing address state

CODE DEFINITION

NULL

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

INFORMANT_COUNTRY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 23 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Informant's mailing address country

CODE DEFINITION

NULL

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

INFORMANT CITY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 23b NUMBER:

TOMBLIX.

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Informant's mailing address city

CODE DEFINITION

NULL

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

INFORMANT_ADDRESS

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 23c NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Informant's mailing street address

CODE DEFINITION

NULL

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

INFORMANT ZIP

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 23d

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Informant's mailing zip code

CODE DEFINITION

NULL

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

INFORMANT_NAME_F

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 22a

NUMBER:

YEARS 2011 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Informant's first name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

INFORMANT_NAME_M

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 22a NUMBER:

YEARS 2011 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Informant's middle name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

INFORMANT_NAME_L

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 22a

NUMBER:

YEARS 2011 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Informant's last name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

INFORMANT NAME SUF

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (6)

ITEM 22a

NUMBER:

YEARS 2011 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Informant's name suffix

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DISPOSE_NAME

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (75)

ITEM 24 NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Place of disposition

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

DISPOSE STATE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 25a

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

State of disposition

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

DISPOSE_COUNTRY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2011 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Country of disposition

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DISPOSE_CITY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM 25b

NUMBER:

YEARS 2011 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

City of disposition

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

FUNDIR NAME FML

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (130)

ITEM 27b

NUMBER:

YEARS 2011 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Funeral director's first, middle, and last name

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

LINK BIR COUNTRY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Linked country of birth

CODE DEFINITION

(from Birth Certificate)

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

LINK_BIR_COUNTRY_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)
ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Linked country of birth expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

(from Birth Certificate)

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: No

LINK BIR DOB

DETAILS

TYPE: datetime (8)

ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Linked date of birth

CODE DEFINITION

(from Birth Certificate)
MMDDYYYY

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

LINK BIR DOB MONTH

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (2)

ITEM system NUMBER:

YEARS

2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Linked month of birth

CODE DEFINITION

(from Birth Certificate) MM: 01-12 or 99

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

LINK_BIR_DOB_DAY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (2)

ITEM system NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Linked day of birth

CODE DEFINITION

(from Birth Certificate) DD: 01-31 or 99

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

LINK_BIR_DOB_YEAR

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (4)
ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Linked year of birth

CODE DEFINITION

(from Birth Certificate) YYYY: Valid year or 9999

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

LINK BIR STATE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Linked state of birth

CODE DEFINITION

(from Birth Certificate)

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

72

LINK_BIR_STATE_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: int (4) ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Linked state of birth expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

(from Birth Certificate)

Refer to the City, County, State, & Country reference table

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: No

CREATE DATE

DETAILS

TYPE: datetime (8) ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Date record was created

CODE DEFINITION

MMDDYYYY

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** No CHD EXTRACT: No

CREATE DATE2

DETAILS

TYPE: datetime (8) system

ITEM NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Date that cause of death and subsequent tabs are entered

CODE DEFINITION

Administrative field **MMDDYYYY**

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

MODIFY_DATE

DETAILS

TYPE: datetime (8)

ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Date file modified

CODE DEFINITION

MMDDYYYY

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

REGISTRAR_DATE

DETAILS

TYPE: datetime (8)

ITEM 38b

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Date Registrar signed death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

MMDDYYYY

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

OCCUPAT LIT

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (50)

ITEM 15a

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Description of decedent's usual occupation

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

PENDING

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 1, 39, 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Records flagged as pending Death Replacements (Pending

Cause of Death)

CODE DEFINITION

Administrative field

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

POST REG STATUS

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (40)

ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Literal description of post registration status

CODE DEFINITION

Administrative field

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

RECORD_STATUS

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (30)

ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Literal description of record status

CODE DEFINITION

Administrative field

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

REG_TYPE_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Registration type expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

Administrative field

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

SOURCE SFN

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (10)
ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Source State file number (on out of state screen only)

CODE DEFINITION

Administrative field

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

STATE FILE DATE

DETAILS

TYPE: datetime (8)

ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Date when file is registered/completed

CODE DEFINITION

MMDDYYYY

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

OLD_EDUCATION_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM on previous version

NUMBER:

YEARS prior to 2005

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

(field no longer in use but contains data for earlier years) Education attainment expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

00=None or Preschool/Kindergarten

01-12=Elementary/Secondary as indicated 13=1 Year of College 14=2 Years of College 15=3 Years of College 16=4 Years of College 17=5 or More Years of College 99=Unknown or Not Classifiable

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

OLD INJURY COUNTY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (2)

ITEM on previous version

NUMBER:

YEARS prior to 2005

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

(field no longer in use but contains data for earlier years) County of injury expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

11-77 for Florida counties (residence state=10)

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

OLD_INJURY_CITY

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM on previous version

NUMBER:

YEARS 1970 - 2004

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

(field no longer in use but contains data for earlier years) City of injury expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

00-99 for cities in Florida

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

OLD_INJURY_PLACE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM on previous version

NUMBER:

YEARS 1970 - 2004

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

(field no longer in use but contains data for earlier years) Place of injury expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

0=Home 1=Farm 2=Mine/Quarry 3=Industrial Place 4=Place for Recreation or Sport 5=Street/Highway 6=Public Building 7=Resident Institution 8=Other Specified Place 9=Unspecified Place or Unknown BLANK=Not Applicable

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: No

OLD MANNER OF DEATH

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM on previous version

NUMBER:

YEARS 1970 - 2004

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

(field no longer in use but contains data for earlier years) Manner of death expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

1=Accident 2=Suicide 3=Homicide 4=Undetermined 5=Pending 6=Self-Inflicted 7=Natural BLANK=Not Classifiable

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

OLD TYPE OF PLACE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM on previous version

NUMBER:

YEARS 1970 - 2004

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

(field no longer in use but contains data for earlier years) Type of place of death expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

1970-2004: 1=Hospital: Inpatient 2=Hospital: Outpatient/ER 3=Hospital: DOA 4=Hospital: Status Unknown 5=Nursing Home 8=Other Specified 9=Not Classifiable/Unknown;

1970-1986: 6=Other Institute 7=Other Institute 1987-2004: 6=Residence 7=Other Specified Place

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

OLD_RES_CITY_CODE

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM on previous version

NUMBER:

YEARS 1970 - 2004

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

(field no longer in use but contains data for earlier years) City of residence expressed as a code value

CODE DEFINITION

00-99 for cities in Florida

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

COMPUTED AGE

DETAILS

TYPE: smallint (2)

ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Age of decedent expressed in whole years

CODE DEFINITION

0-135

Decedents under the age of 1 year old are coded to age 0

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: No

INFANT DEATH TYPE

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 4b & 4c (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Defines whether an infant died during the neonatal (first month after birth) or postneonatal (end of the first month to one year after birth) period

CODE DEFINITION

N=Neonatal P=Postneonatal

BLANK or NULL=Without cause of death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

RECODE_DEATH_GROUP

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (3)

ITEM NUMBER: 41 (generated)

YEARS

2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

The List of 113 Selected Causes of Death codes expressed as ICD-10 codes

CODE DEFINITION

ICD-10 codes for causes of death;

For a full listing of codes by cause of death, visit http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/data/dvs/im9_2002.pdf.pdf

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

CHDRESCOUNTY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (2)

ITEM 12b (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Decedent's county of residence expressed as a code value as in other DOH systems

CODE DEFINITION

01-67, 99

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ACME1

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER: YEARS

1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed first on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes;

See ICD CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

NUMBER:

41 (generated)

YEARS

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed second on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes; See ICD CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ACME3

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed third on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes; See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ACME4

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generate

NUMBER:

41 (generated)

YEARS

1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed fourth on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes; See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed fifth on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ACME6

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed sixth on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes; See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ACME7

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed seventh on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes; See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

CODE DEFINITION

DESCRIPTION

death certificate

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed eighth on the

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ACME9

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed ninth on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ACME10

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed tenth on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed eleventh on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ACME12

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed twelfth on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes; See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ACME13

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed thirteenth on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed fourteenth on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

DESCRIPTION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ACME15

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed fifteenth on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes; See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ACME16

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed sixteenth on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed seventeenth on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes; See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ACME18

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed eighteenth on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes; See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ACME19

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed nineteenth on the death certificate

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (7)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

CODE DEFINITION

death certificate

DESCRIPTION

Format of each seven-character code: Digit(s): (1) line number reported on, (2) order within line, (3)-(6) four-character ICD number (7) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD 8/9 to distinguish between external and nature of injury codes;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

Automated Classification of Medical Entities (ACME) Series: Immediate or contributing cause of death listed twentieth on the

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TRANSAX1

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank-may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9; The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields; See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TRANSAX2

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9;

The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields:

See ICD CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) fourcharacter ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9; The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TRANSAX4

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5) ITEM

NUMBER:

41 (generated)

YEARS

1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) fourcharacter ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9; The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TRANSAX5

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9;

The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9; The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TRANSAX7

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank-may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9; The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TRANSAX8

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9;

The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9; The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TRANSAX10

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9; The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TRANSAX11

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9;

The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9; The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TRANSAX13

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank-may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9; The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TRANSAX14

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9;

The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9; The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TRANSAX16

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS

1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9; The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TRANSAX17

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9;

The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9; The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TRANSAX19

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank-may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9; The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD_CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: Yes
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TRANSAX20

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (5)

ITEM 41 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 1994 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Translation of Axis (TRANSAX) Series: Immediate and contributing causes of death reordered in the record and entity axis sequence of events leading to death.

CODE DEFINITION

Format of each five-character code: Digit(s): (1)-(4) four-character ICD number, (5) blank--may be 1 or 0 in ICD8/9;

The source of this data is the twenty ACME fields;

See ICD CODE field for Underlying Cause of Death

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

CALCULATEDRACE

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM 17 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Combines the 16 separate race fields into one coded field

CODE DEFINITION

01=White 02=Black 03=American Indian 04=Chinese 05=Japanese 06=Hawaiian 07=Filipino 08=Korean 09=Other Races 10=Vietnamese 11=Asian Indian 12=Asian Other 13=Guam 14=Samoan 15=Pacific Islander 20=More than One Race 99=Unknown

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: Yes

CALCULATEDHISP

DETAILS

TYPE: char (2)

ITEM 16 (generated)

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Combines the 8 separate ethnicity fields into one coded field

CODE DEFINITION

00=Not Hispanic or Not Haitian 01=Mexican 02=Puerto Rican 03=Cuban 05=Other and Unknown Hispanic 06=Haitian 99=Not Classifiable

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** Yes CHD EXTRACT: Yes

SYS DATELOADED

DETAILS

TYPE: datetime (8)

ITEM **NUMBER:**

system

YEARS 2005 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

system generated

CODE DEFINITION

MMDDYYYY

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

SYS_DATEUPDATED

DETAILS

TYPE: datetime (8)

ITEM system

NUMBER:

YEARS 2005 - CURRENT

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

system generated

CODE DEFINITION

MMDDYYYY

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** No CHD EXTRACT: Yes

MOTHER NAME SUFFIX

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (6)

ITEM 21

NUMBER:

YEARS 2016 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

The decedent's mother's/parent's name suffix

CODE DEFINITION

As entered

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes **DEATHSTAT:** No CHD EXTRACT: Yes

TIME FOUND

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 32 **NUMBER:**

YEARS 2003 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Marked if Time of Death was based on when body was found

Y=Yes N=No

CODE DEFINITION

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

INJURY_FOUND

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 46-47

NUMBER:

YEARS 2017 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Was the injury based on Found date and time

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes
DEATHSTAT: No
CHD EXTRACT: Yes

ARMY_IS_SVC_REL_DISABILITY

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (1)

ITEM 19b

NUMBER:

YEARS 2004 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

If Army_YesNo (Veteran) = Y, did a service-related disability

contribute to the veteran's death

CODE DEFINITION

Y=Yes N=No U=Unknown

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes

DEATHSTAT: No **CHD EXTRACT:** Yes

MODIFY USER NAME

DETAILS

TYPE: varchar (20)

ITEM System generated

NUMBER:

YEARS 2001 - current

COLLECTED:

DESCRIPTION

Name of person who last updated record

CODE DEFINITION

Administration field

FIELD IS AVAILABLE IN...

DEATHMASTER: Yes

DEATHSTAT: No

CHD EXTRACT: No

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE									
COUNTRY NAME	COUNTRY CODE	STATE/PROVINCE/ TERRITORY ABBREVIATION	STATE/PROVINCE NAME	STATE CODE	COUNTY NAME	COUNTY CODE	CHD COUNTY CODE	CITY NAME	CITY CODE
UNITED STATES	76	AL	ALABAMA	1					
UNITED STATES	76	AK	ALASKA	2					
UNITED STATES	76	AZ	ARIZONA	3					
UNITED STATES	76	AR	ARKANSAS	4					
UNITED STATES	76	CA	CALIFORNIA	5					
UNITED STATES	76	СО	COLORADO	6					
UNITED STATES	76	СТ	CONNECTICUT	7					
UNITED STATES	76	DE	DELAWARE	8					
UNITED STATES	76	DC	DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA	9					
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	ALACHUA	11	01	ALACHUA	02
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	ALACHUA	11	01	GAINESVILLE	04
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	ALACHUA	11	01	HIGH SPRINGS	08
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	ALACHUA	11	01	NEWBERRY	14
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	ALACHUA	11	01	SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE	98
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	ALACHUA	11	01	BALANCE OF COUNTY	99
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BAKER	12	02	MACCLENNY	02
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BAKER	12	02	SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE	98
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BAKER	12	02	BALANCE OF COUNTY	99
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BAY	13	03	CALLAWAY	02
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BAY	13	03	CEDAR GROVE	03
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BAY	13	03	LYNN HAVEN	04
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BAY	13	03	PANAMA CITY BEACH	05
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BAY	13	03	PANAMA CITY	06
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BAY	13	03	PARKER	07
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BAY	13	03	SPRINGFIELD	08
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BAY	13	03	SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE	98
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BAY	13	03	BALANCE OF COUNTY	99
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BRADFORD	14	04	STARKE	02
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BRADFORD	14	04	SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE	98
UNITED STATES	76	FL	FLORIDA	10	BRADFORD	14	04	BALANCE OF COUNTY	99

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE **CHD** STATE/PROVINCE/ STATE/PROVINCE STATE COUNTY COUNTY **CITY TERRITORY ABBREVIATION** CODE **COUNTY NAME** CODE CODE **COUNTRY NAME COUNTRY CODE** NAME CODE **CITY NAME** FL **FLORIDA** 15 **UNITED STATES** 76 10 **BREVARD** 05 CAPE CANAVERAL 01 76 FL **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 **BREVARD** 15 05 COCOA 02 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BREVARD** 15 05 COCOA BEACH 03 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **BREVARD** 15 05 **INDIALANTIC** 05 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA BREVARD** 15 05 **MELBOURNE** 06 10 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA BREVARD** 15 05 07 10 PALM BAY UNITED STATES 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **BREVARD** 15 05 **ROCKLEDGE** 08 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 05 09 10 **BREVARD** 15 SATELLITE BEACH FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BREVARD** 15 05 **TITUSVILLE** 10 UNITED STATES FL **FLORIDA BREVARD** 76 10 15 05 MELBOURNE BEACH 11 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BREVARD** 15 05 WEST MELBOURNE 12 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 FI ORIDA 10 **BREVARD** 15 05 INDIAN HARBOUR BEACH 13 **UNITED STATES** FL **FLORIDA** 76 10 **BREVARD** 15 05 **MALABAR** 14 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BREVARD** 15 05 **GRANT-VALKARIA** 16 FI **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BREVARD** 15 05 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BREVARD** 15 05 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 06 COOPER CITY 10 **BROWARD** 16 01 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 DANIA BEACH 02 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 **CORAL SPRINGS** 03 76 FL **FLORIDA** 06 **UNITED STATES** 10 **BROWARD** 16 **DEERFIELD BEACH** 04 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 DAVIE 05 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** FORT LAUDERDALE 06 16 06 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA BROWARD** 06 LAUDERDALE BY THE SEA 07 10 16 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 **HALLANDALE** 08 76 FL **FLORIDA** LAUDERHILL **UNITED STATES** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 09 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 **HOLLYWOOD** 10 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD MARGATE** 16 06 11 FL 12 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 **MIRAMAR** UNITED STATES 76 FI FI ORIDA 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 OAKLAND PARK 13 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 **PLANTATION** 14 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 PEMBROKE PINES 15

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE CHD STATE/PROVINCE/ STATE/PROVINCE STATE COUNTY COUNTY **CITY TERRITORY ABBREVIATION** CODE **COUNTY NAME** CODE CODE **COUNTRY NAME COUNTRY CODE** NAME CODE **CITY NAME** FL **FLORIDA** 16 **UNITED STATES** 76 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 POMPANO BEACH FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 NORTH LAUDERDALE 17 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 SUNRISE 18 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 **TAMARAC** 19 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA BROWARD** 06 20 10 16 **WILTON MANORS** FL 76 **FLORIDA** 06 LAUDERDALE LAKES 21 UNITED STATES 10 **BROWARD** 16 UNITED STATES 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 LIGHTHOUSE POINT 22 76 FL **FLORIDA** 06 23 **UNITED STATES** 10 **BROWARD** 16 PEMBROKE PARK FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 COCONUT CREEK 24 **UNITED STATES** FL **FLORIDA BROWARD** 76 10 16 06 **PARKLAND** 25 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 WESTON 26 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 FI ORIDA 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 SOUTHWEST RANCHES 27 **UNITED STATES** FL 29 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 **WEST PARK** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **BROWARD** 16 06 BALANCE OF COUNTY 99 FL **BLOUNTSTOWN UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **CALHOUN** 17 07 02 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA CALHOUN** 17 07 98 10 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **CALHOUN** 17 07 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 CHARLOTTE 18 08 **PUNTA GORDA** 02 76 FL 80 **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 CHARLOTTE 18 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **CHARLOTTE** 18 08 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **CITRUS** 09 19 **CRYSTAL RIVER** 01 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA CITRUS** 09 **INVERNESS** 10 19 04 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **CITRUS** 19 09 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 76 FL **FLORIDA CITRUS** 09 99 **UNITED STATES** 10 19 BALANCE OF COUNTY FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **CLAY** 20 10 **GREEN COVE SPRINGS** 02 **UNITED STATES** FL **FLORIDA** 10 20 04 76 CLAY 10 **ORANGE PARK** FL 20 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 CLAY 10 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 UNITED STATES 76 FI FI ORIDA 10 CI AY 20 10 BALANCE OF COUNTY 99 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 COLLIER 21 11 MARCO ISLAND 01 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **COLLIER** 21 11 **NAPLES** 02

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE CHD STATE/PROVINCE/ STATE/PROVINCE STATE COUNTY COUNTY **CITY TERRITORY COUNTRY NAME ABBREVIATION** CODE **COUNTY NAME** CODE **CITY NAME** CODE **COUNTRY CODE** NAME CODE FL **FLORIDA** 21 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 10 **COLLIER** 11 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 76 FL **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 COLLIER 21 11 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL 22 02 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **COLUMBIA** 12 LAKE CITY **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **COLUMBIA** 22 12 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **COLUMBIA** 22 12 BALANCE OF COUNTY 99 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 23 13 **BAL HARBOUR** 10 MIAMI-DADE 01 UNITED STATES 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 **BAY HARBOR ISLANDS** 02 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 23 03 MIAMI-DADE 13 **AVENTURA** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 **BISCAYNE PARK** 04 **UNITED STATES** FL **FLORIDA** MIAMI-DADE 23 **CORAL GABLES** 76 10 13 06 FL MIAMI-DADE 23 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 13 **EL PORTAL** 08 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 FI ORIDA 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 FLORIDA CITY 10 **UNITED STATES** FL MIAMI-DADE 23 76 **FLORIDA** 10 13 HIALEAH 12 FL 23 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 13 HIALEAH GARDENS 13 FL 23 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 13 **HOMESTEAD** 14 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 KEY BISCAYNE 15 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 23 13 16 10 MIAMI-DADE MIAMI FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 MIAMI BEACH 18 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 MIAMI SHORES 20 76 FL 23 22 **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 13 MIAMI SPRINGS FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 NORTH BAY VILLAGE 23 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 24 13 **NORTH MIAMI** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** MIAMI-DADE 23 13 NORTH MIAMI BEACH 26 10 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 **OPA-LOCKA** 28 76 FL **FLORIDA** 23 30 **UNITED STATES** 10 MIAMI-DADE 13 **PINECREST** FL 32 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 SOUTH MIAMI **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 33 13 SUNNY ISLES BEACH FL 23 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 13 **SURFSIDE** 34 UNITED STATES 76 FI FI ORIDA 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 SWFFTWATER 35 FL 23 13 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE VIRGINIA GARDENS 36 FL 23 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 13 WEST MIAMI 38

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE CHD STATE/PROVINCE/ STATE/PROVINCE STATE COUNTY COUNTY **CITY TERRITORY ABBREVIATION** CODE **COUNTY NAME** CODE CODE **COUNTRY NAME COUNTRY CODE** NAME CODE **CITY NAME** FL **FLORIDA** MIAMI LAKES 40 **UNITED STATES** 76 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 PALMETTO BAY 42 FL 23 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 13 MIAMI GARDENS 44 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 **DORAL** 46 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 **CUTLER BAY** 48 FL 76 **FLORIDA** MIAMI-DADE 23 13 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE UNITED STATES 10 98 UNITED STATES 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 MIAMI-DADE 23 13 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 24 02 10 **DESOTO** 14 **ARCADIA** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **DESOTO** 24 14 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 UNITED STATES FL **FLORIDA DESOTO** 24 76 10 14 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL 25 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 DIXIE 15 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 FI ORIDA 10 DIXIF 25 15 BALANCE OF COUNTY 99 **UNITED STATES** FL 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **DUVAL** 26 16 ATLANTIC BEACH 02 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **DUVAL** 26 16 **BALDWIN** 04 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **DUVAL** 26 16 JACKSONVILLE 08 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **DUVAL** 26 16 JACKSONVILLE BEACH 10 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 26 12 10 **DUVAL** 16 NEPTUNE BEACH FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **DUVAL** 26 16 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **DUVAL** 26 16 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 76 FL 27 **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 **ESCAMBIA** 17 **CENTURY** 03 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **ESCAMBIA** 27 17 **PENSACOLA** 08 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **ESCAMBIA** 27 17 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL 27 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA ESCAMBIA** 17 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 10 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **FLAGLER** 28 18 FLAGLER BEACH 01 76 FL **FLORIDA** 28 **UNITED STATES** 10 **FLAGLER** 18 PALM COAST 03 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **FLAGLER** 28 18 **BUNNELL** 05 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 28 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE **FLAGLER** 18 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **FLAGLER** 28 18 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 UNITED STATES 76 FI FI ORIDA 10 **FRANKLIN** 29 19 **APALACHICOLA** 02 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **FRANKLIN** 29 19 **CARRABELLE** 04 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **FRANKLIN** 29 19 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE **CHD** STATE/PROVINCE/ STATE/PROVINCE STATE COUNTY COUNTY **CITY TERRITORY ABBREVIATION** CODE **COUNTY NAME** CODE CODE **COUNTRY NAME COUNTRY CODE** NAME CODE **CITY NAME** FL 29 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **FRANKLIN** 19 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **GADSDEN** 30 20 **MIDWAY** 01 FL 02 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 GADSDEN 30 20 CHATTAHOOCHEE **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **GADSDEN** 30 20 **GRETNA** 03 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **GADSDEN** 30 20 04 **HAVANA** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA GADSDEN** 30 20 QUINCY 10 06 UNITED STATES 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **GADSDEN** 30 20 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 30 20 99 **UNITED STATES GADSDEN** BALANCE OF COUNTY FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **GILCHRIST** 31 21 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 **UNITED STATES** FL **FLORIDA GILCHRIST** 21 76 10 31 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL 32 22 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **GLADES** 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 FI ORIDA 10 **GLADES** 32 22 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL **GULF UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 33 23 PORT ST JOE 02 FL 23 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **GULF** 33 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **GUIF** 33 23 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **HAMILTON** 34 24 **JASPER** 01 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 98 10 **HAMILTON** 34 24 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **HAMILTON** 34 24 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 HARDEE 35 25 **BOWLING GREEN** 01 76 FL 35 25 **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 HARDEE WAUCHULA 02 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 HARDEE 35 25 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **HARDEE** 35 25 99 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 36 26 **CLEWISTON** 02 10 HENDRY **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **HENDRY** 36 26 **LABELLE** 03 76 FL **FLORIDA** 36 26 **UNITED STATES** 10 **HENDRY** SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **HENDRY** 36 26 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 **UNITED STATES** FL **FLORIDA** 10 **HERNANDO** 27 02 76 37 **BROOKSVILLE** FL SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **HERNANDO** 37 27 98 UNITED STATES 76 FI FI ORIDA 10 **HFRNANDO** 37 27 BALANCE OF COUNTY 99 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **HIGHLANDS** 38 28 **AVON PARK** 02 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **HIGHLANDS** 38 28 **SEBRING** 04

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE CHD STATE/PROVINCE/ STATE/PROVINCE STATE COUNTY COUNTY **CITY TERRITORY ABBREVIATION** CODE **COUNTY NAME** CODE CODE **COUNTRY NAME COUNTRY CODE** NAME CODE **CITY NAME** FL **FLORIDA** 38 06 **UNITED STATES** 76 10 **HIGHLANDS** 28 LAKE PLACID 76 FL **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 **HIGHLANDS** 38 28 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL 38 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **HIGHLANDS** 28 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 HILLSBOROUGH 39 29 PLANT CITY 02 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 39 29 **TAMPA** 06 HILLSBOROUGH FL 76 **FLORIDA** 39 29 TEMPLE TERRACE UNITED STATES 10 HILLSBOROUGH 80 UNITED STATES 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 HILLSBOROUGH 39 29 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 39 29 99 10 HILLSBOROUGH **BALANCE OF COUNTY** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **HOLMES** 40 30 **BONIFAY** 01 UNITED STATES FL **FLORIDA HOLMES** 30 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 76 10 40 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **HOLMES** 40 30 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL UNITED STATES 76 FI ORIDA 10 INDIAN RIVER 41 31 **FFLLSMFRF** 01 **UNITED STATES** FL 31 76 **FLORIDA** 10 INDIAN RIVER 41 INDIAN RIVER SHORES 02 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 INDIAN RIVER 41 31 **SEBASTIAN** 03 FI **UNITED STATES** 76 FI ORIDA 10 INDIAN RIVER 41 31 **VERO BEACH** 04 FL SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 INDIAN RIVER 41 31 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 99 10 INDIAN RIVER 41 31 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **JACKSON** 42 32 **GRACEVILLE** 02 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **JACKSON** 42 32 **MARIANNA** 04 76 FL 32 **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 **JACKSON** 42 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **JACKSON** 42 32 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 43 33 MONTICELLO 02 **JEFFERSON** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA JEFFERSON** 43 33 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 10 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **JEFFERSON** 43 33 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 76 FL **FLORIDA** 34 **UNITED STATES** 10 LAFAYETTE 44 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 LAFAYETTE 44 34 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 LAKE CLERMONT 02 45 35 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 LAKE 45 35 **EUSTIS** 04 UNITED STATES 76 FI FI ORIDA 10 I AKF 45 35 **GROVELAND** 05 FL LAKE **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 45 35 FRUITLAND PARK 06 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 LAKE 45 35 LADY LAKE 07

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE **CHD** STATE/PROVINCE/ STATE/PROVINCE STATE COUNTY COUNTY **CITY TERRITORY ABBREVIATION** CODE **COUNTY NAME** CODE CODE **COUNTRY NAME COUNTRY CODE** NAME CODE **CITY NAME** FL **FLORIDA** 45 **LEESBURG** 80 **UNITED STATES** 76 10 LAKE 35 76 FL **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 LAKE 45 35 MASCOTTE 09 FL LAKE **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 45 35 MOUNT DORA 10 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 LAKE 45 35 **MINNEOLA** 11 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** LAKE 45 35 **TAVARES** 12 10 FL LAKE 76 **FLORIDA** 45 35 **UMATILLA** UNITED STATES 10 14 UNITED STATES 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 LAKE 45 35 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** LAKE 45 35 99 10 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 LEE 46 36 CAPE CORAL 01 **UNITED STATES** FL **FLORIDA** FORT MYERS 76 10 LEE 46 36 02 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 LEE 46 36 SANIBEL 03 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 FI ORIDA 10 I FF 46 36 FORT MYERS BEACH 04 **UNITED STATES** FL 76 **FLORIDA** 10 LEE 46 36 **BONITA SPRINGS** 05 FL LFF **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 46 36 **ESTERO** 07 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 I FF 46 36 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 LEE 46 36 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 47 10 **LEON** 37 **TALLAHASSEE** 04 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **LEON** 47 37 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **LEON** 47 37 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 76 FL 38 **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 **LEVY** 48 WILLISTON 10 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **LEVY** 48 38 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 48 38 99 10 **LEVY** BALANCE OF COUNTY FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** LIBERTY 49 10 39 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 LIBERTY 49 39 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 76 FL **FLORIDA UNITED STATES** 10 **MADISON** 50 40 **MADISON** 04 FL SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **MADISON** 50 40 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **MADISON** 50 40 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MANATEE 51 41 **BRADENTON BEACH** 01 UNITED STATES 76 FI FI ORIDA 10 MANATEF 51 41 BRADENTON 02 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MANATEE 51 41 HOLMES BEACH 03 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MANATEE 51 41 LONGBOAT KEY 05

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE CHD STATE/PROVINCE/ STATE/PROVINCE STATE COUNTY COUNTY **CITY TERRITORY** CODE **COUNTY NAME** CODE CODE **COUNTRY NAME COUNTRY CODE ABBREVIATION** NAME CODE **CITY NAME** FL 51 06 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MANATEE 41 **PALMETTO** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MANATEE 51 41 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MANATEE 51 41 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 MARION 52 42 **BELLEVIEW** 02 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 52 42 **OCALA** 04 10 MARION FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** MARION 52 42 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 10 98 UNITED STATES 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 MARION 52 42 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 76 FL **FLORIDA** 53 43 **UNITED STATES** 10 MARTIN INDIANTOWN 01 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MARTIN 53 43 **STUART** 02 UNITED STATES FL **FLORIDA** 53 76 10 MARTIN 43 PORT ST LUCIE 03 FL SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MARTIN 53 43 98 FL UNITED STATES 76 FI ORIDA 10 MARTIN 53 43 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MONROE 54 44 **KEY WEST** 02 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MONROE 54 44 **ISLAMORADA** 04 FI **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MONROE 54 44 **MARATHON** 06 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 MONROE 54 44 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 54 99 10 MONROE 44 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 NASSAU 55 45 FERNANDINA BEACH 02 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 NASSAU 55 45 **HILLIARD** 04 76 FL 55 **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 NASSAU 45 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 NASSAU 55 45 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **OKALOOSA** 56 **CRESTVIEW** 46 02 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA OKALOOSA** 56 DESTIN 04 10 46 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **OKALOOSA** 56 46 FORT WALTON BEACH 06 76 FL **FLORIDA** 07 **UNITED STATES** 10 **OKALOOSA** 56 46 MARY ESTHER FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **OKALOOSA** 56 46 **NICEVILLE** 80 **UNITED STATES** FL **FLORIDA** 10 76 **OKALOOSA** 56 46 **VALPARAISO** 10 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **OKALOOSA** 56 46 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 UNITED STATES 76 FI FI ORIDA 10 OKAL OOSA 56 46 BALANCE OF COUNTY 99 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **OKEECHOBEE** 57 47 **OKEECHOBEE** 02 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **OKEECHOBEE** 57 47 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE **CHD** STATE/PROVINCE/ STATE/PROVINCE STATE COUNTY COUNTY **CITY TERRITORY ABBREVIATION** CODE **COUNTY NAME** CODE CODE **COUNTRY NAME COUNTRY CODE** NAME CODE **CITY NAME** FL **FLORIDA** 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 10 **OKEECHOBEE** 57 47 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 76 FL **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 **ORANGE** 58 48 **APOPKA** 02 FL 58 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **ORANGE** BELLE ISLE 03 48 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **ORANGE** 58 48 **MAITLAND** 04 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **ORANGE** 58 **EATONVILLE** 05 48 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA ORANGE** 58 OCOEE 06 10 48 UNITED STATES 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **ORANGE** 58 48 ORI ANDO 08 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 10 **ORANGE** 58 48 WINTER GARDEN FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **ORANGE** 58 48 WINTER PARK 12 UNITED STATES FL **FLORIDA ORANGE WINDERMERE** 76 10 58 48 14 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **ORANGE** 58 48 **EDGEWOOD** 16 FL UNITED STATES 76 FI ORIDA 10 **ORANGE** 58 48 OAKLAND 17 **UNITED STATES** FL **FLORIDA ORANGE** SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 76 10 58 48 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **ORANGE** 58 48 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FI **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **OSCEOLA** 59 49 KISSIMMFF 02 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **OSCEOLA** 59 49 ST CLOUD 04 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA OSCEOLA** 59 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 10 49 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **OSCEOLA** 59 49 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 **GREENACRES** 01 76 FL **FLORIDA** 50 02 **UNITED STATES** 10 PALM BEACH 60 **BELLE GLADE** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 **JUPITER** 03 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 60 50 LAKE CLARKE SHORES 04 PALM BEACH FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 60 50 HIGHLAND BEACH 05 10 PALM BEACH **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 **BOCA RATON** 06 76 FL **FLORIDA** PALM BEACH GARDENS **UNITED STATES** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 07 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 **BOYNTON BEACH** 08 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **SOUTH BAY** 09 PALM BEACH 60 50 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 **TEQUESTA** 10 UNITED STATES 76 FI FI ORIDA 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 ROYAL PALM BEACH 11 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 JUNO BEACH 12 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 **DELRAY BEACH** 14

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE **CHD** STATE/PROVINCE/ STATE/PROVINCE STATE COUNTY COUNTY **CITY TERRITORY COUNTRY NAME ABBREVIATION** CODE **COUNTY NAME** CODE CODE **COUNTRY CODE** NAME CODE **CITY NAME** FL **FLORIDA** LAKE PARK 15 **UNITED STATES** 76 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 76 FL **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 LAKE WORTH 16 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 LANTANA 18 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 NORTH PALM BEACH 19 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 60 PAHOKEE 20 PALM BEACH 50 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 50 22 10 PALM BEACH 60 PALM BEACH UNITED STATES 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 PALM SPRINGS 23 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 50 24 10 PALM BEACH 60 RIVIERA BEACH FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 WELLINGTON 28 UNITED STATES FL **FLORIDA** WEST PALM BEACH 30 76 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 FL 32 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 **HYPOLUXO** FL UNITED STATES 76 FI ORIDA 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 MANGONIA PARK 34 **UNITED STATES** FL **FLORIDA** 76 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 36 FL 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE FI **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 PALM BEACH 60 50 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL **PASCO UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 61 51 DADE CITY 02 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA PASCO** 61 51 06 10 **NEW PORT RICHEY** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **PASCO** 61 51 PORT RICHEY 07 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **PASCO** 61 51 **ZEPHYRHILLS** 08 76 FL **FLORIDA** 61 51 **UNITED STATES** 10 **PASCO** SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **PASCO** 61 51 BALANCE OF COUNTY 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **PINELLAS** 62 52 INDIAN ROCKS BEACH 01 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA PINELLAS** 62 52 02 10 **BELLEAIR UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **PINELLAS** 62 52 KENNETH CITY 03 76 FL **FLORIDA PINELLAS** 62 52 **UNITED STATES** 10 **CLEARWATER** 04 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **PINELLAS** 62 52 SAFETY HARBOR 05 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **PINELLAS** 62 52 DUNEDIN 06 FL **FLORIDA UNITED STATES** 76 10 **PINELLAS** 62 52 **SEMINOLE** 07 UNITED STATES 76 FI FI ORIDA 10 **PINFLLAS** 62 52 GUI FPORT 08 FL 62 52 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **PINELLAS** SOUTH PASADENA 09 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **PINELLAS** 62 52 **LARGO** 10

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE **CHD** STATE/PROVINCE/ STATE/PROVINCE STATE COUNTY COUNTY **CITY TERRITORY ABBREVIATION** CODE **COUNTY NAME** CODE CODE **COUNTRY NAME COUNTRY CODE** NAME CODE **CITY NAME** FL **FLORIDA** 62 **BELLEAIR BLUFFS UNITED STATES** 76 10 **PINELLAS** 52 11 76 FL **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 **PINELLAS** 62 52 MADEIRA BEACH 12 FL 13 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **PINELLAS** 62 52 **OLDSMAR UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **PINELLAS** 62 52 PINELLAS PARK 14 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 62 52 REDINGTON SHORES 15 10 **PINELLAS** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA PINELLAS** 62 52 ST PETERSBURG 10 16 UNITED STATES 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **PINELLAS** 62 52 ST PETERSBURG BEACH 17 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 62 52 **TARPON SPRINGS** 18 10 **PINELLAS** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **PINELLAS** 62 52 TREASURE ISLAND 20 UNITED STATES FL **FLORIDA PINELLAS** 62 52 76 10 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **PINELLAS** 62 52 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 FI ORIDA 10 POI K 63 53 AUBURNDALE 02 **UNITED STATES** FL **FLORIDA POLK** 76 10 63 53 **BARTOW** 04 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **POLK** 63 53 DUNDEF 07 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **POLK** 63 53 **EAGLE LAKE** 09 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **POLK** 63 53 FORT MEADE 10 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA POLK** 63 53 12 10 **FROSTPROOF** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **POLK** 63 53 HAINES CITY 14 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **POLK** 63 53 LAKE ALFRED 16 76 FL **FLORIDA** 53 **UNITED STATES** 10 **POLK** 63 LAKELAND 18 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **POLK** 63 53 LAKE WALES 22 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **POLK** 63 53 24 **MULBERRY** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA POLK** 63 53 **POLK CITY** 26 10 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **POLK** 63 53 WINTER HAVEN 30 76 FL **FLORIDA POLK** 53 32 **UNITED STATES** 10 63 DAVENPORT FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **POLK** 63 53 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA POLK** 53 10 63 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL **FLORIDA UNITED STATES** 76 10 **PUTNAM** 64 54 **PALATKA** 04 UNITED STATES 76 FI FI ORIDA 10 PUTNAM 64 54 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **PUTNAM** 64 54 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 ST JOHNS 65 55 ST AUGUSTINE 04

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE STATE/PROVINCE/ **CHD** STATE/PROVINCE STATE COUNTY COUNTY **CITY TERRITORY COUNTY NAME** CODE CODE **COUNTRY NAME COUNTRY CODE ABBREVIATION** NAME CODE CODE **CITY NAME** FL 65 05 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 ST JOHNS 55 ST AUGUSTINE BEACH FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 ST JOHNS 65 55 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 ST JOHNS 65 55 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 ST LUCIE 66 56 FORT PIERCE 02 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 66 03 10 ST LUCIE 56 PORT ST LUCIE FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** ST LUCIE SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 10 66 56 98 UNITED STATES 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 ST LUCIE 66 56 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 76 FL **FLORIDA** 57 02 **UNITED STATES** 10 SANTA ROSA 67 MILTON FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 SANTA ROSA 67 57 **GULF BREEZE** 04 **UNITED STATES** FL **FLORIDA** 76 10 SANTA ROSA 67 57 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **BALANCE OF COUNTY UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 SANTA ROSA 67 57 99 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 FI ORIDA 10 SARASOTA 68 58 LONGBOAT KEY 02 FL SARASOTA **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 68 58 **NORTH PORT** 03 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 SARASOTA 68 58 SARASOTA 04 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 SARASOTA 68 58 **VFNICE** 06 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 SARASOTA 68 58 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** SARASOTA 99 10 68 58 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **SEMINOLE** 69 59 LAKE MARY 01 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **SEMINOLE** 69 59 **ALTAMONTE SPRINGS** 02 76 FL 59 **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 **SEMINOLE** 69 LONGWOOD 03 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **SEMINOLE** 69 59 **CASSELBERRY** 04 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **OVIEDO SEMINOLE** 69 59 05 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA SEMINOLE** 69 SANFORD 06 10 59 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **SEMINOLE** 69 59 WINTER SPRINGS 10 76 FL **FLORIDA UNITED STATES** 10 **SEMINOLE** 69 59 **MAITLAND** 14 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **SEMINOLE** 69 59 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 **UNITED STATES** FL **FLORIDA** 10 76 **SEMINOLE** 69 59 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 SUMTER 70 60 BUSHNELL 02 UNITED STATES 76 FI FI ORIDA 10 SUMTER 70 60 WII DWOOD 10 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 SUMTER 70 60 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 SUMTER 70 60 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE CHD STATE/PROVINCE/ STATE/PROVINCE STATE COUNTY COUNTY **CITY TERRITORY ABBREVIATION** CODE **COUNTY NAME** CODE **COUNTRY NAME COUNTRY CODE** NAME CODE CODE **CITY NAME** FL **FLORIDA** 71 02 **UNITED STATES** 76 10 **SUWANNEE** 61 LIVE OAK 76 FL **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 **SUWANNEE** 71 61 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL 71 **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **SUWANNEE** 61 99 BALANCE OF COUNTY **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **TAYLOR** 72 62 **PERRY** 04 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **TAYLOR** 72 62 98 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE FL 72 76 **FLORIDA TAYLOR** 62 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 UNITED STATES 10 UNITED STATES 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 UNION 73 63 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 76 FL **FLORIDA** 73 63 99 **UNITED STATES** 10 UNION **BALANCE OF COUNTY** FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **VOLUSIA** 74 64 DAYTONA BEACH 02 **UNITED STATES** FL **FLORIDA VOLUSIA** 74 DAYTONA BEACH SHORES 76 10 64 03 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **VOLUSIA** 74 64 **DELAND** 04 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 FI ORIDA 10 **VOLUSIA** 74 64 **FDGFWATER** 05 **UNITED STATES** FL **HOLLY HILL** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **VOLUSIA** 74 64 06 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **VOLUSIA** 74 64 **DFI TONA** 07 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **VOLUSIA** 74 64 **NEW SMYRNA BEACH** 08 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **VOLUSIA** 74 64 **ORANGE CITY** 09 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA VOLUSIA** 74 10 64 ORMOND BEACH 10 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **VOLUSIA** 74 64 PORT ORANGE 11 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **VOLUSIA** 74 64 PONCE INLET 12 76 FL 74 13 **UNITED STATES FLORIDA** 10 **VOLUSIA** 64 SOUTH DAYTONA FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 **VOLUSIA** 74 64 **PIERSON** 14 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **VOLUSIA** 74 64 LAKE HELEN 15 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA VOLUSIA** 74 **DEBARY** 17 10 64 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 **VOLUSIA** 74 64 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 76 FL **FLORIDA** 74 99 **UNITED STATES** 10 **VOLUSIA** 64 BALANCE OF COUNTY FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 WAKULLA 75 65 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 **UNITED STATES** 76 FL **FLORIDA** 10 75 WAKULLA 65 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 WALTON 76 66 **DEFUNIAK SPRINGS** 02 UNITED STATES 76 FI FI ORIDA 10 WALTON 76 66 **FRFFPORT** 04 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 WALTON 76 66 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **UNITED STATES** 76 **FLORIDA** 10 WALTON 76 66 **BALANCE OF COUNTY** 99

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE **CHD** STATE/PROVINCE/ **TERRITORY** STATE/PROVINCE **STATE** COUNTY COUNTY CITY **ABBREVIATION** NAME CODE **COUNTY NAME** CODE CODE **COUNTRY NAME COUNTRY CODE** CODE **CITY NAME** FL **FLORIDA** 02 **UNITED STATES** 76 10 WASHINGTON 77 67 CHIPLEY 76 FL UNITED STATES **FLORIDA** 10 WASHINGTON 77 67 SEA/AIR OCCURRENCE 98 FL **FLORIDA** 99 UNITED STATES 76 10 WASHINGTON 77 67 BALANCE OF COUNTY **UNITED STATES** 76 GA **GEORGIA** 11 **UNITED STATES** 76 ΗΙ HAWAII 12 ID 13 **UNITED STATES** 76 IDAHO UNITED STATES 76 IL ILLINOIS 14 **UNITED STATES** 76 IN 15 INDIANA **UNITED STATES** 76 IΑ **IOWA** 16 **UNITED STATES** KS **KANSAS** 17 76 KY 18 UNITED STATES 76 KENTUCKY **UNITED STATES** 76 LA LOUISIANA 19 **UNITED STATES** 76 ME MAINE 20 MD 21 UNITED STATES 76 MARYLAND 22 **UNITED STATES** 76 MA MASSACHUSETTS 23 UNITED STATES 76 MI MICHIGAN **UNITED STATES** 76 24 MN **MINNESOTA** 25 **UNITED STATES** 76 MS MISSISSIPPI 26 **UNITED STATES** 76 MO MISSOURI 76 MT 27 UNITED STATES **MONTANA** UNITED STATES 76 NE **NEBRASKA** 28 **UNITED STATES** 76 NV NEVADA 29 **UNITED STATES** 76 NH **NEW HAMPSHIRE** 30 **UNITED STATES** 76 NJ **NEW JERSEY** 31 76 **NEW MEXICO** 32 UNITED STATES NM 33 **UNITED STATES** 76 NY **NEW YORK UNITED STATES** 76 NC NORTH CAROLINA 34 ND 35 UNITED STATES 76 NORTH DAKOTA **UNITED STATES** 76 OH OHIO 36 **UNITED STATES** 76 OK **OKLAHOMA** 37 OR **UNITED STATES** 76 **OREGON** 38

		CITY, C	OUNTY, STATE,	AND C	DUNTRY REF	ERENCE	TABLE		
COUNTRY NAME	COUNTRY CODE	STATE/PROVINCE/ TERRITORY ABBREVIATION	STATE/PROVINCE NAME	STATE CODE	COUNTY NAME	COUNTY CODE	CHD COUNTY CODE	CITY NAME	CITY CODE
UNITED STATES	76	PA	PENNSYLVANIA	39					
UNITED STATES	76	RI	RHODE ISLAND	40					
UNITED STATES	76	SC	SOUTH CAROLINA	41					
UNITED STATES	76	SD	SOUTH DAKOTA	42					
UNITED STATES	76	TN	TENNESSEE	43					
UNITED STATES	76	TX	TEXAS	44					
UNITED STATES	76	UT	UTAH	45					
UNITED STATES	76	VT	VERMONT	46					
UNITED STATES	76	VA	VIRGINIA	47					
UNITED STATES	76	WA	WASHINGTON	48					
UNITED STATES	76	WV	WEST VIRGINIA	49					
UNITED STATES	76	WI	WISCONSIN	50					
UNITED STATES	76	WY	WYOMING	51					
PUERTO RICO	52	PR							
VIRGIN ISLANDS	53	VI							
GUAM	54	GU							
CANADA	55	AB	ALBERTA	61					
CANADA	55	ВС	BRITISH COLUMBIA GREAT NORTHWEST	62					
CANADA	55	NT	TERRITORIES	63					
CANADA	55	MB	MANITOBA	64					
CANADA	55	NB	NEW BRUNSWICK	65					
CANADA	55	NF	NEWFOUNDLAND	66					
CANADA	55	NS	NOVA SCOTIA	67					
CANADA	55	NU	NUNAVUT	68					
CANADA	55	ON	ONTARIO PRINCE EDWARD	69					
CANADA	55	PE	ISLAND	70					
CANADA	55	QC	QUEBEC	71					
CANADA	55	SK	SASKATCHEWAN	72					
CANADA	55	YT	YUKON TERRITORY	73					
CUBA	56								
MEXICO	57								

CITY, COUNTY, STATE, AND COUNTRY REFERENCE TABLE									
COUNTRY NAME	COUNTRY CODE	STATE/PROVINCE/ TERRITORY ABBREVIATION	STATE/PROVINCE NAME	STATE CODE	COUNTY NAME	COUNTY	CHD COUNTY CODE	CITY NAME	CITY CODE
NORTHERN MARIANAS REMAINDER OF	58								
WORLD AMERICAN	59								
SAMOA	60								
UNKNOWN	99		UNKNOWN	99					

	LISTING OF FACILITY C	ODES	S AND FACILITY NAMES
CODE	FACILITY NAME	CODE	FACILITY NAME
11000	UF HEALTH SHANDS HOSPITAL/SHANDS AT UF/SHANDS TEACHING HOSPITAL AND CLINIC	14066	DOCTORS HOSPITAL (BRADFORD)
11001	STUDENT HEALTH SERVICES	15000	CIRCLES OF CARE/BREVARD MENTAL HEALTH CENTER AND HOSPITAL
11002	SUNLAND HOSPITAL UNIT	15001	HEALTHSOUTH SEA PINES REHABILITATION HOSPITAL
11003	NORTH FLORIDA SOUTH GEORGIA VETERANS HEALTH SYSTEM GAINESVILLE DIVISION/VETERANS ADMINISTRATION HOSPITAL – GAINESVILLE DIVISION	15002	DEVEREUX HOSPITAL & CHILDREN'S CENTER OF FLORIDA
11004	HCS NORTH FLORIDA EVALUATION & TREATMENT CENTER	15005	CAPE CANAVERAL HOSPITAL
11005	SHANDS AT AGH/ALACHUA GENERAL HOSPITAL	15006	PARRISH MEDICAL CENTER
11006	SHANDS AT VISTA	15008	PALM BAY COMMUNITY HOSPITAL/PALM BAY HOSPITAL
11007	SHANDS REHAB HOSPITAL	15021	US AIR FORCE HOSPITAL PATRICK
11070	HCA FLORIDA NORTH FLORIDA HOSPITAL/THE WOMEN'S CENTER AT NFRMC/NORTH FLORIDA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/COLUMBIA NORTH FLORIDA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER	15035	MELBOURNE REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/WUESTHOFF MEDICAL CENTER MELBOURNE
11091	BIRTH & GYNECOLOGY CENTER	15046	HOLMES REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER
11092	BIRTH & WELLNESS CENTER OF GAINESVILLE/BIRTH CENTER OF GAINESVILLE/THE BIRTHING CENTER OF GAINESVILLE	15047	ROCKLEDGE REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/WUESTHOFF MEDICAL CENTER ROCKLEDGE/WUESTHOFF MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
11093	PATIENCE CORNER NURSE MIDWIFERY CENTER	15070	ADARE MEDICAL HOSPITAL/ADARE MEDICAL CENTER
11100	SELECT SPECIALTY HOSPITAL OF GAINESVILLE	15075	KINDRED HOSPITAL MELBOURNE
11101	THE BIRTH CENTER AT CWH	15091	BREVARD BIRTHING CENTER
12000	NORTHEAST FLORIDA STATE HOSPITAL	15092	SPECIAL DELIVERY BIRTHING CENTER
12005	ED FRASER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL/BAKER COUNTY MEDICAL SERVICES	15093	RENAISSANCE BIRTH AND WOMEN'S CENTER
13000	HCA FLORIDA GULF COAST HOSPITAL/GULF COAST MEDICAL CENTER/COLUMBIA GULF COAST MEDICAL CENTER/HCA GULF COAST HOSPITAL/GULF COAST COMMUNITY HOSPITAL	15101	VIERA HOSPITAL
13001	BAY MEDICAL BEHAVIORAL HEALTH CENTER	15103	BEAUTIFUL BEGINNINGS MIDWIFERY & BIRTH CENTER
13002	HEALTHSOUTH EMERALD COAST REHABILITATION HOSPITAL	16000	SOUTH FLORIDA STATE HOSPITAL
13005	JAY CLINIC AND HOSPITAL	16001	HCA FLORIDA WESTSIDE HOSPITAL/WESTSIDE REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/HUMANA HOSPITAL BENNETT
13006	BAY MEDICAL CENTER – SACRED HEART HEALTH SYSTEM/BAY MEDICAL CENTER	16002	MEMORIAL REGIONAL HOSPITAL SOUTH/HOLLYWOOD MEDICAL CENTER
13021	325 MEDICAL GROUP/TYNDALL AIR FORCE BASE HOSPITAL	16003	FORT LAUDERDALE HOSPITAL
13030	SELECT SPECIALTY HOSPITAL/SEMPERCARE HOSPITAL OF PANAMA CITY	16004	NORTH RIDGE MEDICAL CENTER/NORTH RIDGE GENERAL HOSPITAL
13070	ADAMS HOSPITAL	16005	BROWARD HEALTH MEDICAL CENTER/BROWARD GENERAL MEDICAL CENTER
13071	LISENBY HOSPITAL	16006	MEMORIAL REGIONAL HOSPITAL/JOE DIMAGGIO CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL/MEMORIAL HOSPITAL HOLLYWOOD
14005	SHANDS AT STARKE REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/SHANDS AT STARKE/BRADFORD HOSPITAL	16007	BROWARD HEALTH NORTH/NORTH BROWARD MEDICAL CENTER/NORTH BROWARD HOSPITAL

	LISTING OF FACILITY C	ODES	S AND FACILITY NAMES
CODE	FACILITY NAME	CODE	FACILITY NAME
16008	PROVIDENT HOSPITAL	16086	STEWARD FLORIDA MEDICAL CENTER – A CAMPUS OF NORTH SHORE/FLORIDA MEDICAL CENTER – A CAMPUS OF NORTH SIDE/NORTH SHORE MEDICAL CENTER - FMC CAMPUS/FLORIDA MEDICAL CENTER HOSPITAL
16009	BROWARD HEALTH IMPERIAL POINT/IMPERIAL POINT MEDICAL CENTER	16087	HCA FLORIDA WOODMONT HOSPITAL/UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTER/HCA UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL
16010	MEMORIAL HOSPITAL PEMBROKE/PEMBROKE PINES GENERAL HOSPITAL/HUMANA HOSPITAL PEMBROKE	16088	MEMORIAL HOSPITAL WEST
16030	MEMORIAL HOSPITAL MIRAMAR	16091	HOLLYWOOD BIRTH CENTER
16036	HOLY CROSS HOSPITAL	16092	ALL NATURAL BIRTH CENTER
16045	BROWARD HEALTH CORAL SPRINGS/CORAL SPRINGS MEDICAL CENTER	16093	A BIRTH CENTER/THE FAMILY
16046	FLORIDA MEDICAL CENTER SOUTH/UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER/DOCTORS GENERAL HOSPITAL	16095	TRINITY BIRTHING CENTER
16047	CLEVELAND CLINIC AND HOSPITAL/NORTH BEACH COMMUNITY HOSPITAL	16100	A WOMAN'S WAY MATERNITY CENTER
16050	ST ANTHONY'S REHABILITATION HOSPITAL/ST JOHN'S REHABILITATION HOSPITAL/ST JOHN'S NURSING & REHABILITATION HOSPITAL	16102	A WOMAN'S WAY MIDWIFERY SERVICES
16051	HEALTHSOUTH SUNRISE REHAB HOSPITAL/SUNRISE HOSPITAL	16104	NATURAL BIRTHWORKS
16070	ATLANTIC SHORES HOSPITAL/CORAL RIDGE PSYCHIATRIC HOSPITAL	16106	HCA FLORIDA UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL
16071	KINDRED HOSPITAL SOUTH FLORIDA HOLLYWOOD/DOCTORS HOSPITAL HOLLYWOOD/THC HOLLYWOOD	17005	CALHOUN LIBERTY HOSPITAL/CALHOUN GENERAL HOSPITAL
16072	GOLDEN ISLES HOSPITAL	18000	HCA FLORIDA FAWCETT HOSPITAL/FAWCETT MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
16073	KINDRED HOSPITAL SOUTH FLORIDA FORT LAUDERDALE/VENCOR HOSPITAL FORT LAUDERDALE/LAS OLAS GENERAL HOSPITAL	18036	SHOREPOINT HEALTH PORT CHARLOTTE/BAYFRONT HEALTH PORT CHARLOTTE/PEACE RIVER REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/BON SECOURS ST JOSEPH HOSPITAL
16074	MERCYWOOD HOSPITAL	18046	SHOREPOINT HEALTH PUNTA GORDA/BAYFRONT HEALTH PUNTA GORDA/CHARLOTTE REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/MEDICAL CENTER HOSPITAL
16075	MONROE JACKSON HOSPITAL	19000	BRAVERA HEALTH SEVEN RIVERS/BAYFRONT HEALTH SEVEN RIVERS/SEVEN RIVERS REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER
16076	PLANTATION GENERAL HOSPITAL	19005	HCA FLORIDA CITRUS HOSPITAL/CITRUS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
16077	POMPANO BEACH HOSPITAL	19090	WIRT CLINIC
16078	SOUTH BROWARD HOSPITAL	19091	NATURE COAST BIRTH CENTER
16079	WEST BROWARD HOSPITAL	20000	HCA FLORIDA ORANGE PARK HOSPITAL/ORANGE PARK MEDICAL CENTER/HUMANA HOSPITAL ORANGE PARK
16080	KING MANOR HOSPITAL	20010	BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER CLAY
16081	HCA FLORIDA NORTHWEST HOSPITAL/NORTHWEST MEDICAL CENTER/NORTHWEST REGIONAL HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA NORTHWEST MEDICAL CENTER	20020	ST VINCENT'S MEDICAL CENTER – CLAY COUNTY
16082	MANOR OAKS HOSPITAL	20046	KINDRED HOSPITAL NORTH FLORIDA/CLAY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
16083	HUMANA HOSPITAL SOUTH BROWARD	20047	MARY M. OLIN CLINIC
16084	HUMANA HOSPITAL CYPRESS	20070	PUREAL HOSPITAL
16085	HOLLYWOOD PAVILION	20101	ST VINCENT'S MEDICAL CENTER – CLAY COUNTY FAMILY BIRTH PLACE

	LISTING OF FACILITY O	ODES	S AND FACILITY NAMES
CODE	FACILITY NAME	CODE	FACILITY NAME
21001	PHYSICIANS REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER PINE RIDGE RD/CLEVELAND CLINIC FLORIDA HOSPITAL – NAPLES	23026	MIAMI VA HEALTH CARE SYSTEM/VETERANS ADMINISTRATION HOSPITAL MIAMI-DADE/MIAMI VA MEDICAL CENTER
21002	THE WILLOUGH AT NAPLES	23036	BAPTIST HOSPITAL OF MIAMI
21046	NAPLES COMMUNITY HOSPITAL	23037	CHRISTIAN HOSPITAL
21050	NCH NORTH NAPLES HOSPITAL/NORTH COLLIER HOSPITAL	23038	HCA FLORIDA MERCY HOSPITAL/MERCY HOSPITAL, A CAMPUS OF PLANTATION GENERAL HOSPITAL/MERCY HOSPITAL
21070	IMMOKALEE GENERAL HOSPITAL	23039	MIAMI HEART INSTITUTE NORTH CAMPUS/MIAMI BEACH COMMUNITY HOSPITAL/ST FRANCIS HOSPITAL
21090	COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER	23046	KINDRED HOSPITAL SOUTH FLORIDA CORAL GABLES/VENCOR HOSPITAL CORAL GABLES/NORTH GABLES HOSPITAL
21091	THE WOMEN'S CARE AND BIRTH CENTER/COLLIER CHILDBIRTH CENTER	23047	UNIVERSITY OF MIAMI HOSPITAL/CEDARS MEDICAL CENTER
21093	FAMILY BIRTH CENTER OF NAPLES	23048	DOCTORS HOSPITAL/HEALTHSOUTH DOCTORS HOSPITAL
21102	PHYSICIANS REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER COLLIER BLVD	23049	HIALEAH HOSPITAL
22005	SHANDS AT LAKE SHORE/LAKE SHORE HOSPITAL	23050	MOUNT SINAI MEDICAL CENTER AND MIAMI HEART INSTITUTE/COLUMBIA MIAMI HEART INSTITUTE/MIAMI HEART INSTITUTE SOUTH
22026	VETERANS ADMINISTRATION HOSPITAL COLUMBIA	23051	MOUNT SINAI MEDICAL CENTER
22046	HCA FLORIDA LAKE CITY HOSPITAL/LAKE CITY MEDICAL CENTER	23052	NORTH MIAMI MEDICAL CENTER
23000	UNIVERSITY OF MIAMI HEALTH CENTER HOSPITAL	23053	NORTH SHORE MEDICAL CENTER
23001	SUNLAND TRAINING CENTER	23054	NORTHWEST HOSPITAL
23002	JACKSON SOUTH COMMUNITY HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA DEERING HOSPITAL/CORAL REEF HOSPITAL	23055	AMI SOUTHEASTERN MEDICAL CENTER
23003	PARKWAY WEST REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/MIAMI GENERAL HOSPITAL/GOLDEN GLADES MEDICAL CENTER	23056	LARKIN COMMUNITY HOSPITAL PALM SPRINGS CAMPUS/PALM SPRINGS GENERAL HOSPITAL
23004	HCA FLORIDA AVENTURE HOSPITAL/AVENTURA HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTER/HUMANA BISCAYNE/COLUMBIA AVENTURA HOSPITAL	23057	METROPOLITAN HOSPITAL OF MIAMI/PAN AMERICAN HOSPITAL
23005	JACKSON HEALTH SYSTEMS/JACKSON MEMORIAL HOSPITAL/BIRTH CENTER JACKSON/PERDUE MATERNITY	23058	HCA FLORIDA KENDALL HOSPITAL/KENDALL REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/KENDALL MEDICAL CENTER/COLUMBIA KENDALL MEDICAL CENTER
23006	HOMESTEAD HOSPITAL/SMH HOMESTEAD HOSPITAL/JAMES ARCHER SMITH HOSPITAL	23059	NICKLAUS CHILDRENS HOSPITAL/MIAMI CHILDRENS HOSPITAL
23007	KENDALL HOSPITAL	23060	SELECT SPECIALTY HOSPITAL – MIAMI/VICTORIA HOSPITAL
23008	GRANT CENTER HOSPITAL	23061	SOUTH BEACH COMMUNITY HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTER/SOUTH SHORE HOSPITAL & MEDICAL CENTER
23009	PENINSULAR COMMUNITY HOSPITAL/KING MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	23062	DOUGLAS GARDENS HOSPITAL
23010	ANNE BATES LEACH EYE HOSPITAL	23064	SOUTH FLORIDA EVALUATION & TREATMENT CENTER
23011	ST CATHERINE'S REHABILITATION HOSPITAL/BON SECOURS HOSPITAL	23066	WEST SANDS PSYCHIATRIC HOSPITAL
23012	JACKSON NORTH MATERNITY CENTER	23070	COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
23013	SOUTHERN WINDS HOSPITAL	23071	GENERAL HOSPITAL OF GREATER MIAMI/GREATER MIAMI GENERAL HOSPITAL
23014	HEALTHSOUTH REHAB HOSPITAL	23072	UNIVERSITY OF MIAMI AND CLINICS/NATIONAL CHILDREN'S CARDIAC HOSPITAL
23015	MEADOWBROOK REHABILITATION HOSPITAL OF WEST GABLES	23073	OPA-LOCKA GENERAL HOSPITAL
23021	31ST HOSPITAL/31ST MEDICAL GROUP/USAF HOSPITAL HOMESTEAD	23074	JACKSON NORTH MEDICAL CENTER/PARKWAY REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

LISTING OF FACILITY CODES AND FACILITY NAMES CODE **FACILITY NAME** CODE **FACILITY NAME** 23075 HARBOR VIEW HOSPITAL 24005 DESOTO MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 23076 24061 SOUTH MIAMI HOSPITAL ARCADIA GENERAL HOSPITAL 23077 KERALTY HOSPITAL/WESTCHESTER GENERAL HOSPITAL 25090 THOMAS MEDICAL ARTS CLINIC 23078 **CORAL GABLES HOSPITAL** 26000 TEN BROECK/ST JOHN'S RIVER HOSPITAL LARKIN COMMUNITY HOSPITAL/LARKIN GENERAL HOSPITAL/HEALTHSOUTH 23079 26002 JACKSONVILLE SURGICAL CENTER MIAMI HOSPITAL 23080 **BEACON HOSPITAL** 26005 **BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER BEACHES** UF HEALTH JACKSONVILLE/SHANDS JACKSONVILLE/UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL OF 23081 REED MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 26006 JACKSONVILLE/UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 23082 NATIONAL MEDICAL CENTER 26007 **BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER SOUTH** 23083 PALMETTO GENERAL HOSPITAL/AMI PALMETTO GENERAL HOSPITAL 26021 NAVAL HOSPITAL JACKSONVILLE/JACKSONVILLE NAVAL HOSPITAL 23084 HIGHLAND PARK GENERAL HOSPITAL 26022 US NAVAL DISPENSARY MAYPORT BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER/WOLFSON CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL/WOLFSON'S 23090 SOUTH DADE COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER 26036 CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL 23091 MIAMI MATERNITY CENTER/MIAMI BEACH MATERNITY CENTER 26037 METHODIST HOSPITAL 23092 A-FAMILIES CHOICE BIRTHING CENTER 26038 ST VINCENT'S MEDICAL CENTER BROOKS REHABILITATION HOSPITAL/MEMORIAL REGIONAL REHABILITATION 26039 23093 HOLISTIC MATERNITY CARE/COMPLETE CARE BIRTH CENTER CENTER 23094 SOUL OF A WOMAN MATERNITY CENTER 26045 **GATEWAY PLAZA** 23095 BIRTHING CENTER OF SOUTH FLORIDA 26046 DOCTORS HOSPITAL (DUVAL) 26047 NEMOURS CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL 23096 PALMETTO BAY MATERNITY CENTER HCA FLORIDA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL/MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 23100 SISTER EMMANUEL HOSPITAL 26048 JACKSONVILLE/COLUMBIA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 23102 WEST GABLES REHABILITATION HOSPITAL 26049 RIVERSIDE HOSPITAL 23104 NATURAL BIRTH CENTER 26050 ST VINCENT'S MEDICAL CENTER SOUTHSIDE/ST LUKES HOSPITAL SPECIALTY SELECT HOSPITAL JACKSONVILLE/COLUMBIA SPECIALTY HOSPITAL 26051 JACKSONVILLE/JACKSONVILLE GENERAL HOSPITAL/JACKSONVILLE MEDICAL 23106 ST CATHERINE'S WEST REHABILITATION HOSPITAL CENTER 23108 WEST KENDALL BAPTIST HOSPITAL 26070 **GRANT HAVEN HOSPITAL** GOLDEN GLADES NURSING AND REHABILITATION CENTER 26071 MEDICENTER HOSPITAL OF JACKSONVILLE 23110 23112 THE MIAMI MEDICAL CENTER 26095 **BIRTHPOINTE** 23114 HOLISTIC SOUTH PREGNANCY & BIRTH CENTER 26096 FRUITFUL VINE MIDWIFERY SERVICE 23116 MAGNOLIA BIRTH HOUSE 26101 MAYO CLINIC 23118 MATERNITY OPTIONS OF MIAMI LLC 26103 BIRTH CENTER OF JACKSONVILLE LLC JACKSON WEST MEDICAL CENTER/JACKSON HEALTH SYSTEMS WEST - DORAL 23120 26105 UF HEALTH BIRTH CENTER **HOSPITAL** 24000 G. PIERCE WOOD MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 26107 UF HEALTH NORTH

	LISTING OF FACILITY C	ODES	S AND FACILITY NAMES
CODE	FACILITY NAME	CODE	FACILITY NAME
26109	TRANSITIONS BIRTH CENTER	34005	TRINITY COMMUNITY/HAMILTON COUNTY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA HAMILTON MEDICAL CENTER
27000	HCA FLORIDA WEST HOSPITAL/WEST FLORIDA HOSPITAL/WEST FLORIDA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER	35005	ADVENTHEALTH WAUCHULA/FLORIDA HOSPITAL WAUCHULA/HARDEE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL/WALKER MEMORIAL MEDICAL CENTER WAUCHULA
27001	REHABILITATION INSTITUTE OF WEST FLORIDA	35070	PALMETTO MEDICAL CENTER
27002	LAKEVIEW CENTER IRTP	35071	WAUCHULA GENERAL HOSPITAL
27005	UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AND CLINIC	36005	HENDRY REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/HENDRY GENERAL HOSPITAL
27021	NAVAL HOSPITAL PENSACOLA	37001	HEALTHSOUTH REHABILITATION HOSPITAL OF SPRING HILL
27036	BAPTIST HOSPITAL/BAPTIST SPECIALTY CARE CENTER	37002	SPRINGBROOK HOSPITAL
27037	OUR LADY OF ANGELS HOSPITALS	37005	BRAVERA HEALTH BROOKSVILLE/BAYFRONT HEALTH BROOKSVILLE/BROOKSVILLE REGIONAL HOSPITAL/LYKES MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
27038	SACRED HEART HOSPITAL/SACRED HEART HOSPITAL OF PENSACOLA	37010	HCA FLORIDA OAK HILL HOSPITAL/OAK HILL HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER OAK HILL/HCA OAK HILL COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
27046	PENSACOLA MATERNITY HOSPITAL	37015	BRAVERA HEALTH SPRING HILL/BAYFRONT HEALTH SPRING HILL/SPRING HILL REGIONAL
27066	TURBERVILLE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	38000	FLORIDA ALCOHOLISM TREATMENT CENTER
27070	CENTURY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	38001	ADVENTHEALTH LAKE PLACID/FLORIDA HOSPITAL LAKE PLACID/LAKE PLACID MEDICAL CENTER
27091	BIRTHING CENTER	38005	HCA FLORIDA HIGHLANDS HOSPITAL/HIGHLANDS REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER
27093	MAMAS CRADLE THE BIRTH CENTER	38036	ADVENTHEALTH SEBRING/FLORIDA HOSPITAL HEARTLAND/WALKER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL/FLORIDA HOSPITAL WALKER
27101	SELECT SPECIALTY HOSPITAL PENSACOLA	38070	SEBRING GENERAL HOSPITAL
27103	STAND & DELIVER FAMILY BIRTH CENTER	38071	WEEMS CLINIC
28070	ADVENTHEALTH PALM COAST/FLORIDA HOSPITAL FLAGLER/FLAGLER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL/COASTAL COMMUNITIES HOSPITAL/MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF FLAGLER	39000	W.T. EDWARDS TUBERCULOSIS HOSPITAL
28102	ADVENTHEALTH PALM COAST PARKWAY	39001	JAMES A HALEY VETERANS HOSPITAL/VETERANS ADMINISTRATION HOSPITAL HILLSBOROUGH/TAMPA VA MEDICAL CENTER
29005	GEORGE E WEEMS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL/EMERALD COAST HOSPITAL	39002	ST JOSEPH'S WOMEN'S HOSPITAL/HUMANA WOMEN'S HOSPITAL TAMPA
29006	ANNEEWAKEE HOSPITAL	39003	HCA FLORIDA BRANDON HOSPITAL/BRANDON REGIONAL HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA BRANDON REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/BRANDON HOSPITAL
29016	CARRABELLE GENERAL HOSPITAL	39004	NORTHSIDE COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER
30000	FLORIDA STATE HOSPITAL	39005	HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY HOSPITAL
30005	CAPITAL REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER, GADSDEN MEMORIAL CAMPUS/GADSDEN COMMUNITY HOSPITAL/GADSDEN MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	39006	TAMPA GENERAL HOSPITAL
30090	THE THOMPSON CLINIC	39007	ADVENTHEALTH TAMPA/FLORIDA HOSPITAL TAMPA/UNIVERSITY COMMUNITY HOSPITAL/UNIVERSITY COMMUNITY HOSPITAL FLETCHER HCA FLORIDA WEST TAMPA HOSPITAL, A PART OF HCA FLORIDA SOUTH
30095	PHYSICIANS ALTERNATIVE BIRTHING CENTER	39008	TAMPA HOSPITAL/TAMPA COMMUNITY HOSPITAL/TOWN AND COUNTRY HOSPITAL/AMI TOWN AND COUNTRY MEDICAL CENTER
33016	GULF PINES HOSPITAL	39009	AMBULATORY SURGERY CENTER
33102	SACRED HEART HOSPITAL ON THE GULF	39021	6^{TH} MEDICAL GROUP TAC/5 6^{TH} MEDICAL GROUP TAC/MACDILL AFB HOSPITAL

	LISTING OF FACILITY O	ODES	S AND FACILITY NAMES
CODE	FACILITY NAME	CODE	FACILITY NAME
39032	H LEE MOFFITT CANCER CENTER AND RESEARCH INSTITUTE HOSPITAL	42000	SUNLAND TRAINING CENTER
39036	ST ELIZABETH HOSPITAL	42001	SUNLAND MARIANNA COX MEDICAL SERVICES CENTER
39037	ST JOSEPH'S HOSPITAL	42005	CAMPBELLTON-GRACEVILLE HOSPITAL
39038	SOUTH FLORIDA BAPTIST HOSPITAL	42006	JACKSON HOSPITAL
39046	CENTRO ASTURIANO HOSPITAL	42095	FAMILY MEDICAL CENTER
39047	KINDRED HOSPITAL CENTRAL TAMPA/VENCOR HOSPITAL CENTRAL TAMPA/TRANSISTIONAL HOSPITAL/CENTRO ESPANOL HOSPITAL/DOCTORS HOSPITAL	43090	GERRY MEDICAL CLINIC
39048	LILY WHITE HOSPITAL	45000	LAKE SUMTER COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER
39050	HCA FLORIDA SOUTH SHORE HOSPITAL/SOUTH BAY HOSPITAL/SUN CITY REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/COLUMBIA SOUTH BAY HOSPITAL	45001	LIFESTREAM BEHAVIORAL CENTER
39052	SHRINER'S HOSPITAL FOR CRIPPLED CHILDREN TAMPA UNIT	45016	UF HEALTH LEESBURG HOSPITAL/LEESBURG REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER
39070	BAY TO BAY HOSPITAL	45046	SOUTH LAKE HOSPITAL/SOUTH LAKE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
39071	A.A. GONZALEZ CLINIC AND HOSPITAL	45047	ADVENTHEALTH WATERMAN/FLORIDA HOSPITAL WATERMAN/WATERMAN MEDICAL CENTER
39072	TRELLES MEMORIAL CLINIC AND HOSPITAL	45070	THERESA HOLLAND HOSPITAL
39073	ADVENTHEALTH CARROLLWOOD/FLORIDA HOSPITAL CARROLLWOOD/UNIVERSITY COMMUNITY HOSPITAL AT CARROLLWOOD/CARROLLWOOD COMMUNITY HOSPITAL/CARROLLWOOD BIRTH CENTER/CENTURIAN HOSPITAL CARROLLWOOD KINDRED HOSPITAL BAY AREA TAMPA/TAMPA BAY COMMUNITY	45071	MEDICENTER HOSPITAL
39074	HOSPITAL/PALMA CEIA HOSPITAL/WEST SHORE HOSPITAL/VENCOR HOSPITAL TAMPA	45072	LEESBURG REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER NORTH/LAKE MEDICAL CENTER
39075	TAMPA HEIGHTS HOSPITAL	45073	FLORIDA ELKS HARRY-ANNA HOSPITAL
39076	HUMAN RESOURCES INSTITUTE	45101	COMMUNITY BIRTH & WELLNESS CENTER
39077	HCA FLORIDA SOUTH TAMPA HOSPITAL/MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF TAMPA/TAMPA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	46000	SUNLAND TRAINING CENTER
39091	NEW BEGINNING NATURAL CHILDBIRTH CENTER - TAMPA	46001	LEE MEMORIAL HEALTH SYSTEM - CCH/CAPE CORAL HOSPITAL
39092	TRADITIONAL MIDWIFERY	46002	LEE MEMORIAL HEALTH SYSTEM – LMH/LEE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
39093	LABOR OF LOVE BIRTH CENTER FOR TAMPA/LABOR OF LOVE BIRTH CENTER	46003	GULF COAST MEDICAL CENTER/GULF COAST HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA GULF COAST HOSPITAL
39101	ST JOSEPH'S HOSPITAL NORTH	46005	LEE MEMORIAL HEALTH SYSTEM – HP/LEE MEMORIAL HEALTHPARK
39103	ST JOSEPH'S HOSPITAL SOUTH	46046	JONES WALKER HOSPITAL
39105	SWEET CHILD O' MINE	46047	LEHIGH REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/COLUMBIA EAST POINTE HOSPITAL
40005	DOCTORS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL BONIFAY	46050	CHARTER GLADE HOSPITAL
41005	CLEVELAND CLINIC INDIAN RIVER HOSPITAL/INDIAN RIVER MEDICAL CENTER/INDIAN RIVER MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	46070	SOUTHWEST FLORIDA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/COLUMBIA SOUTHWEST FLORIDA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/COLUMBIA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER SOUTHWEST FLORIDA
41060	HEALTHSOUTH TREASURE COAST REHABILITATION HOSPITAL/TREASURE COAST REHABILITATION HOSPITAL	46091	FAMILY BIRTH CENTER FT MYERS/THE FAMILY BIRTH CENTER
41070	SEBASTIAN RIVER MEDICAL CENTER/SEBASTIAN HOSPITAL	46093	SMALL BLESSINGS BIRTH CENTER

	LISTING OF FACILITY C	ODES	S AND FACILITY NAMES
CODE	FACILITY NAME	CODE	FACILITY NAME
46100	BABYLOVE BIRTH CENTER	52015	CHARTER SPRINGS HOSPITAL
46102	SELECT SPECIALTY HOSPITAL – FORT MYERS/PROMISE HOSPITAL OF FORT MYERS	52070	SURGICAL-MEDICAL HOSPITAL
47000	FLORIDA A & M UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL	52091	THE BIRTH CENTER OF OCALA, INC.
47001	FLORIDA STATE UNIVERSITY INFIRMARY	52093	THE OCALA BIRTH CENTER
47002	SUNLAND TRAINING CENTER	52500	KINDRED HOSPITAL OCALA
47003	TALLAHASSEE PSYCHIATRIC CENTER	52502	THE VINES HOSPITAL
47004	HCA FLORIDA CAPITAL HOSPITAL/CAPITAL REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/TALLAHASSEE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA TALLAHASSEE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL	52504	LOVING ARMS BIRTH AND WELLNESS CENTER, LLC
47005	TALLAHASSEE MEMORIAL HEALTHCARE/TALLAHASSEE MEMORIAL REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER	53046	CLEVELAND CLINIC MARTIN NORTH HOSPITAL/MARTIN MEDICAL CENTER/MARTIN MEMORIAL MEDICAL CENTER/MARTIN MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
47006	EASTSIDE PSYCHIATRIC HOSPITAL	53048	MARTIN HOSPITAL SOUTH/MARTIN MEMORIAL HOSPITAL SOUTH
47010	SELECT SPECIALTY HOSPITAL TALLAHASSEE	53091	WOMEN'S CENTER OF MARTIN COUNTY
47020	HEALTHSOUTH REHAB HOSPITAL OF TALLAHASSEE/CAPITAL HOSPITAL	53101	ABUNANT LIFE BIRTH CENTER
47031	FEDERAL CORRECTIONAL HOSPITAL	53105	CLEVELAND CLINIC MARTIN SOUTH HOSPITAL
47070	MEDICAL CENTER OF AMERICA	54005	MONROE GENERAL HOSPITAL
47091	BIRTH CENTER OF TALLAHASSEE	54006	LOWER KEYS MEDICAL CENTER/LOWER FLORIDA KEYS HEALTH SYSTEM/FLORIDA KEYS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
47092	THE BIRTH COTTAGE	54021	US NAVAL HOSPITAL KEY WEST
48016	TRI COUNTY HOSPITAL – WILLISTON/NATURE COAST REGIONAL HOSPITAL/WILLISTON MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	54046	FISHERMENS HOSPITAL
50005	MADISON COUNTY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	54070	DEPOO HOSPITAL
51000	HCA FLORIDA BLAKE HOSPITAL/BLAKE MEDICAL CENTER/COLUMBIA BLAKE MEDICAL CENTER/HCA L.W. BLAKE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	54071	MARINERS HOSPITAL
51001	MANATEE GLENS HOSPITAL	54090	THE MEDICAL CLINIC
51002	MANATEE PALMS YOUTH SERVICES	54091	BABIES BY THE SEA: A BIRTH CENTER
51005	MANATEE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	54095	FAMILY BIRTH PLACE
51007	LAKEWOOD RANCH MEDICAL CENTER	55005	BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER NASSAU/NASSAU MEDICAL CENTER/NASSAU GENERAL HOSPITAL/BAPTIST ST VINCENT'S NASSAU MEDICAL CENTER
51095	BIRTH & GYNECOLOGY CENTRE	56005	FORT WALTON BEACH EXTENDED CARE
52000	HCA FLORIDA OCALA HOSPITAL/OCALA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/COLUMBIA OCALA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/MARION COMMUNITY HOSPITAL	56006	HCA FLORIDA TWIN CITIES HOSPITAL/TWIN CITIES HOSPITAL
52001	WEST MARION COMMUNITY HOSPITAL	56007	NORTH OKALOOSA MEDICAL CENTER/HCA NORTH OKALOOSA MEDICAL CENTER
52005	ADVENTHEALTH OCALA/FLORIDA HOSPITAL OCALA/MUNROE REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER	56010	GULF COAST TREATMENT CENTER/HAS GULF COAST HOSPITAL
52007	MRMC EMERGENCY CENTER AT TIMBERRIDGE	56021	96 TH MEDICAL GROUP/646 TH MEDICAL GROUP/AFSC REGIONAL HOSPITAL EGLIN
52010	GRANT CENTER HOSPITAL OF OCALA	56065	HUMANA HOSPITAL DESTIN/DESTIN HOSPITAL

	LISTING OF FACILITY C	ODES	AND FACILITY NAMES
CODE	FACILITY NAME HCA FLORIDA FORT WALTON – DESTIN HOSPITAL/FORT WALTON BEACH	CODE	FACILITY NAME
56070	MEDICAL CENTER/COLUMBIA FORT WALTON BEACH MEDICAL CENTER/HUMANA HOSPITAL FORT WALTON BEACH	58094	THE BIRTH PLACE
56095	PHYSICIAN'S ALTERNATIVE	58095	FAMILY TREE BIRTHING CENTER/BUENA VISTA CLINIC
56101	GENTLE BIRTH OPTIONS	58100	SELECT SPECIALTY HOSPITAL ORLANDO SOUTH
57005	HCA FLORIDA RAULERSON HOSPITAL/RAULERSON HOSPITAL/HCA RAULERSON JR. MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	58102	NEMOURS CHILDRENS HOSPITAL (ORANGE)
58000	SUNLAND TRAINING CENTER	58104	TREE OF LIFE BIRTH & GYNECOLOGY
58001	UNIVERSITY BEHAVIORAL CENTER	58106	ORLANDO VA MEDICAL CENTER – HOSPITAL
58002	ORLANDO REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER	58108	UCF LAKE NONA HOSPITAL/UCF LAKE NONA MEDICAL CENTER
58003	DR P PHILLIPS HOSPITAL/SAND LAKE HOSPITAL	59036	ORLANDO HEALTH ST CLOUD HOSPITAL/ST CLOUD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/ORLANDO REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER ST CLOUD/ST CLOUD HOSPITAL
58004	SEMPERCARE HOSPITAL OF ORLANDO	59067	HCA FLORIDA OSCEOLA HOSPITAL/OSCEOLA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/OSCEOLA REGIONAL HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER OSCEOLA/HUMANA HOSPITAL KISSIMMEE
58005	ADVENTHEALTH APOPKA/FLORIDA HOSPITAL APOPKA	59069	ADVENTHEALTH CELEBRATION/FLORIDA HOSPITAL CELEBRATION HEALTH
58006	HEALTH CENTRAL/WEST ORANGE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	59070	ADVENTHEALTH KISSIMMEE/FLORIDA HOSPITAL KISSIMMEE/KISSIMMEE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
58007	LA AMISTAD RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER	59101	HCA FLORIDA POINCIANA HOSPITAL/POINCIANA MEDICAL CENTER
58021	US NAVAL HOSPITAL ORLANDO	60000	AG HOLLEY STATE HOSPITAL
58036	ADVENTHEALTH ORLANDO/FLORIDA HOSPITAL ORLANDO	60001	HCA FLORIDA JFK NORTH HOSPITAL/JFK MEDICAL CENTER – NORTH CAMPUS/WEST PALM HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA HOSPITAL/HUMANA PALM BEACH
58037	LAKESIDE ALTERNATIVES/AMI MEDICAL CENTER ORLANDO/PRINCETON HOSPITAL	60002	JUPITER MEDICAL CENTER/JUPITER HOSPITAL/PALM BEACH MARTIN COUNTY MEDICAL CENTER
58046	ECCLESTON-CALLAHAN MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	60003	DELRAY MEDICAL CENTER/DELRAY COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
58047	HOLIDAY HOSPITAL	60004	SANDYPINES
58048	ARNOLD PALMER HOSPITAL	60005	BETHESDA HOSPITAL EAST/BETHESDA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
58049	ADVENTHEALTH EAST ORLANDO/FLORIDA HOSPITAL EAST ORLANDO	60006	EVERGLADES REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/EVERGLADES MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
58050	ADVENTHEALTH WINTER PARK/WINTER PARK MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	60007	LAKESIDE MEDICAL CENTER/GLADES GENERAL HOSPITAL
58051	LUCERNE MEDICAL CENTER/ORLANDO REGIONAL LUCERNE HOSPITAL	60008	VETERANS ADMINISTRATION HOSPITAL PALM BEACH/DEPT OF VETERAN AFFAIRS MEDICAL CENTER PALM BEACH/WEST PALM BEACH VA MEDICAL CENTER
58060	SELECT SPECIALTY HOSPITAL ORLANDO NORTH/SELECT SPECIALTY HOSPITAL ORLANDO/SEMPERCARE HOSPITAL OF ORLANDO	60010	FAIR OAKS HOSPITAL
58065	WINNIE PALMER HOSPITAL	60021	US AIR FORCE HOSPITAL/USAF WEST PALM BEACH
58091	ORLANDO BIRTHING CENTER	60036	ST MARY'S MEDICAL CENTER/ST MARY'S HOSPITAL
58092	SPECIAL BEGINNINGS	60046	BOCA RATON REGIONAL HOSPITAL/BOCA RATON COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
58093	INSPIRATION FAMILY BIRTHING CENTER/BIRTHING COTTAGE OF WINTER PARK/THE BIRTHING COTTAGE OF WP	60047	GOOD SAMARITAN MEDICAL CENTER/GOOD SAMARITAN HOSPITAL

	LISTING OF FACILITY C	ODES	S AND FACILITY NAMES
CODE	FACILITY NAME	CODE	FACILITY NAME
60048	HCA FLORIDA JFK HOSPITAL/JFK MEDICAL CENTER/JFK COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER/JOHN F. KENNEDY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	61006	MORTON PLANT NORTH BAY HOSPITAL/NORTH BAY MEDICAL CENTER/RIVERSIDE HOSPITAL
60049	JOHN F. KENNEDY REHABILITATION CENTER	61045	CAMELOT CARE CENTER
60053	PINECREST REHABILITATION HOSPITAL/PINE CREST HOSPITAL	61070	COMMUNITY HOSPITAL NEW PORT RICHEY/COMMUNITY HOSPITAL OF NEW PORT RICHEY/COLUMBIA NEW PORT RICHEY HOSPITAL/HCA NEW PORT RICHEY HOSPITAL
60055	WEST BOCA MEDICAL CENTER	61071	ADVENTHEALTH DADE CITY/FLORIDA HOSPITAL DADE CITY/BAYFRONT HEALTH DADE CITY/PASCO REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/PASCO COMMUNITY HOSPITAL/HUMANA HOSPITAL PASCO/COLUMBIA DADE CITY HOSPITAL
60068	WELLINGTON REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER	61102	HCA FLORIDA TRINITY HOSPITAL/MEDICAL CENTER OF TRINITY
60069	HCA FLORIDA PALMS WEST HOSPITAL/PALMS WEST HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA PALMS WEST HOSPITAL	61104	ADVENTHEALTH WESLEY CHAPEL/FLORIDA HOSPITAL WESLEY CHAPEL
60070	PALM BEACH GARDENS MEDICAL CENTER	61106	IN DUE SEASON PREGNANCY WELLNESS & BIRTH CENTER
60071	OAKWOOD ENTER OF THE PALM BEACHES/45 TH STREET MENTAL HEALTH CENTER	61108	ADVENTHEALTH CONNERTON
60072	LAKE HOSPITAL	62000	WINDMOOR HEALTHCARE OF CLEARWATER/HORIZON HOSPITAL
60073	PALM BEACH REGIONAL HOSPITAL/DOCTORS HOSPITAL	62001	HCA FLORIDA NORTHSIDE HOSPITAL/NORTHSIDE HOSPITAL/HUMANA NORTHSIDE
60091	BOCA WOMEN'S CENTER	62002	UNIVERSITY GENERAL HOSPITAL/UNIVERSITY GENERAL HOSPITAL SEMINOLE
60092	A DELIVERY WITH LOVE BIRTH CENTER	62003	EDWARD WHITE HOSPITAL/EDWARD H. WHITE II MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
60095	GLADES BIRTHING CENTER	62004	SOUTH PINELLAS MENTAL HEALTH CENTER
60101	SELECT SPECIALTY HOSPITAL PALM BEACH	62005	ADVENTHEALTH NORTH PINELLAS/FLORIDA HOSPITAL NORTH PINELLAS/HELEN ELLIS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL/TARPON SPRINGS GENERAL HOSPITAL
60103	KINDRED HOSPITAL THE PALM BEACHES	62006	HCA FLORIDA LARGO HOSPITAL/LARGO MEDICAL CENTER/COLUMBIA LARGO MEDICAL CENTER
60105	BETHESDA HOSPITAL WEST	62007	BELLEAIRE SURGICAL CENTER
60107	THE PALMS BIRTH HOUSE	62008	HEALTHSOUTH REHAB HOSPITAL
60109	JFK MEDICAL CENTER EMERGENCY CARE SERVICES – BOYNTON BEACH	62026	VETERANS ADMINISTRATION HOSPITAL PINELLAS/DEPT OF VETERAN AFFAIRS MEDICAL CENTER PINELLAS/BAY PINES VA MEDICAL CENTER
60111	JFK MEDICAL CENTER EMERGENCY CARE SERVICES – PALM BEACH GARDENS	62046	ALL CHILDRENS HOSPITAL
60113	PALM BEACH MATERNITY CENTER	62047	ANCLOTE MANOR HOSPITAL
60115	BLISS BIRTH AND WELLNESS CENTER, INC.	62048	BAYFRONT HEALTH ST PETERSBURG/BAYFRONT MEDICAL CENTER
60117	GENTLE BIRTH CENTER LLC	62049	MEASE HOSPITAL DUNEDIN/MEASE HOSPITAL AND CLINIC
60202	HOSPICE OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, INC.	62050	MORTON PLANT HOSPITAL/MORTON F. PLANT HOSPITAL
60203	HOSPICE BY THE SEA, INC.	62051	ST ANTHONY'S HOSPITAL
61001	HCA FLORIDA BAYONET POINT HOSPITAL/REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER BAYONET POINT/BAYONET POINT HUDSON REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/COLUMBIA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER	62052	HCA FLORIDA LARGO WEST HOSPITAL/LARGO MEDICAL CENTER INDIAN ROCKS/SUN COAST HOSPITAL
61005	ADVENTHEALTH ZEPHYRHILLS/FLORIDA HOSPITAL ZEPHYRHILLS//EAST PASCO MEDICAL CENTER	62053	MEASE HOSPITAL COUNTRYSIDE

	LISTING OF FACILITY O	ODES	S AND FACILITY NAMES
CODE	FACILITY NAME	CODE	FACILITY NAME
62070	CLEARWATER COMMUNITY HOSPITAL	64070	GLENDALE HOSPITAL
62071	HARBORSIDE HOSPITAL	64071	J.R. MATERNITY HOSPITAL
62072	METROPOLITAN GENERAL HOSPITAL	64091	BIRTH & BEYOND P.A.
62073	HCA FLORIDA PASADENA HOSPITAL/PALMS OF PASADENA HOSPITAL	65070	FLAGLER HOSPITAL, INC.
62074	HCA FLORIDA ST PETERSBURG HOSPITAL/ST PETERSBURG GENERAL HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA ST PETERSBURG MEDICAL CENTER/HUMANA HOSPITAL ST PETERSBURG	65071	ST AUGUSTINE GENERAL HOSPITAL
62075	KINDRED HOSPITAL BAY AREA ST PETERSBURG/GULF COAST HOSPITAL AND ORTHOPAEDIC INSTITUTE/HUMANA HOSPITAL SUN BAY	65091	PHYSICIANS ALTERNATE BIRTHING HOME
62076	MEDFIELD CENTER	65101	GROWING FAMILIES MIDWIFERY SERVICE AND BIRTH CENTER LLC
62077	SEMINOLE HOSPITAL AND WOMEN'S CENTER/WOMEN'S MEDICAL CENTER/LAKE SEMINOLE HOSPITAL	66000	HCA FLORIDA LAWNWOOD HOSPITAL/LAWNWOOD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/LAWNWOOD MEDICAL CENTER/COLUMBIA LAWNWOOD MEDICAL CENTER
62091	COUNTRYSIDE BIRTHING CENTER	66001	SAVANNAS HOSPITAL
62092	LABOR OF LOVE BIRTH CENTER OF DUNEDIN	66046	FORT PIERCE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
62093	THE ARK BIRTH CENTER	66047	HCA FLORIDA ST LUCIE HOSPITAL/ST LUCIE MEDICAL CENTER/HCA MEDICAL CENTER PORT ST LUCIE/ST LUCIE HEALTH CARE
62095	NEW LIFE BIRTH CENTER	66070	INDIAN RIVER COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER
62100	BREATH OF LIFE WOMENS HEALTH SERVICES & BIRTH CENTER/BREATH OF LIFE INC BIRTH CENTER	66091	PLACE OF BIRTH
62101	BAYCARE ALLIANT HOSPITAL	66092	TREE OF LIFE BIRTH CENTER
62103	THE BIRTH ENTER OF ST PETE	66093	MATERNITY PLACE
63001	WINTER HAVEN HOSPITAL	66101	CLEVELAND CLINIC TRADITION HOSPITAL/TRADITION MEDICAL CENTER
63005	LAKELAND REGIONAL HEALTH/LAKELAND REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER	67000	WEST FLORIDA COMMUNITY CARE CENTER
63006	POLK GENERAL HOSPITAL	67004	GULF BREEZE HOSPITAL
63036	MORROW MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	67005	JAY HOSPITAL
63046	BARTOW REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/BARTOW MEMORIAL HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA BARTOW MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	67006	MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
63047	ADVENTHEALTH HEART OF FLORIDA/HEART OF FLORIDA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/HEART OF FLORIDA HOSPITAL	67007	SANTA ROSA MEDICAL CENTER
63048	ADVENTHEALTH LAKE WALES/LAKE WALES MEDICAL CENTER/LAKE WALES HOSPITAL	68001	HEATHSOUTH REHABILITATION HOSPITAL OF SARASOTA
63049	WINTER HAVEN WOMEN'S HOSPITAL/REGENCY CENTER FOR WOMEN AND INFANTS/REGENCY MEDICAL CENTER	68005	SARASOTA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
63070	PALMVIEW HOSPITAL	68010	HCA FLORIDA ENGLEWOOD HOSPITAL/ENGLEWOOD COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
63091	CELEBRATE BIRTH/LABOR OF LOVE CHILDBIRTH SERVICES	68046	VENICE REGIONAL BAYFRONT HEALTH/VENICE REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/BON SECOURS VENICE HOSPITAL/VENICE HOSPITAL
64046	HCA FLORIDA PUTNAM HOSPITAL/PUTNAM COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER/PUTNAM COMMUNITY HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA PUTNAM MEDICAL CENTER	68060	VENICE HEALTH PARK SURGICAL CENTER

	LISTING OF FACILITY C	ODES	S AND FACILITY NAMES
CODE	FACILITY NAME	CODE	FACILITY NAME
68070	DOCTORS HOSPITAL OF SARASOTA	73005	LAKE BUTLER HOSPITAL AND HAND SURGERY CENTER
68071	BAYSIDE CENTER/SARASOTA PALMS HOSPITAL	73070	KING MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
68090	BAY VIEW MEDICAL CLINIC	74000	COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER DAYTONA/HUMANA HOSPITAL DAYTONA
68091	FLORIDA WEST COAST BIRTHING CENTER	74005	ADVENTHEALTH NEW SMYRNA BEACH/FLORIDA HOSPITAL NEW SMYRNA/BER' FISH MEDICAL CENTER/FISH MEMORIAL HOSPITAL NEW SMYRNA BEACH
68092	ROSEMARY BIRTHING HOME	74006	HALIFAX HEALTH MEDICAL CENTER/HALIFAX MEDICAL CENTER
68095	VENICE OBSTETRICS CLINIC/TARA HEATHER BIRTH CENTER/SARASOTA BIRTHING HOUSE	74007	ADVENTHEALTH DELAND/FLORIDA HOSPITAL DELAND/WEST VOLUSIA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL/MEMORIAL HOSPITAL WEST VOLUSIA
68103	SARASOTA MEMORIAL HOSPITAL – VENICE CAMPUS	74010	ADVENTHEALTH FISH MEMORIAL/FLORIDA HOSPITAL FISH MEMORIAL/FISH MEMORIAL HOSPITAL ORANGE CITY/VOLUSIA MEDICAL CENTER CLINIC
68401	BIRTHWAYS FAMILY BIRTH CENTER	74020	HALIFAX PSYCHIATRIC CENTER NORTH
68502	POST ACUTE MEDICAL SPECIALTY HOSPITAL OF SARASOTA LLC/COMPLEX CARE HOSPITAL AT RIDGELAKE/HEALTHSOUTH RIDGELAKE HOSPITAL	74046	FISH MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DELAND
69000	KRADLE KARE	74047	FLORIDA HOSPITAL OCEANSIDE/COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER PENINSULA/PENINSULA MEDICAL CENTER
69005	HCA FLORIDA LAKE MONROE HOSPITAL/CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL HOSPITAL/COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER SANFORD	74048	ADVENTHEALTH DAYTONA BEACH/FLORIDA HOSPITAL MEMORIAL MEDICAL CENTER/FLORIDA HOSPITAL ORMOND MEMORIAL/MEMORIAL HOSPITAL ORMOND BEACH/ORMOND BEACH MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
69010	SOUTH SEMINOLE HOSPITAL/SOUTH SEMINOLE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL	74070	UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL
69012	WEST LAKE HOSPITAL	74091	ALMOST HOME WOMEN'S HEALTH CENTER
69036	ADVENTHEALTH ALTAMONTE SPRINGS/FLORIDA HOSPITAL ALTAMONTE SPRINGS	74095	BIRTH CENTER
69091	FAMILY BIRTHING CENTER	74101	HALIFAX HEALTH MEDICAL CENTER PORT ORANGE/HALIFAX HOSPITAL PORT ORANGE
69092	PHYSICIANS BIRTHING CENTER	74103	TREE OF LIFE BIRTH AND GYNECOLOGY LLC
69093	THE BIRTHING AND BABY CENTER	74105	AGAPE BIRTH AND WELLNESS CENTER
69095	NATIONAL BIRTHING CENTER ENTER, INC/CENTRAL FLORIDA BIRTH INFERTILITY CENTER	74107	SELECT SPECIALTY HOSPITAL DAYTONA BEACH
69105	A WOMANS TOUCH IN HEALTHCARE	74109	AMABELLA BIRTH CENTER
69110	HEART 2 HEART BIRTH CENTER	76001	SACRED HEART HOSPITAL ON THE EMERALD COAST
69113	OVIEDO MEDICAL CENTER	76005	HEALTHMARK REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER/WALTON REGIONAL HOSPITAL/VALLEY SPRINGS COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
69115	TREE OF LIFE BIRTH AND GYNECOLOGY LLC ALTAMONTE SPRINGS	76007	SACRED HEART HOSPITAL ON THE EMERALD COAST
70001	THE VILLAGES REGIONAL HOSPITAL	76070	LAKESIDE HOSPITAL
70100	SELECT SPECIALTY HOSPITAL THE VILLAGES/PROMISE HOSPITAL OF FLORIDA AT THE VILLAGES	76091	MILTON MEMORIAL BIRTHING CENTER
71005	SHANDS AT LIVE OAK/SUWANNEE HOSPITAL	77005	NORTHWEST FLORIDA COMMUNITY HOSPITAL/WASHINGTON COUNTY HOSPITAL
72005	DOCTORS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL	99997	OTHER
73000	UNION CORRECTIONAL INSTITUTE HOSPITAL RECEPTION AND MEDICAL CENTER/NORTH FLORIDA RECEPTION CENTER	99999	UNKNOWN
73001	HOSPITAL		

EXPLANATION OF CALCULATED RACE FIELDS

There are calculated race fields in each of the vital statistics data tables (Birthmaster, Birthstat, Fetalmaster, Fetalstat, Deathmaster, and Deathstat). The field names are listed by event in the table below.

Vital Statistics Event	Calculated Race Field
Birth*	mother_calculatedrace father_calculatedrace
Fetal Death*	mother_calculatedrace
Death*	calculatedrace

Below is a translation of the SQL code used to define the Calculated Race fields in the data tables. In the following explanation, 'Mother_CalculatedRace' may be substituted with 'Father_CalculatedRace' or 'CalculatedRace'.

Mother_CalculatedRace = '01' when the mother is White Only or when the mother is Other Race and "Black" does not occur in the Other Race Literal field, but any of the following: "His" (i.e., Hispanic), "Lat" (i.e., Latin, Latina, Latino), "Mex" (i.e., Mexican), "Cub" (i.e., Cuban), "Puer" (i.e., Puerto Rican) or "Col" (i.e., Colombian) is found in the Other Race Literal field

Mother_CalculatedRace = '02' when the mother is Black Only or when the mother is Other Race and "Black" occurs in the Other Race Literal field

```
Mother_CalculatedRace = '03' when the mother is American Indian Only Mother_CalculatedRace = '04' when the mother is Chinese Only Mother_CalculatedRace = '05' when the mother is Japanese Only Mother_CalculatedRace = '06' when the mother is Hawaiian Only Mother_CalculatedRace = '07' when the mother is Filipino Only Mother_CalculatedRace = '08' when the mother is Korean Only
```

Mother_CalculatedRace = '09' when the mother is Other Race Only and any of the following: "His" (i.e., Hispanic), "Lat" (i.e., Latin, Latina, Latino), "Mex" (i.e., Mexican), "Cub" (i.e., Cuban), "Puer" (i.e., Puerto Rican) or "Col" (i.e., Colombian) are not found in the Other Race Literal field

```
Mother_CalculatedRace = '10' when the mother is Vietnamese Only
Mother_CalculatedRace = '11' when the mother is Asian Indian Only
Mother_CalculatedRace = '12' when the mother is Asian Other Only
Mother_CalculatedRace = '13' when the mother is Guamanian Only
Mother_CalculatedRace = '14' when the mother is Samoan Only
Mother_CalculatedRace = '15' when the mother is Pacific Islander Only
```

Mother_CalculatedRace = '99' when the mother's race is Unknown Only or if no race is indicated for the mother

Mother_CalculatedRace = '20' when the mother's race is not 01-15 or 99

^{*} This explanation contains data field names present in the birth data for years 2004 to present, in the death data for years 2005 to present, and in the fetal death data for years 2006 to present.

EXPLANATION OF CALCULATED ETHNICITY FIELDS

There are calculated ethnicity fields in each of the vital statistics data tables (Birthmaster, Birthstat, Fetalmaster, Fetalstat, Deathmaster, and Deathstat). The field names are listed by event in the table below.

Vital Statistics Event	Calculated Ethnicity Field
Birth*	mother_calculatedhisp father_calculatedhisp
Fetal Death*	mother_calculatedhisp
Death*	calculatedhisp

Below is an explanation of the codes used to define the calculated ethnicity fields in the vital statistics data tables. In the following explanation, 'Mother_CalculatedHisp' may be substituted with 'Father_CalculatedHisp' or 'CalculatedHisp'.

Mother_CalculatedHisp = '00' when mother is Not Hispanic; ethnicity is known, but mother is not Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central/South American, Other Hispanic, or Haitian

Mother_CalculatedHisp = '01' when mother is Mexican Alone or Mexican with Unknown Ethnicity

Mother_CalculatedHisp = '02' when mother is Puerto Rican Alone or Puerto Rican with Unknown Ethnicity

Mother_CalculatedHisp = '03' when mother is Cuban Alone or Cuban with Unknown Ethnicity

Mother_CalculatedHisp = '05' when mother is Other Hispanic Alone, Other Hispanic with Unknown Ethnicity, or 2 or more Hispanic ethnicities indicated**

Mother_CalculatedHisp = '06' when mother is Haitian Alone or Haitian with Another Ethnicity

Mother_CalculatedHisp = '99' when mother is Unknown Ethnicity Alone or when responses to all separate ethnicity fields are No, Unknown, or NULL

^{*} This explanation contains data field names present in the birth data for years 2004 to present, in the death data for years 2005 to present, and in the fetal death data for years 2006 to present.

^{**} Prior to 2011, the code '04' was used to denote persons who were of Central/South American ethnicity. As of January 1, 2011, individuals who fall into to Central/South American ethnic group will be coded as '05'.

LINKING BIRTH RECORDS TO DEATH RECORDS

Create Birth Extract File

 Select all Births from a particular calendar year (e.g. Event_Year = 2008).

Create Infant Death Extract File

Select all Infant Deaths (age_code = 2, 4, 5, or 6) associated with a birth occurring in Florida (Birth_State_Code = 10) from the same calendar year [e.g. Link_Bir_DOB_Year in (2008, 2009); some infants born in one calendar year may die during the following calendar year].

Match the Death_SFN field on the Birth record to the State_File_Number (or the Event_Year concatenated with Certnumber) on the Death record; *OR* match the Birth_SFN field on the Death record to the State_File_Number (or the Event_Year concatenated with Certnumber) on the Birth record.

LIST OF 113 SELECTED CAUSE OF DEATH GROUPS

000	CALLOS OF DEATH (IOD 40 INCLUDIONO)
<u>GRP</u>	CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)
001	SALMONELLA INFECTIONS (A01-A02)
002	SHIGELLOSIS & AMEBIASIS (A03, A06)
003	CERTAIN OTHER INTESTINAL INFECTIONS (A04, A07-A09)
	TUBERCULOSIS (A16-A19)
004 005	RESPIRATORY TUBERCULOSIS (A16) OTHER TUBERCULOSIS (A17-A19)
006	WHOOPING COUGH (A37)
007	SCARLET FEVER & ERYSIPELAS (A38, A46)
008	MENINGOCOCCAL INFECTION (A39)
009	SEPTICEMIA (A40-A41)
010	SYPHILIS (A50-A53)
011	ACUTE POLIOMYELITIS (A80)
012	ARTHROPOD-BORNE VIRAL ENCEPHALITITS (A83-A84, A85.2)
013	MEASLES (B05)
014 015	VIRAL HEPATITIS (B15-B19) HUMAN IMMUNODEFICIENCY VIRUS (HIV) DISEASE (B20-B24)
015	MALARIA (B50-B54)
017	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED INFECTIOUS & PARASITIC DISEASES & SEQUELAE (A00, A05, A20-A36,
•	A42-A44, A48-A49, A54-A79, A81-A82, A85.0-A85.1, A85.8, A86-B04, B06-B09, B25-B49, B55-B99,
	U07.1)
	MALIGNANT NEOPLASMS (CANCER) (C00-C97)
018	LIP, ORAL CAVITY & PHARYNX (C00-C14)
019	ESOPHAGUS (C15)
020	STOMACH (C16)
021 022	COLON, RECTUM & ANUS (C18-C21) LIVER & INTRAHEPATIC BILE DUCTS (C22)
022	PANCREAS (C25)
024	LARYNX (C32)
025	TRACHEA, BRONCHUS & LUNG (C33-C34)
026	SKIN (C43)
027	BREAST (C50)
028	CERVIX UTERI (C53)
029	CORPUS UTERI & UTERUS, PART UNSPECIFIED (C54-C55)
030	OVARY (C56)
031 032	PROSTATE (C61) KIDNEY & RENAL PELVIS (C64-C65)
032	BLADDER (C67)
034	MENINGES, BRAIN & OTHER PARTS OF CENTRAL NERVOUS SYSTEM (C70-C72)
	LYMPHOID, HEMATOPOIETIC & RELATED TISSUE (C81-C96)
035	HODGKÍN'S DISEASE (C81)
036	NON-HODGKIN'S LYMPHOMA (C82-C85)
037	LEUKEMIA (C91-C95)
038	MULTIPLE MYELOMA & IMMUNOPROLIFERATIVE NEOPLASMS (C88, C90)
039	OTHER/UNSPEC - LYMPHOID, HEMATOPOIETIC & RELATED TISSUE (C96)
040	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED MALIGNANT NEOPLASMS (C17, C23-C24, C26-C31, C37-C41, C44-C49, C51-C52, C57-C60, C62-C63, C66, C68-C69, C73-C80, C97)
041	IN SITU/BENIGN & NEOPLASMS OF UNCERTAIN/UNKNOWN BEHAVIOR (D00-D48)
042	ANEMIAS (D50-D64)
043	DIABETES MELLITUS (E10-E14)
	NUTRITIONAL DEFICIÈNCIES (É40-E64)
044	MALNUTRITION (E40-E46)
045	OTHER NUTRITIONAL DEFICIENCIES (E50-E64)
046	MENINGITIS (G00, G03)
047	PARKINSON'S DISEASE (G20-G21)
048	ALZHEIMER'S DISEASE (G30)
	MAJOR CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASES (100-178)

<u>GRP</u>	CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)
	HEART DISEASES (I00-I09, I11, I13, I20-I51)
049	ACUTE RHEUMATIC FEVER & CHRONIC RHEUMATIC HEART DIS (100-109)
050	HYPERTENSIVE HEART DISEASE (I11)
051	HYPERTENSIVE HEART & RENAL DISÉASE (I13)
	ISCHEMIC HEART DISEASES (I20-I25)
052	ACUTE MYOCARDIAL INFARCTION (I21-I22)
053	OTHER ACUTE ISCHEMIC HEART DÌSEASÉS (124)
	OTHER FORMS OF CHRONIC ISCHEMIC HEART DISEASE (I20, I25)
054	ATHEROSCLEROTIC CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASE, SO DESCRÍBED (125.0)
055	OTHER FORMS OF CHRONIC ISCHEMIC HEART DIS (120, 125.1-125.9)
	OTHER HEART DISEASES (I26-I51)
056	ACUTE & SUBACUTE ENDOCARDITIS (I33)
057	DISEASES OF PERICARDIUM & ACUTE MYOCARDITIS (I30-I31, I40)
058	HEART FAILURE (I50)
059	OTHER FORMS OF HEART DISEASE (I26-I28, I34-I38, I42-I49, I51)
060	ESSENTIAL (PRIMARY) HYPERTENSION & HYPERTENSIVE RENAL DIS (I10, I12, I15)
061	CEREBROVASCULAR DISEASES (I60-I69)
062	ATHEROSCLEROSIS (I70)
	OTHER DISEASES OF CIRCULATORY SYSTEM (I71-I78)
063	AORTIC ANEURYSM & DISSECTION (I71)
064	OTHER DISEASES OF ARTERIES, ARTERIOLES & CAPILLARIES (172-178)
065	OTHER DISORDERS OF CIRCULATORY SYSTEM (I80-I99)
	INFLUENZA & PNEUMONIA (J09-J18)
066	INFLUENZA (J09-J11)
067	PNEUMONIA (J12-J18)
068	OTHER ACUTE LOWER RESPIRATORY INFECTIONS (J20-J22, U04)
069	ACUTE BRONCHITIS & BRONCHIOLITIS (J20-J21) OTHER AND UNSPECIFIED ACUTE LOWER RESPIRATORY INFECTION (J22, U04)
	CHRONIC LOWER RESPIRATORY DISEASES (J40-J47)
070	BRONCHITIS, CHRONIC & UNSPECIFIED (J40-J42)
071	EMPHYSEMA (J43)
072	ASTHMA (J45-J46)
073	OTHER CHRONIC LOWER RESPIRATORY DISEASES (J44, J47)
074	PNEUMOCONIOSES & CHEMICAL EFFECTS (J60-J66, J68, U07.0)
075	PNEUMONITIS DUE TO SOLIDS & LIQUIDS (J69)
076	OTHER DISEASES OF RESPIRATORY SYSTEM (J00-J06, J30-J39, J67, J70-J98)
077	PEPTIC ULCER (K25-K28)
078	DISEASES OF APPENDIX (K35-K38)
079	HERNIA (K40-K46)
	CHRONIC LIVER DISEASE & CIRRHOSIS (K70, K73-K74)
080	ALCOHOLIC LIVER DISEASE (K70)
081	OTHER CHRONIC LIVER DISEASE & CIRRHOSIS (K73-K74)
082	CHOLELITHIASIS & OTHER DISORDERS OF GALLBLADDER (K80-K82)
	NEPHRITIS, NEPHROTIC SYNDROME & NEPHROSIS (N00-N07, N17-N19, N25-N27)
083	ACUTE & PROGRESSIVE NEPHRITIC & NEPHROTIC SYNDROME (N00-N01, N04)
084	CHRONIC GLOMERULONEPHRITIS, NEPHRITIS & RENAL SCLEROSIS UNSPEC (N02-N03,
005	N05-N07, N26)
085	RENAL FAILURE (N17-N19)
086	OTHER DISORDERS OF KIDNEY (N25, N27)
087	INFECTIONS OF KIDNEY (N10-N12, N13.6, N15.1)
088	HYPERPLASIA OF PROSTATE (N40)
089	INFLAMMATORY DISEASES OF FEMALE PELVIC ORGANS (N70-N76)
090	PREGNANCY, CHILDBIRTH & THE PUERPERIUM (000-099) PREGNANCY WITH ABORTIVE OUTCOME (000-007)
090	OTHER COMPLICATIONS OF PREGNANCY, CHILDBIRTH & PUERPERIUM (O10-099)
091	CERTAIN CONDITIONS ORIGINATING IN THE PERINATAL PERIOD (P00-P96)
093	CONGEN. MALFORMATION, DEFORMATION & CHROMOSOMAL ABNORM (Q00-Q99)
000	33.132.1. III AL GIAIN (1131), DEI GIAIN (11314 & GIII (11000000)

FLORIDA VITAL STATISTICS CODE MANUAL FOR DEATH

<u>GRP</u>	CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)
094	SYMPTOMS, SIGNS & ABNORMAL CLINIC/LAB FINDINGS, NEC (R00-R99)
095	ALL OTHER DISEASES (RESIDUAL) (D65-E07, E15-E34, E65-F99, G04-G14, G23-G25, G31-H93,
	K00-K22, K29-K31, K50-K66, K71-K72, K75-K76, K83-M99, N13.0-N13.5, N13.7-N13.9, N14, N15.0,
	N15.8-N15.9, N20-N23, N28-N39, N41-N64, N80-N98) UNINTENTIONAL INJURIES (ACCIDENTS) (V01-X59, Y85-Y86)
	TRANSPORT ACCIDENTS (V01-V99, Y85)
096	MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENTS (V02-V04, V09.0, V09.2, V12-V14, V19.0-V19.2, V19.4-V19.6,
	V20-V79, V80.3-V80.5, V81.0-V81.1, V82.0-V82.1, V83-V86, V87.0-V87.8, V88.0-V88.8,
	V89.0, V89.2)
097	OTHER LAND TRANSPORT ACCIDENTS (V01, V05-V06, V09.1, V09.3-V09.9, V10-V11, V15-
	V18, V19.3, V19.8-V19.9, V80.0-V80.2, V80.6-V80.9, V81.2-V81.9, V82.2-V82.9, V87.9, V88.9,
000	V89.1, V89.3, V89.9)
098	WATER, AIR-SPACE, OTH/UNSPEC TRANSPORT ACC & SEQUELAE (V90-V99, Y85)
099	NONTRANSPORT ACCIDENTS (W00-X59, Y86) FALLS (W00-W19)
100	ACCIDENTAL DISCHARGEOF FIREARMS (W32-W34)
101	ACCIDENTAL DROWNING & SUBMERSION (W65-W74)
102	ACCIDENTAL EXPOSURE TO SMOKE, FIRE & FLAMES (X00-X09)
103	ACCIDENTAL POISONING & EXPOSURE TO NOXIOUS SUBSTANCES (X40-X49)
104	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED NONTRANSPORT ACCIDENTS & SEQUELAE (W20-W31, W35-W64,
	W75-W99, X10-X39, X50-X59, Y86)
	INTENTIONAL SELF-HARM (SUICIDE) (X60-X84, Y87.0, U03)
105	BY DISCHARGE OF FIREARMS (X72-X74)
106 	BY OTHER/UNSPECIFIED MEANS & SEQUELAE (X60-X71, X75-X84, Y87.0, U03) ASSAULT (HOMICIDE) (X85-Y09, Y87.1, U01-U02)
107	BY DISCHARGE OF FIREARMS (X93-X95, U01.4)
108	BY OTHER/UNSPECIFIED MEANS & SEQUELAE (X85-X92, X96-Y09, Y87.1, U01.0-U01.3,
	U01.5-U01.9, U02)
109	LEGAL INTERVENTION (Y35, Y89.0)
	EVENTS OF UNDETERMINED INTENT (Y10-Y34, Y87.2, Y89.9)
110	BY DISCHARGE OF FIREARMS (Y22-Y24)
111	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED EVENTS & SEQUELAE (Y10-Y21, Y25-Y34, Y87.2, Y89.9)
112	OPERATIONS OF WAR & SEQUELAE (Y36, Y89.1)
113	COMPLICATIONS OF MEDICAL & SURGICAL CARE (Y40-Y84, Y88)

LIST OF 130 SELECTED CAUSE OF INFANT DEATH GROUPS

GRP	CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)
	CERTAIN INFECTIOUS & PARASITIC DISEASES (A00-B99, U07.1)
AA	CERTAIN INTESTINAL INFECTIOUS DISEASES (A00-A08)
AB	DIARRHEA & GASTROENTERITIS OF PRESUMED INFECTIOUS ORIGIN (A09)
AC	TUBERCULOSIS (A16-A19)
AD	TETANUS (A33, A35)
AE	DIPHTHERIA (A36)
AF	WHOOPING COUGH (A37)
AG	MENINGOCOCCAL INFECTION (A39)
AH	SEPTICEMIA (A40-A41)
Al	CONGENITAL SYPHILIS (A50)
AJ	GONOCOCCAL INFECTION (A54)
 ^!⁄	VIRAL DISEASES (A80-B34)
AK AL	ACUTE POLIOMYELITIS (A80) VARICELLA (CHICKENPOX) (B01)
AM	MEASLES (B05)
AN	HUMAN IMMUNODEFICIENCY VIRUS (HIV) DISEASE (B20-B24)
AO	MUMPS (B26)
AP	OTHER/UNSPEC VIRAL DISEASES (A81-B00, B02-B04, B06-B19, B25, B27-B34, U07.1)
AQ	CANDIDIASIS (B37)
AR	MALARIA (B50-B54)
AS	PNEUMOCYSTOSIS (B59)
AT	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED INFECTIOUS & PARASITIC DISEASES & SEQUELAE (A20-A32, A38,
	A42-A49, A51-A53, A55-A79, B35-B36, B38-B49, B55-B58, B60-B99)
	NEOPLASMS (C00-D48)
 ^!!	MALIGNANT NEOPLASMS (CANCER) (C00-C97)
AU	HODGKIN'S DISEASE & NON-HODGKIN'S LYMPHOMAS (C81-C85)
AV AW	LEUKEMIA (C91-C95)
AX	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED MALIGNANT NEOPLASMS (C00-C80, C88, C90, C96-C97) IN SITU/BENIGN & NEOPLASMS OF UNCERTAIN/UNKNOWN BEHAVIOR (D00-D48)
	DIS. BLOOD/BLOOD-FORMING ORGANS & DISORDER INV IMMUNE MECH (D50-D49)
AY	ANEMIAS (D50-D64)
AZ	HEMORRHAGIC COND & OTH DIS. BLOOD/BLOOD-FORMING ORGANS (D65-D76)
BA	CERTAIN DISORDERS INVOLVING THE IMMUNE MECHANISM (B80-D89)
	ENDOCRINE, NUTRITIONAL & METABOLIC DISEASES (E00-E88)
BB	SHORT STATURE, NEC (E34.3)
BC	NUTRITIONAL DEFICIENCIES (E40-E64)
BD	CYSTIC FIBROSIS (E84)
BE	VOLUME DEPLET, DISORDER OF FLUID, ELECTROLYTE, ACID-BASE BAL (E86-E87)
BF	OTHER ENDOCRINE, NUTRITIONAL & METABOLIC DISEASES (E00-E32, E34.0-E34.2, E34.4-
	E34.9, E65-E83, E85, E88)
 BG	DISEASES OF THE NERVOUS SYSTEM (G00-G98) MENINGITIS (G00-G03)
BH	INFANTILE SPINAL MUSCULAR ATROPHY, TYPE 1 (WERDNIG-HOFFMAN) (G12.0)
BI	INFANTILE CEREBRAL PALSY (G80)
BJ	ANOXIC BRAIN DAMAGE, NEC (G93.1)
BK	OTHER DISEASES OF NERVOUS SYSTEM (G04, G06-G11, G12.1-G12.9, G20-G72, G81-G92,
	G93.0, G93.2-G93.9, G95-G98)
BL	DISEASES OF THE EAR & MASTOID PROCESS (H60-H93)
	DISEASES OF THE CIRCULATORY SYSTEM (100-199)
BM	PULMONARY HEART DISEASE & DIS OF PULMONARY CIRCULATION (I26-I28)
BN	PERICARDITIS, ENDOCARDITIS & MYOCARDITIS (I30, I33, I40)
ВО	CARDIOMYOPATHY (I42)
BP BO	CARDIAC ARREST (I46)
BQ BB	CEREBROVASCULAR DISEASES (160-169)
BR 	OTHER DIS OF CIRC SYS (100-125, 131, 134-138, 144-145, 147-151, 170-199) DISEASES OF THE RESPIRATORY SYSTEM (J00-J98, U04)
	DIOLAGES OF THE RESPIRATORY STOTEW (JUU-J80, UU4)

<u>GRP</u>	CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)
BS	ACUTE UPPER RESPIRATORY INFECTIONS (J00-J06)
	INFLUENZA & PNEUMONIA (J09-J18)
BT	INFLUENZA (J09-J11)
BU	PNEUMONIA (J12-J18)
BV	ACUTE BRONCHITIS & ACUTE BRONCHIOLITIS (J20-J21)
BW	BRONCHITIS, CHRONIC & UNSPECIFIED (J40-J42)
BX	ASTHMA (J45-J46)
BY	PNEUMONITIS DUE TO SOLIDS & LIQUIDS (J69)
BZ	OTHER/UNSPEC DIS OF REQP SYS (J22, J30-J39, J43-J44, J47-J68, J70-J98, U04)
 C A	DISEASES OF THE DIGESTIVE SYSTEM (K00-K92)
CA CB	GASTRITIS, DUODENITIS, NONINFECTIVE ENTERITIS/COLITIS (K29, K50-K55) HERNIA ABDOMINAL CAVITY & INTESTINAL OBSTR W/O HERNIA (K40-K46, K56)
CC	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED DIS OF DIGESTIVE SYSTEM (K00-K28, K30-K38, K57-K92)
	DISEASES OF THE GENITOURINARY SYSTEM (N00-N95)
CD	RENAL FAILURE & OTHER DISORDERS OF THE KIDNEY (N17-N19, N25, N27)
CE	OTHER/UNSPEC DIS OF GENITOURINARY SYS (N00-N15, N20-N23, N26, N28-N95)
	CERTAIN CONDITIONS ORIGINATING IN THE PERINATAL PERIOD (P00-P96)
	NEWBORN AFFECT BY MATERNAL FACTOR & COMPL PREG/LABOR/DEL (P00-P04)
CF	MATERNAL HYPERTENSIVE DISORDERS (P00.0)
CG	OTHER MATERNAL COND UNRELATED TO PRESENT PREGNANCY (P00.1-P00.9)
	MATERNAL COMPLICATIONS OF PREGNANCY (P01)
CH	INCOMPETENT CERVIX (P01.0)
CI	PREMATURE RUPTURE OF MEMBRANES (P01.1)
CJ	MULTIPLE PREGNANCY (P01.5)
CK	OTHER MATERNAL COMPLICATIONS OF PREG (P01.2-P01.4, P01.6-P01.9)
	COMPLICATIONS OF PLACENTA, CORD & MEMBRANES (P02)
CL	COMPLICATIONS INVOLVING PLACENTA (P02.0-P02.3)
CM	COMPLICATIONS INVOLVING CORD (P02.4-P02.6)
CN	CHORIOAMNIONITIS (P02.7)
CO CP	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED ABNORMALITIES OF MEMBRANES (P02.8-P02.9) OTHER COMPLICATIONS OF LABOR & DELIVERY (P03)
CQ	NOXIOUS INFLUENCES TRANSMITTED VIA PLACENTA OR BREAST MILK (P04)
	DISORDERS RELATED TO GESTATION LENGTH & FETAL MALNUTRIT (P05-P08)
CR	SLOW FETAL GROWTH & FETAL MALNUTRITION (P05)
	DISORDERS REL TO SHORT GESTATION & LOW BIRTH WEIGHT, NEC (P07)
CS	EXTREMELY LOW BIRTH WEIGHT OR EXTREME IMMATURITY (P07.0, P07.2)
CT	OTHER LOW BIRTH WEIGHT OR PRETERM (P07.1, P07.3)
CU	DISORDERS RELATED TO LONG GESTATION & HIGH BIRTH WEIGHT (P08)
CV	BIRTH TRAUMA (P10-P15)
	INTRAUTERINE HYPOXIA & BIRTH ASPHYXIA (P20-P21)
CW	INTRAUTERINE HYPOXIA (P20)
CX	BIRTH ASPHYXIA (P21)
CY	RESPIRATORY DISTRESS OF NEWBORN (P22)
	OTH RESPIRATORY CONDITIONS ORIGINATING IN PERINATAL PERIOD (P23-P28)
CZ	CONGENITAL PNEUMONIA (P23)
DA	NEONATAL ASPIRATION SYNDROMES (P24)
DB DC	INTERSTITIAL EMPHYSEMA & RELATED CONDITIONS (P25)
DD	PULMONARY HEMORRHAGE (P26) CHRONIC RESPIRATORY DISEASE (P27)
DE	ATELECTASIS (P28.0-P28.1)
DF	OTHER RESPIRATORY CONDITIONS (P28.2-P28.9)
	INFECTIONS SPECIFIC TO THE PERINATAL PERIOD (P35-P39)
DG	BACTERIAL SEPSIS OF NEWBORN (P36)
DH	OMPHALITIS OF NEWBORN W/WO MILD HEMORRHAGE (P38)
DI	OTHER INFECTIONS (P35, P37, P39)
	HEMORRHAGIC & HEMATOLOGICAL DISORDERS OF NEWBORN (P50-P61)
DJ	NEONATAL HEMORRHAGE (P50-P52, P54)
	400

LIST OF 130 SELECTED CAUSE OF INFANT DEEATH GROUPS (continued)

<u>GRP</u>	CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)
DK DL DM DN	HEMORRHAGIC DISEASE OF NEWBORN (P53) HEMOLYTIC DISORDER DUE TO ISOIMMUNIZ/OTH PERINAT JAUNDICE (P55-P59) HEMATOLOGICAL DISORDERS (P60-P61) SYNDROME OF INFANT OF DIABETIC MOTHER & NEONAT DIABETES (P70.0-P70.2)
DO	NECROTIZING ENTEROCOLITIS OF NEWBORN (P77)
DP DQ	HYDROPS FETALIS NOT DUE TO HEMOLYTIC DÌSEÁSE (P83.2) OTHER PERINATAL CONDITIONS (P29, P70.3-P70.9, P71-P76, P78-P81, P83.0-P83.1, P83.3-P83.9, P90-P96)
	CONGEN. MALFORMATION, DEFORMATION & CHROMOSOMAL ABNORM (Q00-Q99)
DR DS	ANENCEPHALY & SIMILAR MALFORMATIONS (Q00)
DT	CONGENITAL HYDROCEPHALUS (Q03) SPINA BIFIDA (Q05)
DU	OTHER CONGENITAL MALFORMATION OF NERVOUS SYS (Q01-Q02, Q04, Q06-Q07)
DV	CONGENITAL MALFORMATIONS OF HEART (Q20-Q24)
DW	OTHER CONGENITAL MALFORMATIONS OF CIRCULATORY SYSTEM (Q25-Q28)
DX	CONGENITAL MALFORMATIONS OF RESPIRATORY SYSTEM (Q30-Q34)
DY DZ	CONGENITAL MALFORMATIONS OF DIGESTIVE SYSTEM (Q35-Q45) CONGENITAL MALFORMATIONS OF GENITOURINARY SYSTEM (Q50-Q64)
EA	CONG MALFORM/DEFORM – MUSCULOSKELET SYS, LIMB, INTEGUMENT (Q65-Q85)
EB	DOWN'S SYNDROME (Q90)
EC	EDWARD SYNDROME (Q91.0-Q91.3)
ED	PATAU SYNDROME (Q91.4-Q91.7)
EE	OTHER CONGENITAL MALFORMATIONS & DEFORMATIONS (Q10-Q18, Q86-Q89)
EF 	OTHER CHROMOSOMAL ABNORMALITIES, NEC (Q92-Q99) SYMPTOMS, SIGNS & ABNORMAL CLINICAL/LAB FINDINGS, NEC (R00-R99)
EG	SUDDEN INFANT DEATH SYNDROME (R95)
EH	OTHER SYMPTOMS, SIGNS & ABNORMAL CLINICAL/LAB FINDINGS, NEC (R00-R53, R55-R94, R96-R99)
El	ALL OTHER DISEASES (RESIDUAL) (F01-F99, H00-H57, L00-M99)
	EXTERNAL CAUSES OF MORTALITY (V01-Y89, U01) UNINTENTIONAL INJURIES (ACCIDENTS) (V01-X59)
	TRANSPORT ACCIDENTS (V01-V99)
EJ	MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENTS (V02-V04, V09.0, V09.2, V12-V14, V19.0-V19.2, V19.4-
	V19.6, V20-V79, V80.3-V80.5, V81.0-V81.1, V82.0-V82.1, V83-V86, V87.0-V87.8, V88.0-V88.8, V89.0, V89.2)
EK	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED TRANSPORT ACCIDENTS & SEQUELAE (V01, V05-V06, V09.1, V09.3-V09.9, V10-V11, V15-V18, V19.3, V19.8-V19.9, V80.0-V80.2, V80.6-V80.9, V81.2-
	V81.9, V82.2-V82.9, V87.9, V88.9, V89.1, V89.3, V89.9, V90-V99)
EL	FALLS (W00-W19)
EM	ACCIDENTAL DISCHARGE OF FIREARMS (W32-W34)
EN	ACCIDENTAL DROWNING & SUBMERSION (W65-W74)
EO EP	ACCIDENTAL SUFFOCATION & STRANGULATION IN BED (W75) OTH ACCIDENTAL SUFFOCATION & STRANGULATION (W76-W77, W81-W84)
EQ	ACC INHALATE/INGESTION FOOD/OTH OBJ-OBSTR RESP TRACT (W78-W80)
ER	ACCIDENTS CAUSE BY EXPOSURE TO SMOKE, FIRE & FLAMES (X00-X09)
ES	ACCIDENTAL POISONING & EXPOSURE TO NOXIOUS SUBSTANCE (X40-X49)
ET	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED ACCIDENTS & SEQUELAE (W20-W31, W35-W64, W85-W99, X10-
	X39, X50-X59)
 EU	ASSAULT (HOMICIDE) (X85-Y09, U01) BY HANGING, STRANGULATION & SUFFOCATION (X91)
EV	BY DISCHARGE OF FIREARMS (X93-X95, U01.4)
EW	BY NEGLECT, ABANDONMENT & OTH MALTREATMENT SYNDROME (Y06-Y07)
EX	BY OTHER/UNSPECIFIED MEANS & SEQUELAE (U01.0-U01.3, U01.5-U01.9, X85-X90,
	X92, X96-Y05, Y08-Y09)
EY	COMPLICATIONS OF MEDICAL & SURGICAL CARE (Y40-Y84)
EZ	OTHER EXTERNAL CAUSES & SEQUELAE (Y10-Y36)

LIST OF 358 SELECTED CAUSE OF DEATH GROUPS

GRP CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)

I. CERTAIN INFECTIONS & PARASITIC DISEASES (A00-B99, U07.1)

```
INTESTINAL INFECTIOUS DISEASES (A00-A09)
001
              CHOLERA (A00)
              OTHER INTESTINAL INFECTIOUS DISEASES (A01-A08)
002
                 TYPHOID FEVER (A01.0)
                 PARATYPHOID FEVERS & OTHER SALMONELLA INFECTION (A01.1-A01.4, A02)
003
004
                 SHIGELLOSIS (A03)
005
                 OTHER BACTERIAL FOOD-BORNE INTOXICATIONS (A05)
006
                 AMEBIASIS (A06)
                 INTESTINAL INFECTIONS DUE TO OTHER SPEC ORGANISMS (A04, A07-A08)
007
              DIARRHEA & GASTROENTERITIS OF PRESUMED INFECTIOUS ORIGIN (A09)
800
            TUBERCULOSIS (A16-A19)
              RESPIRATORY TUBERCULOSIS (A16)
009
010
              OTHER TUBERCULOSIS (A17-A19)
            ZOONOTIC & OTHER BACTERIAL DISEASES (A20-A49)
011
              PLAGUE (A20)
              BRUCELLOSIS (A23)
012
013
              TETNUS (A33-A35)
014
              DIPTHERIA (A36)
              WHOOPING COUGH (A37)
015
              SCARLET FEVER & ERYSIPELAS (A38, A46)
016
017
              MENINGOCOCCAL INFECTION (A39)
018
              SEPTICEMIA (A40-A41)
              OTHER ZOONOTIC & BACTERIAL DISEASE (A21-A22, A24-A32, A42-A44, A48-A49)
019
            INFECTIONS WITH A PREDOMINANTLY SEXUAL MODE OF TRANSMISSION (A50-A64)
---
              SYPHILIS (A50-A53)
                 CARDIOVASCULAR SYPHILIS (A52.0)
020
021
                 NEUROSYPHILIS (A52.1-A52.3)
022
                 OTHER & UNSPECIFIED SYPHILIS (A50-A51, A52.7-A52.9, A53)
023
              GONOCOCCAL INFECTION (A54)
024
              OTH INFECTION W/ PREDOMINANTLY SEXUAL MODE OF TRANSMISSION (A55-A64)
            OTH INFECTION CAUSED BY SPIROCHETES, CHLAMYDIA OR RICKETTSIA (A65-A79)
025
              LYME DISEASE (A69.2)
026
              TYPHUS FEVER (A75)
027
              OTHER INFECTION CAUSED BY SPIROCHETES, CHLAMYDIA OR RICKETTSIA (A65-A68,
              A69.0-A69.1, A69.8-A69.9, A70-A74, A77-A79)
            VIRAL DISEASES (A80-B34)
028
              ACUTE POLIOMYELITIS (A80)
029
              RABIES (A82)
030
              ARTHROPOD-BORNE VIRAL ENCEPHALITIS (A83-A84, A85.2)
              YELLOW FEVER (A95)
031
032
              OTH/UNSPEC ARTHROPOD-BORNE VIRAL/HEMORRHAG FEVER (A90-A94, A96-A99)
              HERPES VIRAL (HERPES SIMPLEX) INFECTIONS (B00)
033
              ZOSTER (HERPES ZOSTER) (B02)
034
035
              SMALLPOX (B03)
036
              MEASLES (B05)
037
              RUBELLA (GERMAN MEASLES) (B06)
038
              VIRAL HEPATITIS (B15-B19)
              HUMAN IMMUNODEFICIENCY VIRUS (HIV) DISEASE (B20-B24)
                 HIV DISEASE RESULTING IN INFECTIOUS & PARASITIC DISEASES (B20)
039
040
                HIV DISEASE RESULTING IN MALIGNANT NEOPLASMS (B21)
041
                HIV DISEASE RESULTING IN OTHER SPECIFIED DISEASES (B22)
042
                HIV DISEASE RESULTING IN OTHER CONDITIONS (B23)
043
                 UNSPECIFIED HIV DISEASE (B24)
```

<u>GRP</u> **CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)** I. CERTAIN INFECTIONS & PARASITIC DISEASES (A00-B99, U07.1)... continued 044 OTHER/UNSPECIFIED VIRAL DISEASE (A81, A85.0-A85.1, A85.8, A86-A89, B01, B04, B07-B09, B25-B34, U07.1) OTHER/UNSPEC INFECTIOUS & PARASITIC DISEASES & SEQUELAE (B35-B99) 045 MYCOSES (B35-B49) PROTOZOAL DISEASES (B50-B64) 046 MALARIA (B50-B54) LEISHMANIASIS (B55) 047 TRYPTANOSOMIASIS (B56-B57) 048 049 PNEUMOCYSTOSIS (B59) OTHER/UNSPECIFIED PROTOZOAL DISEASES (B58, B60-B64) 050 **HELMINTHIASES (B65-B83)** SCHISTOSOMIASIS (BILHARZIASIS) (B65) 051 OTHER/UNSPECIFIED HELMINTHIASES (B66-B83) 052 053 SEQUELAE OF TUBERCULOSIS (B90) 054 SEQUELAE OF POLIOMYELITIS (B91) 055 OTHER/UNSPEC INFECTIOUS & PARASITIC DIS & SEQUELAE (B85-B89, B92-B99) II. NEOPLASMS (C00-D48) MALIGNANT NEOPLASMS (CANCER) (C00-C97) ---CANCER OF LIP, ORAL CAVITY & PHARYNX (C00-C14) 056 LIP (C00) 057 TONGUE (C01-C02) PHARYNX (C10-C13, C14.0) 058 OTH/UNSPEC SITE W/IN LIP, ORAL CAV & PHARYNX (C03-C09, C14.2-C14.8) 059 CANCER OF DIGESTIVE ORGANS (C15-C26) 060 ESOPHAGUS (C15) STOMACH (C16) 061 062 SMALL INTESTINE (C17) COLON, RECTUM & ANUS (C18-C21) 063 COLON (C18) 064 RECTOSIGMOID JUNCTION & RECTUM (C19-C20) 065 ANUS & ANAL CANAL (C21) LIVER & INTRAHEPATIC BILE DUCTS (C22) 066 LIVER (C22.0, C22.2-C22.9) INTRAHEPATIC BILE DUCT CARCINOMA (C22.1) 067 068 GALLBLADDER & EXTRAHEPATIC BILE DUCTS (C23-C24) PANCREAS (C25) 069 070 OTHER & ILL-DEFINED DIGESTIVE ORGANS (C26) CANCER OF RESPIRATORY & INTRATHORACIC ORGANS (C30-C39) 071 NASAL CAVITY, MIDDLE EAR & ACCESSORY SINUSES (C30-C31) LARYNX (C32) 072 TRACHEA, BRONCHUS & LUNG (C33-C34) 073 074 THYMUS, HEART, MEDIASTINUM & PLEURA (C37-C38) 075 OTHER/ILL-DEFINED SITES IN RESP SYS & INTRATHORACIC ORGANS (C39) CANCER OF BONE & ARTICULAR CARTILAGE (C40-C41) 076 MELANOMA & OTHER CANCER OF SKIN (C43-C44) 077 MELIGNANT MELANOMA OF SKIN (C43) OTHER CANCER OF SKIN (C44) 078 CANCER OF MESOTHELIAL & SOFT TISSUE (C45-C49) 079 MESOTHELIOMA (C45) KAPOSI'S SARCOMA (C46) 080 081 OTHER MESOTHELIAL & SOFT TISSUE (C47-C49) 082 CANCER OF BREAST (C50)

CANCER OF FEMALE GENITAL ORGANS (C51-C58)

GRP CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)

II. NEOPLASMS (C00-D48)... continued

083	VULVA & VAGINA (C51-C52)
084	CERVIX UTERI (C53)
085	CORPUS UTERÌ & UTERUS, PART UNSPECIFIED (C54-C55)
086	OVARY (C56)
087	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED FEMALE GENITAL ORGANS (C57)
088	PLACENTA (C58)
	CANCER OF MALE GENITAL ORGANS (C60-C63)
089	PROSTATE (C61)
090	TESTIS (C62)
091	PENIS & OTHER/UNSPECIFIED MALE GENITAL ORGANS (C60, C63)
	CANCER OF URINARY TRACT (C64-C68)
092	KIDNEY & RENAL PELVIS (C64-C65)
093	BLADDER (C67)
094	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED SITES WITHIN THE URINARY TRACT (C66, C68)
095	CANCER OF EYE & ADNEXA (C69)
	CANCER OF MENINGES, BRAIN & OTHER PARTS OF CENT NERV SYS (C70-C72)
096	BRAIN (C71)
097	OTHER PARTS OF CENTRAL NERVOUS SYSTEM (C70, C72)
098	CANCER OF THYROID & OTHER ENDOCRINE GLANDS (C73-C75)
099	OTHER CANCER OF OTHER/UNSPECIFIED SITES (C76-C80, C97)
	CANCER OF LYMPHOID, HEMATOPOIETIC & RELATED TISSUE (C81-C96)
100	HODGKIN'S DISEASE (C81)
	OTHER LYMPHOID, HEMATOPOIETIC & RELATED TISSUE (C82-C85, C96)
101	NON-HODGKIN'S LYMPHOMA (C82-C85)
102	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED LYMPHOID, HEMATOPOIETIC & RELATED TISSUE (C96)
103	MALIGNANT IMMUNOPROLIFERATIVE DISEASES (C88)
104	MULTIPLE MYELOMA & MALIGNANT PLASMA CELL NEOPLASMS (C90)
	LEUKEMIA (C91-C95)
105	LYMPHOID LEUKÉMIA (C91)
106	MYELOID LEUKEMIA (C92)
107	MONOCYTIC LEUKEMIA (C93)
108	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED LEUKEMIA (C94-C95)
	IN SITU NEOPLASMS (D00-D09)
109	CARCINOMA IN SITU OF BREAST & GENITOURINARY SYSTEM (D05-D07)
110	CARCINOMA IN SITU OF OTHER/UNSPECIFIED SITES (D00-D04, D09)
	BENIGN NEOPLASMS (D10-D36)
111	OF FEMALE GENITAL ORGANS (D25-D28)
112	OF EYE, BRAIN & OTHER PARTS OF CENTRAL NERVOUS SYSTEM (D31-D33)
113	OF OTHER/UNSPECIFIED SITES (D10-D24, D29-D30, D34-D36)
114	NEOPLASMS OF UNCERTAIN/UNKNOWN BEHAVIOR OF SPECIFIED SITES (D37-D47)
115	NEOPLASMS OF UNCERTAIN/UNKNOWN BEHAVIOR OF UNSPECIFIED SITES (D48)
	III. DIS BLOOD/BLOODFORMING ORGAN & DISORDER INV IMMUN MECH (D50-D89)
	III. DIO DEGODI DICIMINO DICONI A DIGONDEN INVINIMONI INEGIT (DOC DOC)
	ANEMIAS (D50-D64)
116	NUTRITIONAL ANEMIAS (D50-D53)
117	HEMOLYTIC ANEMIAS (D55-D59)
118	APLASTIC ANEMIAS (D60-D61)
119	ACUTE POSTHEMORRHAGIC & OTHER ANEMIAS (D62, D64)
120	COAGULATION DEFECTS, PURPURA & OTHER HEMORRHAGIC CONDITIONS (D65-D69)
1'71	OTHER RIGEROES OF BLOOD & BLOOD FORWARD ORGANIC (BES BES)
121	OTHER DISEASES OF BLOOD & BLOOD-FORMING ORGANS (D70-D76)
122	OTHER DISEASES OF BLOOD & BLOOD-FORMING ORGANS (D70-D76) CERTAIN DISORDERS INVOLVING THE IMMUNE SYSTEM (D80-D89)

FLORIDA VITAL STATISTICS CODE MANUAL FOR DEATH

<u>GRP</u>	CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)
	IV. ENDOCRINE, NUTRITIONAL & METABOLIC DISEASES (E00-E88)
123 124 125 126 127 128 129 130 131 132 133 134 135	ENDOCRINE DISEASES (E00-E34) DISORDERS OF THYROID GLAND (E00-E07) DIABETES MELLITUS (E10-E14) DISORDERS OF PITUITARY GLAND (E22-E23) DISORDERS OF ADRENAL GLANDS (E24-E27) DISEASES OF THYMUS (E32) OTHER ENDOCRINE DISEASES (E15-E21, E28-E31, E34) NUTRITIONAL DISEASES (E40-E68) MALNUTRITION (E40-E46) NUTRITIONAL MARASMUS (E41) OTHER/UNSPECIFIED MALNUTRITION (E40, E42-E46) OTHER NUTRITIONAL DEFICIENCIES (E50-E64) OBESITY & OTHER HYPERALIMENTATION (E65-E68) METABOLIC DISORDERS (E70-E88) CYSTIC FIBROSIS (E84) VOLUME DEPLET, DISORDER-FLUID, ELECTROLYTE & ACID-BASE BAL (E86-E87) OTHER METABOLIC DISORDERS (E70-E83, E85, E88)
	V. MENTAL & BEHAVIORAL DISORDERS (F01-F99)
136 137 138 139 140 141 142 143	ORGANIC DIMENTIA (F01, F03) OTHER/UNSPECIFIED ORGANIC MENTAL DISORDERS (F04-F09) MENTAL & BEHAVIORAL DISORDERS DUE TO PSYCHOACTIVE SUBST USE (F10-F19) DUE TO USE OF ALCOHOL (F10) DUE TO OTHER PSYCHOACTIVE SUBSTANCE USE (F11-F19) SCHIZOPHRENIA, SCHIZOTYPAL & DELUSIONAL DISORDERS (F20-F29) MOOD (AFFECTIVE) DISORDERS (F30-F39) NEUROTIC, STRESS-RELATED & SOMATOFORM DISORDERS (F40-F48) MENTAL RETARDATION (F70-F79) OTHER/UNSPECIFIED MENTAL & BEHAVIORAL DISORDERS (F50-F69, F80-F99)
	VI. DISEASES OF THE NERVOUS SYSTEM (G00-G98)
145 146 147 148 149 150 151 152	MENINGITIS (G00, G03) OTHER INFLAMMATORY DISEASES OF CENTRAL NERVOUS SYSTEM (G04-G09) PARKINSON'S DISEASE (G20-G21) ALZHEIMER'S DISEASE (G30) MULTIPLE SCLEROSIS (G35) EPILEPSY (G40-G41) TRANSIENT CEREBRAL ISCHEMIC ATTACKS & RELATED SYNDROMES (G45) INFANTILE CEREBRAL PALSY (G80) OTH DIS-NERV SYS (G10-G14, G23-G25, G31, G36-G37, G43-G44, G47-G72, G81-G98)
	VII. DISEASES OF THE EYE & ADNEXA (H00-H57)
154	EYE & ADNEXA (H00-H57)
	VIII. DISEASES OF THE EAR & MASTOID PROCESS (H60-H93)
155	EAR & MASTOID PROCESS (H60-H93)

GRP CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)

IX. DISEASES OF THE CIRCULATORY SYSTEM (100-199)

	ACUTE RHEUMATIC FEVER & CHRONIC RHEUMATIC HEART DISEASES (100-109)
156	ACUTE RHEUMATIC FEVER (I00-I02)
	CHRONIC RHEUMATIC HEART DISÉASES (105-109)
157	RHEUMATIC MITRAL VALVE DISEASES (I05)
158	RHEUMATIC AORTIC VALVE DISEASES (106)
159	DISORDERS OF BOTH MITRAL & AORTIC VALVES (108.0)
160	OTHER CHRONIC RHEUMATIC HEART DISEASES (107, 108.1-108.9, 109)
	HYPERTENSIVE DISEASES (I10-I15)
161	ESSENTIAL (PRIMARY) HYPERTENSION (I10)
162	HYPERTENSIVE HEART DISEASE (I11)
163	HYPERTENSIVE RENAL DISEASE AND SECONDARY HYPERTENSION (I12, I15)
164	HYPERTENSIVE HEART & RENAL DISEASE (I13)
	ISCHEMIC HEART DISEASES (I20-I25)
165	ACUTE MYOCARDIAL INFARCTION (I21-I22)
166	OTHER ACUTE ISCHEMIC HEART DISEASES (I24)
	OTHER FORMS OF CHRONIC ISCHEMIC HEART DISEASE (I20, I25)
167	ATHEROSCLEROTIC CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASE, SO DESCRIBED (125.0)
168	OTHER FORMS OF CHRONIC ISCHEMIC HEART DISEASE (I20, I25.1-I25.9)
	OTHER HEART DISEASES (I26-I51)
	PULMONARY HEART DISEASE & DIS OF PULMONARY CIRCULATION (126-128)
169	PULMONARY EMBOLISM (I26)
170	OTHER PULMONARY HEART DIS & DIS OF PULMONARY CIRCULATION (127-128)
	OTHER NON-PULMONARY FORMS OF HEART DISEASE (I30-I51)
171	ACUTE & SUBACUTE ENDOCARDITIS (I33)
172	DISEASES OF PERICARDIUM & ACUTE MYOCARDITIS (I30-I31, I40)
	OTHER DISEASES OF ENDOCARDIUM (I34-I38)
173	NONRHEUMATIC MITRAL VALVE DISORDERS (134)
174	NONRHEUMATIC AORTIC VALVE DISORDERS (I35)
175	OTHER DISEASES OF ENDOCARDIUM (I36-I38)
176	CARDIOMYOPATHY (I42)
177	CONDUCTION DISORDERS & CARDIAC DYSRHYTHMIAS (144-149)
	HEART FAILURE (I50)
178	CONGESTIVE HEART FAILURE (I50.0)
179	OTHER & UNSPECIFIED HEART FAILURE (I50.1-I50.9)
180	MYOCARDITIS, UNSPECIFIED & MYOCARDIAL DEGENÉRATION (151.4-151.5)
181	OTHER & ILL-DEFINED FORMS OF HEART DIS (I51.0-I51.3, I51.6-I51.9)
	CEREBROVASCULAR DISEASES (160-169)
182	SUBARACHNOID HEMORRHAGE (160)
183	INTRACEREBRAL & OTHER INTRACRANIAL HEMORRHAGE (I61-I62)
184	CEREBRAL INFARCTION (163)
185	STROKE, NOT SPECIFIED AS HEMORRHAGE OR INFARCTION (164)
186	OTHER CEREBROVASCULAR DISEASES & SEQUELAE (167, 169)
	DISEASES OF ARTERIES, ARTERIOLES & CAPILLARIES (170-178)
187	ATHEROSCLEROSIS (I70)
188	AORTIC ANEURYSM & DISSECTION (I71)
189	OTHER DISEASES OF ARTERIES, ARTERIOLES & CAPILLARIES (172-178)
	OTHER DISORDERS OF CIRCULATORY SYSTEM (180-199)
190	PHLEBITIS, THROMBOPHLEBITIS, VENOUS EMBOLISM & THROMBOSIS (180-182)
191	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED DISORDERS OF CIRCULATORY SYSTEM (183-199)
	2
	X. DISEASES OF THE RESPIRATORY SYSTEM (J00-J98, U04, U07.0)
	A OUTE LIBBED DEODID ATODY (INTEROTIONIC / ICC. ICC.)

ACUTE UPPER RESPIRATORY INFECTIONS (J00-J06)

ACUTE PHARYNGITIS & TONSILLITIS (J02-J03)

192

<u>GRP</u>	CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)
	X. DISEASES OF THE RESPIRATORY SYSTEM (J00-J98, U04, U07.0) continued
193	ACUTE LARYNGITIS & TRACHEITIS (J04)
194	OTHER/UNSPEC ACUTE UPPER RESPIRATORY INFECTIONS (J00-J01, J05-J06)
	OTHER DISEASES OF THE RESPIRATORY SYSTEM (J09-J98, U04)
195	INFLUENZA (J09-J11)
	PNEUMONIA (J12-J18)
196	VIRAL PNEUMONIA, NOT ELSEWHERE CLASSIFIED (J12)
197	BACTERIAL PNEUMONIA (J13-J15)
198	PNEUMONIA DUE TO OTHER/UNSPECIFIED ORGANISMS (J16, J18)
199	OTHER ACUTE LOWER RESPIRATORY INFECTIONS (J20-J22, U04) ACUTE BRONCHITIS & BRONCHIOLITIS (J20-J21)
200	OTHER AND UNSPECIFIED ACUTE LOWER RESPIRATORY INFECTION (J22, U04)
201	OTHER DISEASES OF UPPER RESPIRATORY TRACT (J30-J39)
	CHRONIC LOWER RESPIRATORY DISEASES (J40-J47)
	BRONCHITIS, CHRONIC & UNSPECIFIED, EMPHYSEMA & ASTHMA (J40-J46)
202	BRONCHITIS, NOT SPECIFIED AS ACUTE OR CHRONIC (J40)
203	CHRONIC BRONCHITIS (J41-J42)
204	EMPHYSEMA (J43)
205	OTHER CHRONIC OBSTRUCTIVE PULMONARY DISEASE (J44)
206	ASTHMA (J45-J46)
207	BRONCHIECTASIS (J47)
	LUNG DISEASES DUE TO EXTERNAL AGENTS (J60-J70)
208	PNEUMOCONIOSES & CHEMICAL EFFECTS (J60-J66, J68, U07.0)
209	PNEUMONITIS DUE TO SOLIDS & LIQUIDS (J69) PNEUMONITIS DUE TO FOOD & VOMIT (J69.0)
210	OTHER PNEUMONITIS DUE TO SOLIDS & LIQUIDS (J69.1-J69.8)
211	OTHER LUNG DISEASES DUE TO EXTERNAL AGENTS (J67, J70)
212	SUPPURATIVE & NECROTIC CONDITIONS OF LOWER RESPIRAT TRACT (J85-J86)
213	PLEURAL EFFUSION & PLAQUE (J90, J92)
214	OTHER DISEASES OF RESPIRATORY SYSTEM (J80-J84, J93-J98)
	XI. DISEASES OF THE DIGESTIVE SYSTEM (K00-K92)
215	DISEASES OF ORAL CAVITY, SALIVARY GLANDS & JAWS (K00-K14)
	DISEASES OF OTHER PARTS OF DIGESTIVE SYSTEM (K20-K92)
216	DISEASES OF ESOPHAGUS (K20-K22)
	PEPTIC ULCER (K25-K28)
217	GASTRIC ULCER (K25)
218	DUODENAL ULCER (K26)
219	PEPTIC ULCER, SITE UNSPECIFIED (K27)
220	GASTROJEJUNAL ULCER (K28)
221 222	GASTRITIS & DUODENITIS (K29) DYSPEPSIA & OTHER DISEASES OF STOMACH & DUODENUM (K30-K31)
223	DISEASES OF APPENDIX (K35-K38)
224	HERNIA (K40-K46)
225	CROHN'S DISEASE & ULCERATIVE COLITIS (K50-K51)
226	VASCULAR DISORDERS & OBSTRUCTION OF INTESTINE W/O HERNIA (K55-K56)
227	DIVERTICULAR DISEASE OF INTESTINE (K57)
228	OTHER DISEASES OF INTESTINES & PERITONEUM (K52, K58-K63)
229	DISEASES OF PERITONEUM (K65-K66)
	DISEASES OF LIVER (K70-K76)
230	ALCOHOLIC LIVER DISEASE (K70)
231	CHRONIC HEPATITIS, NOT ELSEWHERE CLASSIFIED (K73)
232	FIBROSIS & CIRRHOSIS OF LIVER (K74)
233	OTHER DISEASES OF LIVER (K71-K72, K75-K76)

<u>GRP</u>	CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)	
	XI. DISEASES OF THE DIGESTIVE SYSTEM (K00-K92) continued	
234 235 236 237	CHOLELITHIASIS & OTHER DISORDERS OF THE GALLBLADDER (K80-K82) DISORDERS OF BILIARY TRACT & PANCREAS (K83-K86) PANCREATITIS (K85, K86.0-K86.1) OTHER DISORDERS OF BILIARY TRACT & PANCREAS (K83, K86.2-K86.9) OTHER DISEASES OF DIGESTIVE SYSTEM (K90, K92)	
	XII. DISEASES OF THE SKIN AND SUBCUTANEOUS TISSUE (L00-L98)	
238 239	INFECTIONS OF SKIN & SUBCUTANEOUS TISSUE (L00-L08) OTHER/UNSPECIFIED DISEASES OF SKIN & SUBCUTANEOUS TISSUE (L10-L98)	
	XIII. DISEASES OF MUSCULOSKELETAL SYS & CONNECTIVE TISSUE (M00-M99)	
240 241 242 243 244 245 246	RHEUMATIOID ARTHRITIS, RELATED INFLAMMATORY POLYARTHROPATH (M05-M08) SYSTEMIC LUPUS ERYTHEMATOSUS (M32) OTHER ARTHROPATHIES & RELATED DISORDERS (M00, M02, M10-M31, M33-M35) DORSOPATHIES (M40-M54) SOFT TISSUE DISORDERS (M60-M79) OSTEOPATHS/CHONDROPATHS & OTH DISORDER-MUSC SYS/CONN TISS (M80-M99) OSTEOPOROSIS (M80-M81) OTH OSTEOPATH/CHONDROPATH & DISORDER-MUSC SYS/CONN TISS (M83-M99)	
	XIV. DISEASES OF THE GENITOURINARY SYSTEM (N00-N98)	
247 248 249 250 251 252 253 254 255 256 257 258 259 260	DISEASES OF URINARY SYSTEM (N00-N39) GLOMERULAR & RENAL TUBULO-INTERSTITIAL DISEASES (N00-N15) GLOMERULAR DISEASES (N00-N07) ACUTE & RAPIDLY PROGRESSIVE NEPHRITIC SYNDROME (N00-N01) NEPHROTIC SYNDROME (N04) OTHER/UNSPECIFIED GLOMERULAR DISEASES (N02-N03, N05-N07) RENAL TUBULO-INTERSTITIAL DISEASES (N10-N15) RENAL FAILURE (N17-N19) UROLITHIASIS (N20-N23) OTHER/UNSPECIFIED DISORDERS OF KIDNEY (N25-N27) URINARY TRACT INFECTION, SITE NOT SPECIFIED (N39.0) OTHER DISEASES OF URINARY SYSTEM (N28-N36, N39.1-N39.9) DISEASES OF MALE GENITAL ORGANS (N40-N50) HYPERPLASIA OF PROSTATE (N40) OTHER DISEASES OF MALE GENITAL ORGANS (N41-N50) DISORDERS OF BREAST (N60-N64) DISORDERS OF FEMALE GENITAL ORGANS (N70-N98) INFLAMMATORY DISEASES OF FEMALE GENITAL TRACT (N80-N98)	
	XV. PREGNANCY, CHILDBIRTH & THE PUERPERIUM (O00-O99)	
261 262 263 264 265 266	PREGNANCY WITH ABORTIVE OUTCOME (000-007) ECTOPIC PREGNANCY (000) SPONTANEOUS ABORTION (003) MEDICAL ABORTION (004) OTHER ABORTION (005) OTHER/UNSPEC PREGNANCY WITH ABORTIVE OUTCOME (001-002, 006-007) OTHER DIRECT OBSTETRIC DEATHS (010-092) ECLAMPSIA & PRE-ECLAMPSIA (011, 013-016)	

<u>GRP</u>	CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)
	XV. PREGNANCY, CHILDBIRTH & THE PUERPERIUM (000-099) continued
267	HEMORRHAGE – PREG, CHILDBIRTH & PLACENTA PREVIA (O20, O44-O46, O67, O72) COMPLICATIONS PREDOMINANTLY RELATED TO THE PUERPERIUM (O85-O92)
268	OBSTETRIC EMBOLISM (088)
269	OTH COMPLIC PREDOMINANTLY RELATE TO PUERPERIUM (085-087, 089-092)
270	OTH DIRECT OBSTETRIC CAUSE (O10, O12, O21-O43, O47-O66, O68-O71, O73-O75)
271	OBSTETRIC DEATH OF UNSPECIFIED CAUSE (095)
272	OTHER DEATHS RELATED TO PREGNANCY, CHILDBIRTH & PUERPERIUM (096-097)
273	INDIRECT OBSTETRIC DEATHS (O98-O99)
	XVI. CERTAIN CONDITIONS ORIGINATING IN PERINATAL PERIOD (P00-P96)
274	NEWBORN AFFECT BY MATERNAL FACTOR & COMPL-PREG/LABOR/DELIV (P00-P04)
275	DISORDERS RELATED TO SHORT GESTATION & LOW BIRTH WEIGHT, NEC (P07)
276	BIRTH TRAUMA (P10-P15)
277	INTRAUTERINE HYPOXIA & BIRTH ASPHYXIA (P20-P21)
278	RESPIRATORY DISTRESS OF NEWBORN (P22)
279	OTHER RESPIRATORY CONDITIONS ORIGINATING IN PERINATAL PERIOD (P23-P28)
280	INFECTIONS SPECIFIC TO PERINATAL PERIOD (P35-P39)
281	OTHER/UNSPEC CONDITIONS ORIGIN IN PERINATAL PER (P05, P08, P29, P50-P96)
	XVII. CONGENITAL MALFORMATION/DEFORMATION AND CHROMOSOMAL ABNORMALITIES (Q00-Q99)
282	ANENCEPHALY & SIMILAR MALFORMATIONS (Q00)
283	SPINA BIFIDA (Q05)
284	OTHER CONGENITAL MALFORMATIONS OF NERVOUS SYSTEM (Q01-Q04, Q06-Q07)
285	CONGENITAL MALFORMATIONS OF HEART (Q20-Q24)
286	OTHER CONGENITAL MALFORMATIONS OF CIRCULATORY SYSTEM (Q25-Q28)
287	CONGENITAL MALFORMATIONS OF RESPIRATOR SYSTEM (Q30-Q34)
288	OTHER CONGENITAL MALFORMATIONS & DEFORMATIONS (Q10-Q18, Q35-Q89)
289	DOWN'S SYNDROME (Q90)
290	OTHER CHROMOSOMAL ABNORMALITIES, NEC (Q91-Q99)
	XVIII. SYMPTOMS, SIGNS & ABNORMAL CLINIC/LAB FINDINGS, NEC (R00-R99)
291	SENILITY (R54)
	ILL-DEFINED & UNKNOWN CAUSE OF MORTALITY (R95-R99)
292	SUDDEN INFANT DEATH SYNDROME (R95)
293	OTHER ILL-DEFINED & UNKNOWN CAUSES OF MORTALITY (R96-R99)
294	OTH SYMPTOMS/SIGN & ABNORMAL CLINIC/LAB FINDINGS, NEC (R00-R53, R55-R94)
	XIX. EXTERNAL CAUSES OF MORTALITY (V01-Y89, U01-U03)
	UNINTENTIONAL INJURIES (ACCIDENTS) (V01-X59, Y85-Y86)
	TRANSPORT ACCIDENTS (V01-V99, Y85)
295	RAILWAY ACCIDENTS (V05, V15, V80.6, V81.2-V81.9)
	MOTOR VEHICLE (M.V.) ACCIDENTS (V02-V04, V09.0, V09.2, V12-V14, V19.0-V19.2,
	V19.4-V19.6, V20-V79, V80.3-V80.5, V81.0-V81.1, V82.0-V82.1, V83-V86, V87.0-
	V87.8, V88.0-V88.8, V89.0, V89.2)
296	PEDESTRIAN INVOLVING COLLISION W/ M.V. (V02-V04)
297	PEDALCYCLIST INV COLL W/ M.V. (V12-V14, V19.0-V19.2, V19.4-V19.6)
298	MOTORCYCLIST INVOLV ANY ACC EXCEPT COLL W/ RAILWAY TRAIN (V20-V24, V26 V34, V36-V39)

GRP CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS)

XIX. EXTERNAL CAUSES OF MORTALITY (V01-Y89, U01-U03)... continued

	M.V. ACCIDENT INVOLVING COLLISION W/ RAILWAY TRAIN (V25, V35, V45, V55,
	V65, V75, V81.0-V81.1, V87.6, V88.6)
299	MOTORCYCLIST INVOLVING COLLISION W/ RAILWAY TRAIN (V25, V35)
300	OTHER M.V. ACCIDENT INVOLVING COLLISION W/ RAILWAY TRAIN (V45, V55, V65,
	V75, V81.0-V81.1, V87.6, V88.6)
301	OCC-M.V. INV COLL W/ OTH (NONMOTOR) ROADVEH/STRCAR/ANIML/PED (V40-V41,
	V46, V47, V50-V51, V56-V57, V60-V61, V66-V67, V70-V71, V76-V77)
302	OCCUPANT-CAR/PICKUP TRUCK/VAN INVOLVING COLL W/ OTHER M.V. (V42-V44,
	V49, V52-V54, V59)
303	OCCUPANT-HEAVY TRANSPORT VEHICLE/BUS INV COLL W/ OTH M.V. (V62-V64,
	V69, V72-V74, V79)
304	OCCUPANT-M.V. INVOLVING NONCOLLISION ACCIDENT (V48, V58, V68, V78)
305	OCCUPANT-SPECIAL-USE M.V. INVOLVING ANY ACCIDENT (V83-V86)
306	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED M.V. ACCIDENTS (V09.0, V09.2, V80.3-V80.5, V82.0-V82.1,
207	V87.0-V87.5, V87.7-V87.8, V88.0-V88.5, V88.7-V88.8, V89.0, V89.2)
307	STREETCAR ACCIDENTS (V82.2-V82.9)
308	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED LAND TRANSPORT ACCIDENTS (V01, V06, V09.1, V09.3, V09.9, V10-V11, V16-V18, V19.3, V19.8-V19.9, V80.0-V80.2, V80.7-V80.9, V87.9, V88.9,
309	V89.1, V89.3, V89.9) WATER TRANSPORT ACCIDENTS (V90-V94)
310	AIR & SPACE TRANSPORT ACCIDENTS (V95-V97)
311	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED TRANSPORT ACCIDENTS & SEQUELAE (V98-V99, Y85)
	FALLS (W00-W19)
312	FALL ON SAMÉ LEVEL (W00-W09, W18)
313	FALL FROM ONE LEVEL TO ANOTHER (W10-W17)
314	UNSPECIFIED FALL (W19)
315	ACCIDENTAL DISCHARGE OF FIREARMS (W32-W34)
316	ACCIDENTAL EXPLOSION (W39-W40)
317 318	ACCIDENTAL DROWNING & SUBMERSION (W65-W74) ACC INHALATION/INGESTION FOOD/OTH OBJ-OBSTR RESP TRACT (W78-W80)
319	OTHER ACCIDENTAL & UNSPEC THREAT TO BREATHING (W75-W77, W81-W84)
320	ACCIDENTAL EXPOSURE TO ELECTRIC CURRENT (W85-W87)
321	ACCIDENTAL EXPOSURE TO RADIATION (W88-W91)
322	ACCIDENTAL EXPOSURE TO SMOKE, FIRE & FLAMÉS (X00-X09)
323	ACCIDENTAL CONTACT WITH HEAT & HOT SUBSTANCES (X10-X19)
324	LIGHTNING (X33)
325	EARTHQUAKE/VOLCANO/AVALANCH/LANDSLIDE/EARTH MOVEMENT (X34-X36)
326	CATACLYSMIC STORM AND FLOOD (X37-X38)
327	ACCIDENTAL POISONING & EXPOSURE TO NOXIOUS SUBSTANCES (X40-X49) BY/EXPOSURE TO DRUGS/OTH BIOLOGICAL SUBS (X40-X44)
328	BY/EXPOSURE TO OTH/UNSPEC SOLID/LIQUID SUBS (X45-X46, X48-X49)
329	BY/EXPOSURE TO OTHER GASES & VAPORS (X47)
330	OTHER/UNSPECIFIED ACCIDENTS & SEQUELAE (W20-W31, W35-W38, W41-W64, W92-
	W99, X20-X32, X39, X50-X59, Y86)
	INTENTIONAL SELF-HARM (SUICIDE) (Ú03, X60-X84, Y87.0)
331	POISONING BY/EXPOSURE TO DRUGS/OTH BIOLOGICAL SUBS (X60-X64)
332	POIS BY/EXP TO OTH/UNSPEC SOLID/LIQ SUBS & VAPORS (X65-X66, X68-X69)
333	POIS BY/EXP TO OTHER GASES & VAPORS (X67)
334	BY HANGING, STRANGULATION & SUFFOCATION (X70)
335 336	BY DISCHARGE OF FIREARMS (X72-X74) BY HIMPING EROM A HIGH DI ACE (X80)
337	BY JUMPING FROM A HIGH PLACE (X80) BY OTHER/UNSPEC MEANS & SEQUELAE (U03, X71, X75-X79, X81-X84, Y87.0)
	ASSAULT (HOMICIDE) (X85-Y09, Y87.1, U01-U02)

FLORIDA VITAL STATISTICS CODE MANUAL FOR DEATH

LIST OF 358 SELECTED CAUSE OF DEATH GROUPS (continued)

CAUSE OF DEATH (ICD-10 INCLUSIONS) <u>GRP</u> XIX. EXTERNAL CAUSES OF MORTALITY (V01-Y89, U01-U03)... continued 338 BY DRUGS, BIOLOGICAL & OTHER/UNSPEC NOXIOUS SUBSTANCES (X85-X90, U01.6-U01.7) 339 BY HANGING, STRANGULATION & SUFFOCATION (X91) 340 BY DISCHARGE OF FIREARMS (X93-X95, U01.4) 341 BY SHARP OBJECT (X99) BY BLUNT OBJECT (Y00) 342 BY BODILY FORCE (Y04) 343 SEXUAL BY BODILY FORCE (Y05) 344 NEGLECT, ABANDONMENT & OTHER MALTREATMENT SYNDROMES (Y06-Y07) 345 BY OTHER/UNSPEC MEANS & SEQUELAE (X92, X96-X98, Y01-Y03, Y08-Y09, Y87.1, U01.0-346 U01.3, U01.5, U01.8-U01.9, U02) EVENT OF UNDETERMINED INTENT (Y10-Y34, Y87.2, Y89.9) POISONING BY/EXPOSURE TO DRUGS/BIOLOGICAL SUBSTANCES (Y10-Y14) 347 POISONING BY/EXPOSURE TO OTH/UNSPEC SOLID/LIQ SUBS (Y15-Y16, Y18-Y19) 348 349 POISONING BY/EXPOSURE TO OTHER GASES & VAPORS (Y17) 350 DISCHARGE OF FIREARMS (Y22-Y24) 351 FALLING, JUMPING OR PUSHED FROM A HIGH PLACE (Y30) OTHER/UNSPEC EVENTS & SEQUELAE (Y20-Y21, Y25-Y29, Y31-Y34, Y87.2, Y89.9) 352 LEGAL INTERVENTION (Y35, Y89.0) 353 LEGAL EXECUTION (Y35.5) OTHER LEGAL INTERVENTION & SEQUELAE (Y35.0-Y35.4, Y35.6-Y35.7, Y89.0) 354 355 OPERATIONS OF WAR & SEQUELAE (Y36, Y89.1) COMPLICATIONS OF MEDICAL & SURGICAL CARE (Y40-Y84, Y88) ---DRUG/MED/BIOL SUB CAUS ADVERSE AFFECT-THERAP USE, SEQ (Y40-Y59, Y88.0) 356 MISADVENTURE TO PATIENT - MEDICAL/SURGICAL CARE, SEQ (Y60-Y69, Y88.1) 357 OTHER COMPLICATION-MEDICAL/SURGICAL CARE & SEQ (Y70-Y84, Y88.2-Y88.3) 358

RELATED WEBSITES

FLHealthCHARTS

FLHealthCHARTS Death Query System

FLHealthCHARTS Infant Death Query System

NCHS Cause of Death Manual

ICD Online Code Manual

Vital Statistics Code Manuals Online